e-KONG Group Limited

3705 Gloucester Tower, The Landmark
11 Pedder Street, Central, Hong Kong
Tel 1 +852 2801 7188

Fax :+852 28017238

Web : www.e-kong.com

BY DHL
21 April 2006

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
Office of International Corporate Finance
Judiciary Plaza

450 Fifth Street, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20549

USA
Ladies and Gentlemen | S U P P L
Re : e-Kong Group Limited — SEC File No. 082-34653

Information furnished pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b)

We, e-Kong Group Limited (the “Company”), hereby submit the documents listed as per the
attached summary, in duplicate, to the Commission in order to maintain the Company’s
exemption from Section 12(g) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Act”), pursuant to
Rule 12g3-2(b) of the Act.

Pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b)(4) and (5), the enclosed materials shall not be deemed “filed” with
the Commission or otherwise subject to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Act, and the
furnishing of such materials shall not constitute an admission for any purpose that the
Company is subject to the Act.

We would appreciate your acknowledging receipt of this letter and enclosures by stamping the
enclosed copy of this letter and returning it to us by fax on (852) 2801 7238.

Should you have any questions concerning the foregoing, please contact the undersigned on
(852) 3101 3042.

Yours sincerely
For and on behalf of \& APR 26
e-Kong Group Limited . 2 200

......

egal Counsel
Encls.




US SEC File No. 082-34653
Information furnished pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b)
as at 21 April 2006

SUMMARY

INFORMATION MADE PUBLIC, FILED OR DISTRIBUTED
pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

The Companies Ordinance, Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong (“Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance”)

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules™)

Companies Registry, Hong Kong Government (“Hong Kong Companies Registry™)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”)

The Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”)

The Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (“SFO”)

The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Bermuda Companies Act™)

Document Date Entity

I. |Monthly Return on Movement of Listed ~ |January 2006 - SEHK (pursuant to Listing Rules)
Equity Securities (Form I) for the months  |April 2006
from December 2005 to March 2006

2. |Register of Directors & Officers 10 January 2006 Bermuda Companies Act

3. |Announcement — Major Transaction 19 January 2006 SEHK (pursuant to Listing Rules)
(Proposed Acquisition of
Telecommunication Services Assets and
Resumption of Trading)

4. |Announcement — Delay in Despatch of 10 February 2006 SEHK (pursuant to Listing Rules)
Major Transaction Circular in relation to the
Proposed Acquisition of
Telecommunication Services Assets

5. |Announcement — Notice of Special General |16 February 2006 SEHK (pursuant to Listing Rules)
Meeting

6. |Announcement — Final Results for the Year {27 March 2006 SEHK (pursuant to Listing Rules)
Ended 31 December 2005

7. |Announcement — Unusual Movement in the |30 March 2006 SEHK (pursuant to Listing Rules)
Trading Volume of Shares

8. |Statement on Unusual Movements in Price {30 March 2006 Listing Rules
and Trading Volume of Shares

9. |Announcement — Notice of Annual General |11 April 2006 SEHK (pursuant to Listing Rules)
Meeting




Document Date Entity
10, |Form 2 — Corporate Substantial Shareholder|29 March 2006 SFO
Notice re Goldstone Trading Limited
11. {Form 2 - Corporate Substantial Shareholder|29 March 2006 SFO
Notice re Future (Holdings) Limited
12. |[Form 3A - Director’s/Chief Executive’s 29 March 2006 SFO
Notice re Mr. Richard John Siemens’s
interests in shares of Listed Corporation
13. {Form 3A - Director’s/Chief Executive’s 29 March 2006 SFO
Notice re Mr. Kuldeep Saran’s interests in
shares of Listed Corporation
14. |[Form 3A - Director’s/Chief Executive’s 29 March 2006 SFO
Notice re Mr. William Bruce Hicks’s
interests in shares of Listed Corporation
15. {Letter to SEHK attaching eight certified 10 March 2006 Listing Rules
copies of minutes of the special general
meeting of the Company held on 3 March
2006
16. |Letter to SEHK re Notification of Board of |13 March 2006 SEHK (pursuant to Listing Rules)
Directors’ Meeting to be held on 24 March
2006
17. [Undertaking to SEHK to exercise the 24 March 2006 SEHK (pursuant to Listing Rules)
repurchase mandate in accordance with the
Listing Rules
18. |Shareholders’ circular in respect of Major |Despatched on SEHK (pursuant to Listing Rules)
Transaction (Proposed Acquisition of 16 February 2006
Telecommunication Services Assets)
19. |[Form of Proxy for special general meeting |Despatched on SEHK (pursuant to Listing Rules)
to be held on 3 March 2006 16 February 2006
20. 12005 Annual Report (English Version) Despatched on SEHK (pursuant to Listing Rules)
11 April 2006
21. 12005 Annual Report (Chinese Version) Despatched on SEHK (pursuant to Listing Rules)
11 April 2006
22. |Shareholders’ circular in respect of general |Despatched on SEHK (pursuant to Listing Rules)

mandate to issue shares and to repurchase
shares, re-election of retiring directors and
amendment of Bye-laws

11 April 2006




Document Date Entity
23. |Form of Proxy for annual general meeting Despatched on SEHK (pursuant to Listing Rules)
to be held on 10 May 2006 11 April 2006




e-KONG Group Limited

- ;;',‘:. 3705 Gloucester Tower, The Landmark
‘ : 11 Pedder Street, Central, Hong Kong

Tel 485228017188

Fax :+B852 2801 7238
Web : www.e-kong.com

BY HAND
9 January 2006

Research & Planning Department

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
11 Floor, One International Finance Centre
1 Harbour View Street

Central, Hong Kong

Dear Sirs

e-Kong Group Limited (the “Company”)
Monthly Return on Movement of Listed Equity Securities

We enclose herewith a duly signed Monthly Return on Movement of Listed Equity Securities
(Form I) of the Company for the month ended 31 December 2005 (in duplicate) for your attention.

Kindly acknowledge receipt thereof by signing and returning to us a copy of this letter.

Yours faithfully
For and on behalf of
e-Kong Group Limited

ompany Secretary
Encl.




FORM I
Monthly Return On Movement of Listed Equity Securities
For the Month ended __ 31 December 2005

To : The Listing Division of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Cc : The Research & Planning Department of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

From : e-Kong Group Limited

{Name of Company)

Lim Shvang Guey Tel No.: _ 2296 9700
(Name of Responsible Official) '

Date : 9 January 2006

(A) Information on Types of Listed Equity Securities :
(please tick wherever applicable)

1. Ordinary shares : v 2, Preference Shares :
3. Other classes of shares : please specify :
4. Warrants : please specify :

(B) Movement in Authorised Share Capital :

No. of ordinary shares/

Preference-shares/ Par Value Authorised Share Capital

otherclasses-of shares (HK$) L (HK$)
Balance at close
of preceding month 12,000,000,000 0.01 120,000,000
Increase/(Decrease)
(AGM approval date): - - -

)

Balance at close 12,000,000,000 0.01 120,000,000

of the month

(C) Movement in Issued Share Capital :

No. of ) No. of

Ordinary shares Preference shares
Balance at close 470,894,200 _ N/A
of preceding month :
Increase/(Decrease) - N/A
during the month :
Balance at close 470,894,200 N/A

No. of other
classes of shares

N/A




(D) Details of Movement :
* please delete and insert N/A wherever inapplicable

TYPE OF SECURITIES MOVEMENT DURING THE SECURITIES IN NO. OF
SECURITIES IN ISSUE AT MONTH IN ISSUE AT NEW SHARES
CLOSE OF CLOSE OF ARISING
PRECEDING THE MONTH THEREFROM
MONTH
SHARE No. of Granted Exercised Cancelled/ No. of Options
OPTIONS* Options Lapsed
Type
Employee
Share Options
Exercise Price :
HK$ 1.20 20,000 Nil Nil Nil 20,000 Nil
Exercise Price :
HKS_1.40 15,000 Nil Nil Nil 15,000 Nil
Exercise Price : »
HK$_1.60 7,500 Nil Nil Nil 7,500 Nil
Exercise Price :
HK$_2.00 35,000 Nil Nil Nil 35,000 Nil
Exercise Price :
HK$_2.30 30,000 Nil Nil Nil 30,000 Nil
Exercise Price : .
HK$_3.30 40,000 Nil Nil Nil 40,000 Nil
WARRANTS* Nominal Value Exercised Nominal Value
Date of Expiry (HK$) (HK$) (HKS)
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Subscription Price:
HK$
CONVERTIBLES* Units Converted
Class (Preference (Units) Units
Shares)
Convertible Price: N/A N/A N/A N/A
HK$
OTHER ISSUES
OF SHARES* ,
Rights Issue Price Issue and allotment Date :
Placing Price Issue and allotment Date :
Bonus Issue Issue and allotment Date :
Scrip Issue and allotment Date :
Dividend '
Repurchase of Cancellation Date :
Share
Redemption Redemption Date :
of share
Consideration Price Issue and allotment Date :
Issue
Others (Please Price Issue and allotment Date :
specify)
Total number of ordinary shares/preference-sharesfotherclasses-ofshares
increased/(decreased) during the month : N/A
Remark :
Authorised Signature:
%ﬁe: Lau Wai Ming Raymond
itle: Company Secretary
Note:

All information contained in this form may be reproduced and provided to other information vendors or users of market data
at the sole discretion of the Stock Exchange without prior notification to the company/issuer.




e-KONG Group Limited

3705 Gloucester Tower, The Landmark
11 Pedder Street, Central, Hong Kong
Tel :+852 28017188

Fax :+852 28017238

Web : www.e-kong.com

BY HAND

9 February 2006

Research & Planning Department

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
11" Floor, One International Finance Centre
1 Harbour View Street

Central, Hong Kong

Dear Sirs

e-Kong Group Limited (the “Company”)
Monthly Return on Movement of Listed Equity Securities

We enclose herewith a duly signed Monthly Return on Movement of Listed Equity Securities
(Form I) of the Company for the month ended 31 January 2006 (in duplicate) for your attention.

Kindly acknowledge receipt thereof by signing and returning to us a copy of this letter.

Yours faithfully
For and on behalf of
e-Kong Group Limited




FORM 1
Monthly Return On Movement of Listed Equity Securities
For the Month ended ___31January 2006

To : The Listing Division of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Cc : The Research & Planning Department of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

From: e-Kong Group Limited

(Name of Company)

Lim Shyang Guey Tel No. : __2296 9700

(Name of Responsible Official)

Date : 9 February 2006

(A) Information on Types of Listed Equity Securities :
(please tick wherever applicable)

1. Ordinary shares: v 2. Preference Shares :
3. Other classes of shares : please specify :
4. Warrants : please specify :

(B) Movement in Authorised Share Capital :

No. of ordinary shares/

Preferenceshares/ Par Value Authorised Share Capital

other-eclasses-of shares , (HK$) (HK$)
Balance at close .
of preceding month 12,000,000,000 0.01 120,000,000
Increase/(Decrease)
(AGM approval date): - - -

)

Balance at close 12,000,000,000 0.01 120,000,000

of the month

(C) Movement in Issued Share Capital :

No. of No. of No. of other
Ordinary shares Preference shares classes of shares
Balance at close 470,894,200 N/A N/A
of preceding month :
Increase/(Decrease) - N/A N/A
during the month :
Balance at close 470,894,200 N/A N/A

of the month : 5 S e s S —




(D) Details of Movement :
* please delete and insert N/A wherever inapplicable

TYPE OF SECURITIES MOVEMENT DURING THE SECURITIES IN NO. OF

SECURITIES IN ISSUE AT MONTH IN ISSUE AT NEW SHARES
CLOSE OF CLOSE OF ARISING
PRECEDING THE MONTH THEREFROM
MONTH

SHARE No. of Granted Exercised Cancelled/ No. of Options

OPTIONS* Options Lapsed

Type

Employee

Share Options

Exercise Price :

HK$ 1.20 20,000 Nil Nil Nil 20,000 Nil

Exercise Price :

HKS$_1.40 15,000 Nil Nil Nil 15,000 Nil

Exercise Price :

HKS$_1.60 7,500 Nil Nil Nil 7,500 Nil

Exercise Price :

HK$_2.00 35,000 Nil Nil Nil 35,000 Nil

Exercise Price : :

HK$_2.30 30,000 Nil Nil Nil 30,000 . Nit

Exercise Price : :

HK$_3.30 40,000 Nit Nil Nil 40,000 Nil

WARRANTS* Nominal Value Exercised Nominal Value

Date of Expiry (HK$) (HK$) (HK$)

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Subscription Price:

HKS$

CONVERTIBLES* Units Converted

Class (Preference (Units) Units

Shares)

Convertible Price: N/A N/A N/A ~ N/A

HKS$

OTHER ISSUES

OF SHARES*

Rights Issue Price Issue and allotment Date :

Placing Price : Issue and allotment Date :

Bonus Issue Issue and allotment Date :

Scrip Issue and allotment Date :

Dividend

Repurchase of Cancellation Date :

Share

Redemption Redemption Date :

of share

Consideration Price : Issue and allotment Date :

Issue

Others (Please Price : Issue and allotment Date :

specify)

Total number of ordinary shares/preferencesharesiotherelasses-ef shares
increased/(decreased) during the month : N/A
Remark :

Authorised Signature:

»'-’." WartMing Raymond
/ Title: Company Secretary
Note:

All information contained in this form may be reproduced and provided to other information vendors or users of market data
at the sole discretion of the Stock Exchange without prior notification to the company/issuer.




e-KONG Group Limited

3705 Gloucester Tower, The Landmark
11 Pedder Street, Central, Hong Kong
Tel  :+85228017188

Fax :+852 28017238

Web : www.e-kong.com

BY HAND
9 March 2006

Research & Planning Department

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
11" Floor, One International Finance Centre
1 Harbour View Street

Central, Hong Kong

Dear Sirs

e-Kong Group Limited (the “Company”)
Monthly Return on Movement of Listed Equity Securities

We enclose herewith a duly signed Monthly Return on Movement of Listed Equity Securities
(Form I) of the Company for the month ended 28 February 2006 (in duplicate) for your attention.

Kindly acknowledge receipt thereof by signing and returning to us a copy of this letter.
Yours faithfully

For and on behalf of
e-Kong Group Limited

/
ai Ming Raymond
ompany Secretary
Encl.




FORM1
Monthly Return On Movement of Listed Equity Securities
For the Month ended __ 28 February 2006

To : The Listing Division of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Cc : The Research & Planning Department of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

From: e-Kong Group Limited

{Name of Company)

Lim Shyvang Guey Tel No.: 2296 9700

(Name of Responsible Official)

Date : 9 March 2006

(A) Information on Types of Listed Equity Securities :
(please tick wherever applicable)

1. Ordinary shares: v 2. Preference Shares :
3. Other classes of shares : please specify :
4. Warrants : please specify :

(B) Movement in Authorised Share Capital :

No. of ordinary shares/

Preference-shares/ Par Value Authorised Share Capital

otherclasses-ofshares (HK$) (HK$)
Balance at close
of preceding month 12,000,000,000 - 0.01 120,000,000
Increase/(Decrease)
(AGM approval date): - - -

)]

Balance at close 12,000,000,000 0.01 120,000,000
of the month

(C) Movement in Issued Share Capital :

No. of No. of No. of other
Qrdinary shares Preference shares classes of shares
Balance at close 470,894,200 N/A N/A
of preceding month :
Increase/(Decrease) - N/A N/A
during the month :
Balance at close 470,894,200 N/A N/A

of the month : ============ o mommrmemmrmomeee T




(D) Details of Movement :
* please delete and insert N/A wherever inapplicable

TYPE OF SECURITIES MOVEMENT DURING THE SECURITIES IN NO. OF
SECURITIES IN ISSUE AT MONTH IN ISSUE AT NEW SHARES
CLOSE OF CLOSE OF ARISING
PRECEDING THE MONTH THEREFROM
MONTH
SHARE No. of Granted Exercised Cancelled/ No. of Options
OPTIONS* Opticns Lapsed
Type
Emplovee
Share Options
Exercise Price :
HKS$ 1.20 20,000 Nil Nil Nil 20,000 Nil
Exercise Price :
HK$_1.40 15,000 Nil Nil Nil 15,000 Nil
Exercise Price :
HK$_1.60 7,500 Nil Nil Nil 7,500 Nil
Exercise Price :
HK$_2.00 35,000 Nil Nil Nil 35,000 Nil
Exercise Price :
HK$_2.30 30,000 Nil Nil Nil 30,000 Nil
Exercise Price : ’
HK$_3.30 40,000 Nil Nil Nil 40,000 Nil
WARRANTS* Nominal Value Exercised Nominal Value
Date of Expiry (HKS$) (HK$) (HKS$)
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Subscription Price:
HK§$
CONVERTIBLES* Units Converted
Class (Preference (Units) Units
Shares)
Convertible Price: N/A N/A N/A N/A
HK$
OTHER ISSUES
OF SHARES*
Rights Issue Price Issue and allotment Date :
Placing Price Issue and allotment Date :
Bonus Issue Issue and allotment Date :
Scrip Issue and allotment Date :
Dividend
Repurchase of Cancellation Date :
Share
Redemption Redemption Date :
of share
Consideration Price Issue and allotment Date :
Issue
Others (Please Price Issue and allotment Date :
specify)
Total number of ordinary shares/preference-shares/other-elasses-ofshares
increased/(decreased) during the month : N/A
Remark :
Authorised Signature:
tle: Company Secretary
Note:

All information contained in this form may be reproduced and provided to other information vendors or users of market data
at the sole discretion of the Stock Exchange without prior notification to the company/issuer.




e-KONG Group Limited

3705 Gloucester Tower, The Landmark
11 Pedder Street, Central, Hong Kong
Tel  :+85228017188

Fax :+852 28017238

Web : www.e-kong.com

BY HAND
7 April 2006

Research & Planning Department

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
11" Floor, One International Finance Centre
1 Harbour View Street

Central, Hong Kong

Dear Sirs

e-Kong Group Limited (the “Company”)
Monthly Return on Movement of Listed Equity Securities

We enclose herewith a duly signed Monthly Return on Movement of Listed Equity Securities
(Form I) of the Company for the month ended 31 March 2006 (in duplicate) for your attention.

Kindly acknowledge receipt thereof by signing and returning to us a copy of this letter.

Yours faithfully
For and on behalf of
e-Kong Group Limited

ai Ming Raymond
ompany Secretary
Encl.




FORM I :
Monthly Return On Movement of Listed Equity Securities
For the Month ended ___31 March 2006

To : The Listing Division of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Cc : The Research & Planning Department of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

From: e-Kong Group Limited

(Name of Company)

Lim Shyang Guey Tel No.: _ 2296 9700

(Name of Responsible Official)

Date : 7 April 2006

(A) Information on Types of Listed Equity Securities :
(please tick wherever applicable)

1. Ordinary shares: v 2. Preference Shares :
3. Other classes of shares : please specify .
4. Warrants : please specify :

(B) Movement in Authorised Share Capital :

; No. of ordinary shares/

Preferenceshares/ Par Value Authorised Share Capital

otherclasses-ofshares (HKS$) (HKS)
Balance at close
of preceding month 12,000,000,000 0.01 120,000,000
Increase/(Decrease)
(AGM approval date): - - -

)

Balance at close 12,000,000,000 0.01 120,000,000

of the month

(C) Movement in Issued Share Capital :

No. of No. of No. of other
Ordinary shares Preference shares classes of shares
Balance at close 470,894,200 N/A N/A
of preceding month :
Increase/(Decrease) - N/A N/A
during the month :
Balance at close 470,894,200 N/A N/A

of the month : SEEmmm=mmE== B Emoomms=mmmaes




(D) Details of Movement ;
* please delete and insert N/A wherever inapplicable

TYPE OF SECURITIES MOVEMENT DURING THE SECURITIES INNO. OF
SECURITIES IN ISSUE AT MONTH IN ISSUE AT NEW SHARES
CLOSE OF CLOSE OF ARISING
PRECEDING THE MONTH THEREFROM
MONTH
SHARE No. of Granted Exercised Cancelled/ No. of Options
OPTIONS* Options Lapsed
Type
Emplovee
Share Options
Exercise Price :
HKS$ 1.20 20,000 Nil Nil Nil 20,000 Nil
Exercise Price :
HKS$_1.40 15,000 Nil Nil Nil 15,000 Nil
Exercise Price :
HK$_1.60 7,500 Nil Nil Nil 7,500 Nil
Exercise Price :
HK$_2.00 35,000 Nil Nil Nil 35,000 Nil
Exercise Price :
HKS$_2.30 30,000 Nil Nil Nil 30,000 Nil
Exercise Price :
HK$_3.30 40,000 Nil Nil Nil 40,000 Nil
WARRANTS* Nominal Value Exercised Nominal Value
Date of Expiry (HK$) (HKS) (HKS$)
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Subscription Price:
HK$
CONVERTIBLES* Units Converted
Class (Preference (Units) Units
Shares)
Convertible Price: N/A N/A N/A N/A
HKS$
OTHER ISSUES
OF SHARES*
Rights Issue Price Issue and allotment Date :
Placing Price Issue and allotment Date :
Bonus Issue Issue and allotment Date :
Serip Issue and allotment Date :
Dividend
Repurchase of Cancellation Date :
Share
Redemption Redemption Date :
of share
Consideration Price Issue and allotment Date :
Issue
Others (Please Price Issue and allotment Date
specify) ’
Total number of ordinary shares/preference-shares/otherelasses-ofshares
increased/(decreased) during the month : N/A
Remark :
Authorised Signature:
tie: Company Secretary
Note:

All information contained in this form may be reproduced and provided to other information vendors or users of market data
at the sole discretion of the Stock Exchange without prior notification to the company/issuer.




E-KONG GROUP LIMITED

1/10/2006
Type: Exempted/IBC

Name and Address

Register of Directors & Officers

Directors

Page 1 of 2
Matter: 300812

Offices

Codan Services Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

Gerald Clive Dobby

Suite 1316

Marco Polo Gateway Hotel
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon
Hong Kong

Ira S. Outerbridge, 111
Clarendon House

2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

John William Crawford
G/F., 22 Consort Rise
Pokfulam, Hong Kong

Kuldeep Saran

18th Floor, Block 47
Baguio Villa

550 Victoria Road
Pokfulam

Hong Kong

Lau Wai Ming Raymond
Flat B, 8th Floor

Haven Court

Peninsula Village Discovery
Bay, Lantau Island

Hong Kong

Lim Shyang Guey

6 F1, 4 Cornwall Street
Kowloon Tong

Hong Kong

Richard John Siemens
Unit 1901, Tower A
Queen's Garden

9 Old Peak Road
Hong Kong

Shane Frederick Weir
Ground Floor

92 Robinson Road
Mid-levels

Hong Kong

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Resident Representative

Assistant Secretary

Deputy Chairman

Secretary

Chairman




E-KONG GROUP LIMITED

Page 2 of 2
171072006 Register of Directors & Officers Matter: 300812
Type: Exempted/IBC
Name and Address Directors Offices
William Bruce Hicks Director

House No. 2
Henderson Road
Jardine's Lookout
Hong Kong




“he Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibiliry for the contents of this announcement, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss

‘owsoever ar!smgfmm or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this announcement.

e-Kong Group Limited
{Incorporated in Bermuda with limiied liability)

www,e-kong.com
(Stock Code : 524)

MAJOR TRANSACTION
PROPOSED ACQUISITION OF TELECOMMUNICATION SERVICES ASSETS
AND RESUMPTION OF TRADING -

THE ACQUISITION

On 16 January 2006, ZONE US entered into the Asset Purchase Agreement with the Vendors and the Guarantor to acquire customer and carrier contracts of the Vendors and certain related assets held by the Vendors in
connection with the provision by the Vendors of long distance telecommunication services in the United States. The total consideration for the Acquisition will be US36.5 million {equivalenl to approximulely HK$50.7
million), subject to adjustments, which will primarily be financed by a secured term bank loan facility made available to ZONE US for the purpose of the Acquisition,

The Acquisition constitutes a major transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and is conditional on approval by the.Shareholders,

GENERAL

A circular containing, among others, details of the Acquisitidn and a notice to convene the SGM for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, approving the Acquisition, will be despatched to the Sharcholders as soon

as practicable.

SUSPENSION AND RESUMPTION OF TRADING IN THE SHARES

Trading in the Shares was suspended at the request of the Company with effect from 9:30 a.m. on 17 January 2006 pending the issue of this announcement. Application has been made by the Company to the Stock Exchange

for the resumption of trading in the Shares from 9:30 a.m. on 19 January 2006.

F
|
i
|
|

HE ACQUISITION

In 16 January 2006, ZONE US, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Asset Purchase
\greement with the Vendors and the Guarantor to acquire the customer and carrier contracts of the Vendors and
:ertain related assets held by the Vendors in connection with the provision by the Vendors of long distance
elecommunication services in the United States.

‘o the best of the Directors’ knowledge, (a) all of the Vendors and the Guarantor and their beneficial owners are
ot connected persons of the Company, and are third parties independent of the Company and of any connected
ersons of the Company as defined under the Listing Rules, (b) none of them hold any interest in the issned
ihare capital of the Company, and {c) no Shareholder has any material interest in the Acquisition.

“he total consideration for the Acquisition will be US$6.5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$50.7 million),
ubject to adjustments, US$6.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$46.8 million) of which will be financed
1y a secured term loan facility made available to ZONE US by the Bank for the specific purpose of the Acquisition
nd the balance thereof will be financed by internal resources of ZONE US.

{HE ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT

Jate

6 January 2006

’arties

a) ZONE US as the purchaser;

b) ‘the Vendors as the vendors; and

¢) the Guarantor as the guarantor for the Vendors.

\ssets to be acquired B

*ursuant to the Asset Purchase Agreement, the assets to be acquired by ZONE US from the Vendors include:

a) Customer Contracts and all customer and other deposits and security held or made available and relating to
the Cugtomer Comrqms, and receivables and unbilled revenue derived therefrom,

b) Carrier Contracts and all deposits and security held by carriers to the credit of or made to the carriers and

refating to the Casrier Contracts and payables derived therefrom, and

-~

c

2

afl Intellectual Property and other defined assets and rights of the Vendors held in connection with the
WRLD Operations.

CONE-US will, subject to the provisions for adjustments to the Consideration as described hereinbelow, assume
.urrent liabilities as at the Closing Date relating to the Assets incurred to third parties in the ordinary course of
wsiness in the conduct of the WRLD Operations by the Vendors which comprises, among others, customer
nd other deposits held or made available and relating to the Customer Contracts and the amounts payable in
elation (o the Carrier Contracts and the Customers Contracts.

onsideration

15%6.5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$50.7 million), subject to adjustments as described in the
raragraph below entitled “Consideration adjustment mechanism”. The Consideration was arrived at after arm's
ength negotiations by ZONE US with the Vendors and the Guarantor with reference to the price/earnings ratios
lerived from the Assets. The Consideration represents approximately 3.0 and 2.6 times of the net profit
tiributable to the Assets for the ten months ended 31 October 2005 and the year ended 31 December 2004,
cspec'lively‘

Zonditions
“he completion of the Asset Purchase Agreement is conditional upon, among others, the following events:

a

ZONE US obtaining all relevant approvals from governmental regulatory agencies and other regulatory
entities that may be required to conduct the WRLD Operations;

b)

-~

the Vendors securing the written consent of customers to be served by ZONE US under the Customer
Contracts representing not less than the Consent Threshold on or before 15 February 2006;

c

)

e

all consents to the assignment of the Carrier Contracts to ZONE US are obtained;

forg

if 50 tequired under the Listing Rules, the Shareholders pass an ordinary resolution at a general meeting
approving the acquisition by ZONE US of the Assets and the assumption of those liabilities as set forth in
the Asset Purchase Agreement, in form and substance satisfactory to the Company and the Stock Exchange;
and

(e) the XSI Letter of Credit shall have been released or agreed to be released.

If the condition (b) above is not satisfied on or before 15 February 2006 or the other conditions are not satisfted
on or before 17 March 2006, ZONE US may terminate the Asset Purchase Agreement by giving a written notice
to the Vendors, whereupon the rights and obligations of the parties thereto will lapse and be of no further effect.

Payment arrangements
The Consideration will be satisfied in cash in the following manner:

(a) on the Closing Date, payment will be made to the Vendors in an amount equal to the Consideration multiplied
by that percentage of Customer Centracts from whom written consents have been delivered by the Vendors
to ZONE US, which percentage shall be equal to or exceed the Consent Threshold, subject to any adjustments

for the difference in value of the current assets and liabilities (o be acquired and assumed by ZONE US;

and .

(b) the balance of the Consideration, less any adjustments for Terminated Customer Contracts, will be disbursed
to the Vendors on the Final Determination Date. :

Consideration adjustment mechanism
The Consideration shall be subject to adjustment if either of the following events occurs:

(a) the customers whose Customer Contracts representing not less than 5% of the average monthly revenue for
the 3-month period prior to the date of signing of the Asset Purchase Agreement refuse or unreasonably
fail to grant written consent to the assignment of their respective Customer Contracts prior to the Final
Determination Date, then the Consideration payable to the Vendors shall be reduced by a fraction, the
numerator of which will be the average monthly revenue of the Terminated Customer Contracts for the 3
month period prior to the execution date, and the denéminator of which will be the average monthly revenue
for all Customer Contracts of the Vendors for the 3-month period prmr 1o the signing date; and

(b) the current assets and current liabilities arising from the Customer Contracts and Carrier Contracts thal
will be acquired and assumed by ZONE US on the Closing Date will not be equal in value, then the
Consideration shall be adjusted by the difference between the amount of current liabilities to be assumec
by ZONE US and the amount of current assets to be acquired by ZONE US pursuant to the Asset Purchase
Agreement, which adjustment will be downward if the amount of current liabilities exceeds that of current
assets, and will be upward if the amount of current assets exceeds that of current liabilities.

Completion

Completion of the Asset Purchase Agreement shall take place on the Closing Date at the offices of the Vendors’
solicitors, during which the rights, title and interests of and in the Assets will be transterred, records, files anc
other data in relation thereto will be delivered to ZONE US and such portion of the Consideration as describec
in the above paragraph entitled “Payment arrangements™ will be paid to the Vendors.

Other Provisions

The Guarantor guarantees the performance by each Vendor of its obligations under the Assct Purchase Agreement
In addition, the Guarantor covenants that, within 5 years from the Closing Date, he shall not, among others
directly or indirectly engage in or otherwise hold any interest in a business activity relating to the long distance
telecommunication services industry in the United States, or solicit any customer in a Customer Contract t¢
cease or terminate its relationship with ZONE US.

FINANCING

The Acquisition will be primarily financed by a S-year term loan facility of US$6.0 miltion (equivalent ¢
approximately HK$46.8 miilion) from the Bank made avmlablc to ZONE US. Security for the term loan facility
shall be as follows:

(a) 'ZONE US Holding will guarantee to the Bank the performance by ZONE US of covenants and obligatiant
to the Bank;

(b) a first lien UCC filing will be made on all the busingss assets of ZONE US, inclusive of the Assets; and

(c) the existing shareholde}s’ loan due and owing from ZONE US to the Company will be subordinated Lo the
indebtedness outstanding from ZONE US to the Bank.

The balance of the Consideration payable to the Vendors will be funded by the internal resources of ZONE US
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INFORMATION ABOUT THE GRQUP

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding, The Group's major operating subsidiaries are in
‘he business of providing telecommunication services under the tradename “ZONE”. The Group’s ZONE
‘elecommunications business currently has operations in the United States, Hong Kong and Singapare.

[NFORMATION ABOUT THE VENDORS

The Vendors are a group of related companies, all controlled by the Guarantor ot his family members, carrying
on the business as, among others, a wholesale reseller of telecommanication services to the independent phone
sompany market in the United States under the tradename “WRLD Alliance”. The Vendors, in aggregate, purchase
wholesale long distance services from telecommunications companies such as MCI, Qwest, Global Crossing
and Sprint, among others. These services are then resold to phone companies, most of which are local exchange
sarriers, that re-brand the product to end-users. '

(n 2ddition to the above, the Vendors' product offerings and services also include calling card and branded
products such as WRLD VoIP and WRLD Connect Internet Accelerator. The Vendors offer back-office support
and marketing consulting services in the telecommunications sector as well,

REASONS FOR AND BENEFITS OF THE ACQUISITION

The Vendors have been providing long distance telecommunication services under the tradename “WRLD
Alliance” since 1997 to a customer base concentrated in the western United States, including independent locat
sxchange carriers and telephone companies across the States of Iowa, Michigan, Utah, Idaho, Ohio, Montana
ind others. ZONE US has been reselling telecommunications and related services to corporate and residential
sustomers primarily in the North Eastern States, Florida and California, and recently it has expanded its market
exritories into mid-West States such as North and South Dakota. While ZONE US is able to and will continue
0 provide telecommunication services to all the customers in the Customer Contracts under its “ZONE”
srandname, the Acquisition will therefore complement the existing business of ZONE US by broadening its
:evenue sources and customer base. In particular, the Acquisition is expected to help further develop the Group's
market position and distribution network in the United States. The Board believes that the Group’s operations
ind future development potential will benefit from the Acquisition.

3ased on the unaudited combined financial information actributable to the Assets,

‘a) net revenue for the ten months ended 31 October 2005 and years ended 31 December 2004 and 2003 were
US$21.6 million (equivalent to approximately HK$168.3 million), US$20.1 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$156.4 million) and US$17.8 million (equivalent to approximately HK$139.1 million),
respectively;

b} net profit, after adjustments for related party transactions among the group of companies controlled by the
Guarantor and members of his family and provision for income taxes, for the ten months ended 31 October
2005 and the years ended 31 December 2004 and 2003 amounted to US$2.2 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$16.9 million), US$2.5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$19.6 million) and
US$1.6 miilion (equivalent to approximately HK$12.5 million), respectively;

<

<

net profit, after adjustments for related party transactions aforesaid but before provision for income taxes,
for the ten months ended 31 October 2005 and the years ended 31 December 2004 and 2003 amounted to
US$2.2 million (equivalent to approximately HK$16.9 million), US$2.5 million (equivalent fo approximately
HK$19.7 million) and US$1.6 million (equivalent to approximately HK$12.6 million), respectively;

d

Customer Contracts, the Carrier Contracts or the Intellectual Property for any of which are not accounted,
amgunted to US$4.6 million (equivalent to approximately HK$35.6 million); and

O

A

the book value of the current liabilities arising from the Assets incurred to third parties in the ordinary

course of business in the conduct of the WRLD Operations by the Vendors as at 31 October 2005 amounted

to US$4.6 million (equivalent to approximately HK$35.6 million).
‘n light of the above, the Board (including the independent non-executive Directors) is of the view that the
erms of the Acquisition are fair and reasonable and in the interests of both the Company and the Shareholders,
IMPLICATIONS UNDER THE LISTING RULES

Ihe Acquisition constitutes a major transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and is
sonditional on approval by the Shareholders.

4 circular containing, among others, details of the Acquisition and a notice to convene the SGM for the purpose
>f considering and, if thought fit, approving the Acquisition will be despatched to the Shareholders as soon as
racticable.

SUSPENSION AND RESUMPTION OF TRADING IN THE SHARES )

Crading in the Shares was suspended at the request of the Company with effect from 9:30 a.m. on 17 January

1006 pending the issue of this announcement. Application has been made by the Company to the Stock Exchange
‘or the resumption of trading in the Shares from 9:30 a.m. on 19 January 2006,

JEFINITIONS

‘Acquisition” means the proposed transactions contemplated under the Asset Purchase
Agreement

‘Assets” means the customer and carrier contracts of and certain related assets held

by the Vendors to be acquired under the Asset Purchase Agreement

‘Asset Purchase Agreement” means the conditional asset purchase agreement dated 16 January 2006
entered into between ZONE US, the Vendors and the Guarantor relating to

the acquisition of the Assets, as further described in this announcement

‘Bank” means Philadelphia Private Bank (a division of The Bancorp Bank), a charter
member bank in the State of Delaware, the United States
‘Board” ‘means the board of Directors

‘Carrier Contracts” includes all agreements, application forms, term contracts, and other
contractual instraments forming part of or relating to'long distance
telecommunication carrier accounts of CUCL and SAM as at the Closing
Date, including all carrier records, files, data and similar items (other than
those portions expressly excluded in the Asset Purchase Agreement) and
all CUCL's and SAM'’s rights and remedies arising from or in connection
with any breaches, defaults or other violations of any of the foregoing

the book value of the Assets as at 31 October 2005, which book value does not reflect any value of the.

“Consent Threshold” means eighty per cent (80%) of the average manthly revenue generatec
from the Customer Contracts in aggregate during the three-month perioc
prior to the signing of the Asset Purchase Agreement

“Consideration” means the consideration payable to the Vendors pursuant to the Agse
Purchase Agreement

“CUC” . means Central Utah Communications, Inc., a Nevada corporation

“cucL” means Central Utah Communications Leasing, LC., a Utah limited liability

“Customer Contracts™

“Director(s)”

“Fina] Determination Date”

company

includes all agreements, application forms, term contracts, letters of agenc)
and other contractual instruments forming part of or relating to active o)
inactive long distance telecommunication customer accounts of CUC as o
the Closing Date, including all past and present customer lists, records
files, data, letters of agency, sub-CIC: arrangements, licences, consents
permits and other documents and items thereunder (other than those portion:

* expressly excluded in the Asset Purchase Agreement), and all CUC’s right:

and remedies arising from or in connection with any breaches, defaults o
other violations of any of the foregoing

means the director(s) of the Company

means the date to detecmine whether a Customer Contract is a Terminatec

Customer Contract which shail be made on the date that is 30 days after the
Closing Date

“Guarantor” means Mr. Dale H. Lewis, an individual, residing in the State of Utah, the
United States who, together with members of his family, controls the Vendors

“Group” means the Company and its subsidiaries '

“HK$” means Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency of Horng Kong

“Hoﬁg Kong” . means the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s

“Intellectual Property”

“Listing Rules”

“Terminated Customer Contracts”

“ucer
“Uss”

“VYendors™

“WRLD Operations”

“X8I Letter of Credit”

“ZONE US”

“ZONE US Holding”

“gh

Republic of China

includes patents and patent applications, trademarks, service marks, logos,
trade names and corporate names and registrations and applications for
registration thereof, copyrights, computer software, data and documentation.
customer and supplier lists and information, internet domain names anc
applications for domain names, all owned or used by any of the Vendors tc
the extent relating to or used or held for use in connection with the WRLE
Operations

means The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

“SAM" means Strategic Alliance Management, Inc., a Nevada corporation

“SGM” means the special general meeting of the Corapany to be held on Wednesday,
22 February 2006 at 11:00 a.m,, and any adjournment thereof

““Share(s)” means share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the issued and fully paid up share capital

of the Company

“Sharebolder(s)” means holder(s) of the Shares

“SPRING” means The Spring Trust, a trust established under the laws of the State of

. Utah, the United States .
“Stock Exchange” means The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

means a Customer Contract for which the Vendors have not obtained &
customer consent and either (a) such customer has refused to provide suck
customer consent consistent with its contracts with the Veadors; ot (b,
ZONE US or the Vendors has determined that such Customer Contrac!
should be terminated due to the customer’s breach of the assigﬂmenl
provisions therein and such customer fails or refuses to accept service from

ZONE US
means Uniform Commercial Code of the United States

means United States dollar(s), the lawful currency of the United States,

- and the exchange rate for the purpose of this announcement is US$! =

HK$7.8 - -

means collectively CUC, CUCL, SAM and SPRING and 2 “Vendor” means
any of them

means the operations and business of reselling long distance
telecommunication services in the United States presently carried on by
the Vendors under the tradename “WRLD Alliance”

means the letter of credit in the approximate sum of US$600,000 issued by
UBS Financial Services, Inc. at the request of CUC in favour of Xtension
Services, Inc. (an independent third party not connected with any of the
Vendors, their beneficial owners, the Company or any of its subsidiaries]
and all those accounts and deposits pledged with UBS Financial Services,
Inc. as security for issuing the aforesaid letter of credit

" means Zone Telecom, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,

whose business is the provision of telecommunication and related services
in the United States under the tradename “ZONE"

means Zone USA, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
the immediate holding company of ZONE US, whose sole business is the
holding of ZONE US

means per cent
By Order of the Board

Lau Wai Ming Raymond
Company Secretary

‘Closing Date”

‘Company”

means the later of (a) the 5th business day following the satisfaction of the
first 3 conditions described in the paragraph entitled “Conditions” and (b)
the day on which all of the conditions are satisfied -

means e-Kong Group Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda with
limited liability, the Shaces of which are listed on the Stock Exchange

Hong Kong, 18 Ianuary’ 2006

As at the date of this announcement, the Board of the Company comprises Executive Directors Mr. Richara
John Siemens, Mr. Kuldeep Saran and Mr. Lim Shyang Guey; Non-executive Director Mr. William Bruce Hicks
and Independent Non-executive Directors Mr. Shane Frederick Wein, Mr. John William Crawford and Mr. Gerala

__Clive Dobby. -
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The Stock Exch;‘arlzgé‘ of Hong Kong Li}nited_ takes no responsibility for the contents
of this anriouncement, makes no representation as to its accuracy o}‘coﬁ;pleteness
and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoéver arising
'from orin reltance upon the whole or any part of the contenzs of this announcement,

"~ eKBENG
e- Kong Group Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited lxablhty)
. www.e-kong.com
. (Stock Code : 524) z
DELAY IN DESPATCH OF MAJOR TRANSACTION CIRCULAR
IN RELATION TO THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION OF
TELECOMMUNICATION SERVICES- ASS_ETSA "‘

The Company has apphed to the Stock Exchange for an extension of the deadline
" for despatch of the Circular from 9 February 2006 to 16 February 2006, —

Reference is made to-the announcement of - -Kong Group Lxmxtcd (the “Company")_ ’
dated 18 January 2006 (the “Announcement”) in relation to the proposed acquisition
of telecommunication serv1ccs assets. Capitalised terms used in this announcement

_ shall have the same meamngs as defined in the Announcement, unless the context
herem requxres othcrwnse ’

Pursuant to Rule 14, 38 of the Lxstmg Rules, the Company is requu‘ed to despatch a

" Giteular in felation to the proposed acquisition of teleCommunication services assets
(the “Circular”) to the Shareholders within 21 days after pubhcanon of .the
Announcement which is on or before 9 February 2006

" As additional time is required to finalise the pro forma financial information of the
~Group after taking into account the acquisition of the Assets for-inclusion in the
Circular, the Company has applied to the Stock Exchange for an extension of the

* deadline for despatch of the Circular to 16 Febrirary 2006.

* By Order of the Board
- ' Lau Wai Ming Raymond
- T . ) _ Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 9 February 2006

As at the date of this announcement, the Board of the Company comprises Executive ~
Directors Mr. Richard John Siemens, Mr. Kuldeep Saran and Mr. Lim Shyang Guey;
Non-executive Director Mr. William Bruce Hicks and Independent Non-executive
Directors Mr. Shane Frederick Weir, Mr. John Wzllxam Crawford and Mr, Gerald o
Clive Dobby.
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Thursaay, February 16, 2006 ﬂrestandard

e-Kong Group lelted

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited Ixabzlu‘v)
B . - www. e-kong.com= )
(Stock Code : 524). -

NOTICE OF SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

. NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT a special general meeting of e-Kong Group Limited (lhe “Company”) will
be held at Room 4101, 4 Ist Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong on Friday, 3
March 2006 at 11:00 a.m. for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, passing the followmg resolutiof, with
or wnthout amendments, as an ordinary resolution of the Company:

- ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“THAT the acquisition of the-assets and assumpnon of the liabilities by Zone Telecom, Inc. (“ZONE US") a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, pursuant to'the conditional asset purchase agreement dated 16 January
2006 and entered into between ZONE US,. Central Utah Communications, Inc., Central Utah Communications
""Leasing, LC., Strategic Alliance Management; Inc., The Spring Trust and Mr. Dale H. Lewis (“the Asset Purchase
Agreement”, a copy of which has been produced to the meeting and marked “A” and initialled by the Chairman of
the meeting for the purpose of identification) and the transactions contemplated thereunder, be and are hereby
- . approved, confirmed and ratified and the directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to do all things and
acts and sign all documents which they consider necessary, desuable or expedient in connecnon with the transactlons
_ contemplated under the Asset Purchase Agreemem .

By Order of the Board

_ Lau Wai Ming, Raymond
‘ Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 16 February 2006 . o .

Registered Office: - . - - . Principal Office:

Clarendon House - - .- S ' . 3705 Gloucester Tower

2 Church Street . The Landmark .~

"Hamilton HM 11 - s 11 Pedder Street S

Bermuda I ~°  Central .-
L ’ - Hong Kong :

Notes: '

N A member entitled to ancnd and vote at the meeting convened by the above notice (or at any adjournmem therecf) is enmled to
appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf at the meeting. A proxy needs not be a member of the Company.

2. To be valid, a form of proxy, together with the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed, ofa
notarially certified copy of such power of attorney or authority, must be deposited at the Company’s Branch Share Registrar in
Hong Kong, Secretaries Limited at Level 25, Three Pacific. Place, 1 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong, not’ Iess than 48 hours
before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

3. -Completion and delivery of the form of proxy shalt not preclude any member from attending and vonng in person at the
meeting convened, if the member so desires and in such event, the form of proxy shall be deemed to be revoked.

4. In case of joint registered holders of any shares, any one of such persons may vote at the meeting, either personally or by proxy,
in respect of such shares as if he/she was solely entitled thereto, but if more than one of such joint holders shall be present at the
meeting persona]ly or by proxy, that one of such holders so present whose name stands first in the reg:stcr of members of the
Company in respect of such shares shall alone be entitled to votein respect thereof,

-5, Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, a resolution put to the vote of a general mcenng shall be decided on a show of hands
unless (before or on the declaration of the resulit of the show of hands-or on the withdrawal of any other demand for apollya -
poll is demanded by (a) the chairman of such meeting; or (b) at least three Shareholders present in person or (being a ‘corporation)
by its duly authorised representative or-by proxy for the time being entitled to vote at the meeting; or (¢) Shareholder(s) present
in person or (being a corporation) by its duly authorised representative or by proxy and representing not less than one-tenth of
the total voting rights of all Shareholders having the right to vote at the meeting; or (d) Shareholder(s) present in person or
(being a corporation) by its duly authorised representative or by proxy and holding Shares on which an aggregate sum has been
" paid up equal to not less than one-tenth of the total sum paid up on all Shares.

Asat the date of this announcement, the Board of the Company comprises Execurwe Directors MF Richard Jokn
Siemens, Mr. Kuldeep Saran and Mr. Lim Shyang Guey; Non-executive Director Mr. William Bruce Hicks and -
Independent Nop-executive Directors Mr. Shane Frederzck Weir, Mr. John Wzllxam Crawford and Mr. Gerald Clive
Dabbv ; :
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e-Kong Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liabifity}
www.e-kong.com

(Stock Code: 524)

v . FINAL RESULTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

The accounting policies used in the financiul are with those used in the preparation
of the Group's sanual financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2004 except as described below.

RESULTS

The board of.directors (the “Board") of'e-Kong Group Limited (the “"Company"”) is pleased to announce the audited

consalidated financial results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group™ for the year ended 31 In the current year, the Group has applied, for che finit time, 2 aumber of new and cevised HKFRSs that ace e(fective for aceounting

December 2005, together with comparative figures for 2004, as follows:

Condensed Consolidated Income Statement

f
Year ended 31 December

periods beginning on or after | January 2005, The adoption of these new HKFRSs hus resuited in changes (o the Gmup s accounting
policies that have an effect on how the results for the current or prios accounting periods are prepured and presented as set oul
below,

Related Party Disctosures

2005 . 2004 Under HKAS 24 “Reluted Party Disclosurss”, the definition of reluted parties has been expunded vad, therefore, affects the Group's
Notes " HK$000 HK$ 000 related party disclosures.
i Financial Instruments
Turnover 2 422,590 402,654 . “ . . . ot
Cost of sales (267,649) (254.821) In the current year, the Group has applied HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation” and HKAS 39 “Financial
! 2 ition und Measurement™.
Gross profit ; 154,941 147,833 Prior to 1 January 2003, the Group classificd and measured its debt and equity securities in accordance with Lhe benchmark treatment
presented in Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 24 (“SSAP 24"). Under SSAP 24, investments in debt or equity securitles
Interest income ‘589 339 were glassified us “investment securities” or “other invesiments” as appropriate. Invesimens securities were carried af cost less
Other income 6 8,313 1,519 impairment losses, if any, while other investments were measured at fair values, with realised/unreniised gains or losses included in
- . the income statemenl. From | Junuary 2005 onwards, the Group has ¢lassified and measured |(s debt and cquny securities m
163,843 149,691 accordance with HKAS 39. In so doing, the Group has re-classified its “i securities” as “availeble-f
. The change in accountin pohcy has no significant e!f:cl on the previously reported results and financiul position of the Gmu
B! B P
Distribution costs (22,279) @5.117) HKAS 32 has beea p ly applied and figures have been restated accordingly.
s ,
Businsss promotion and marketing expenses (3,068) (6,029) Share-bused Paynient - .
Cperating and administrative expenses (86,693) (95,007) FRS 2 “Share-based Puyment” requires an expense to be recognised where the Croup buys goods or obtains services in exchange
v 8 8
Other operating expenses (13,237) (85,932) for shares of rights over shares (“equity-settied transactions™), or in exchange for ather ussets equivatent in value (o given numbers
of shares or rights over shares (“cash-settled transuctions”), The principal impact of FRS 2 on the Group i in relution to the
Profit/(Loss) from operations 6 38,566 (32,394) expensing of the fair value of directors’ und employees® share options of the Company, determined at the date of grant of the share
options over the relevant vesting periods, to the income statement. Prior to the application of FRS 2, the Group did nat recognise
Finance costs (34) (38) the finunciul effect of share optiors until they were excrcised, Prom | January 2005 onwards, the Group has upplied FRS 2 o share
Restructuring costs — (100,544) options granted on or after 7 November 2002 and not yet vested on | January 2005. In relution 10 share options granted before 7
— 2002, the Group has not applied FRS 2 in accordance with the relevant transitional provisions. As at | Junuary and 31
Profit/(Loss) before taxation 38,532 (132,976) December 2005, alt share options of the Company had been granted before 7 November 2002 and, therefore, tre not subject o the
requirements of FRS 2,
Taxation credit 3 8,544 1,369 Turnover and seginental information
Net profit/(lass) for the year 47.076 (15“ 507) Analyses of the Group’s turnaver and sesults by business and geographical scgments during the year are as set out below.
s »
(a) by business segments:
Altribqtnble to: , . Year ended 31 December
Equity holders of the Company 47,076 {131,607) 2005 N 2004
HES HKS Telecom- . Telecom-
munication municaion
Earnings/(Loss) per share ¢ services Other  Consolidated services Other  Cansatidaced
Basic 0.10 (0.28) HK§'000 HES'000 HES$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKE'000
Turnaver
Diluted N/A N/A Extemal sales 414072 8,518 422,590 402155 499 402,654
HK$000 HKS$'000 Results : :
Profiy(Loss) fram operations 42,503 244 42,747 (19,039) Q@m (19,310)
EBITDA 5 45,189 11,827 Restructuring costs — — — (100,544) — (100,344)
. 42.501 244 w747 (119,583) [exd] 119,854
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet e — =) ¢ !
Finance cosis 34) 38
As at 31 December Other opernting income .
2005 2004 and expenses (4,181) (13,084}
Notes HK$000 HK$'000 - —_—
Profit/(Loss) before taxation - 38,532 (132,976)
Non-current assets Taxation eredit . 8,544 1,369
Pro?crty. plant and‘ equipment 12,144 7916 Net profit(loss] for the year 4,076 (174,507)
Available-for-sale investments . - 1,894 . m— = ]
Deferred tax assets 10,881 2,369 (b) by geographical segments: .
23,025 12,179 . Year ended 31 December
. . 2 . 2003 2004
Current assets North Asia Nomh  Asia
Trade and other receivables 7 67,140 45,569 America Pacific Consolidated -America Pugific  Consolidared
Pledged deposits 2,476 2817 HK$"000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS' 000 HK§'000 1K$'000 !
Bank balances and cash 58,742 44,377 Turnover .
External sajes 308,702 113,888 422,590 273,678 128,976 402,654
118,358 92,763 e
PRPIRTON Results
Current liabilities - Profit/{Less) from operations 1,720 31,07 2,047 (5,782) 6472, (19.310)
Trade and other payables 8 59,502 60,326 Restructuring costs - — - (100,544) - (100,544}
t i igati 191 184
Current portion of ebligations under finance leases 9 21720 107 2,947 (126326) 6an2 (115,858
59,693 50,510 Pinance costs (34) (38)
Net current assets A 68,665 32,253 Other operating income -
annd expenses (4,181) 3.084)
Tatal assets less current liabilities 51,690 44,432 Profit/(Loss) before texation 38,532 132.976)
Naon-enrrent labilities Taxation credit _8Su . _ Lasy
Obligasions under finance leases 618 809 Nex profiy/(foss) for the year 47,076 (131,607}
B P! ¥ —i0 im0
NET ASSETS 91,072 43,623 Taxatlon credit X
. Hong Kong Profits Tax and overseas taxation have nol been provided for as (he Group's estimated assessable profits for the year ace
Capital an_d reserves wholly absorbed by uvailuble tax losses carried forward from previous years (2004: Nil).
Issued capital 4,709 4,709 . . ) . . y
Reserves 86,363 38914 The amount of taxation credited to the cansolidated income statement represents:
Year ended 31 December
TOTAL EQUITY 91,072 43,623 2005
HK5'000 HK$'000
Nates: . Defered taxation relating to the origination of temporary differences 8,544 1,369
L Basis of preparation and accounting policies Earnings/(Loss) per share
. The i financial are prepared in with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

(“HKFRSs") which,

y, includes alt i individ

| Hong Kong Financizl Reporling Slandards (“FRSs"), Hong

Keng Accounting Standards (“HKASs™) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA"), accounting principles generaily accepted in Hong Kong and applicable requirements under the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stack Exchungs of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules™). They have been prepured on the historical
cost basis except for certain finznciul instruments, which ure meusured al fair values.

The calculation of basic caraings per share for the year ended 3§ December 2005 was based on the consoliduted profit astributable
to equity holders of the Company of HK$47,076,000 (2004; loss of HKS131,607,000) ¢nd on the 470,894,200 (2004: 470,894,200)
shares in issue during the year.

The diluted exrnings/(loss) per share for the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004 have not been presented as the exercise
prices of the share options were higher than the average murket price,
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5. EBITDA

EBITDA represents carnings before interest expenses, laxation,
losses an property, plant and equipment.

6. Profit/{Loss) from operations
This was arrived at after crediting/(charging):

_Year ended 31 December

2005 004
HK$'000 HK§ 000
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of an avaifable-for-sale investment included in
other income/other operating expcns:; 5,200 232
Tmpai loss on an available-fc (1,894) —
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

(4,756) (48,925)

preciati isation and impail 2and disposal gains/

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to stay focused on increasing organic revenue growth, improving efficiencies
and maintaining profitability for the coming year. While growth is expected from the existing core businesses and
through the introduction of other new products and services, the Group will also pursue additional potential acquisition
targets, both in the United States and Asia, whxch can make material conmbunons to the Group’s turnover and
profitability, and increase shoreholder value:

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Resuits

During the year under review, the Group continued to record increases in revenue growth, The consolidated turnover
increased by 5.0% to HK$422.6 million compared to HK$402.7 million for the prior year.

Turnover from ZONE US increased by 12.8% from HK$273.7 million in 2004 to HK$308.7 miilion in 2005 which
d for 73.1% of total Group turnover in 2005 compared to 68.0% for the previous year.

7. Trade and other receivables

As 3t 31 December.

2005 ’ 2004

HKS$'000 HKS' 000

Trade recelvables 54,364 39,524

Other receivobles - .
Deposits, prepayments and other dedtors 12,776 | 6,045

67,140 45,569

The Group’s credit terms on sales mainly range from 30 days o 90 days. Inciuded in trade and oiher feceivables are rade deblors
{net of pwvmon for bad and doubiful debis) with the following dgeing analysis:

As at 31 December

2005 2004

HK3'000 HK$'000

Current 46,109 33,069
1 to 3 months 8,020 6,103
More than 3 months but fess than 12 months 235 352
54,364 39,524

8 Trade and other payables
As at 31 December

2005 2004
N HKS$'000 HK$'000
;
Trade payabies 25,930 26,955
Other payables ’
Accrued charges and other creditors 33,572 33371
59,502 60,326

Included in trade and other payables are \rade creditors with the following ageing analysis:

As ot 31 December

2005 - 2004

HKS'000 HK$'000

Current 16,756 19.500
1 to 3 monihs 9,011 ‘3,582 .

More than 3 months but Jess than 12 months 163 3473

25,930 26,955

9. Comparative figures
‘ . Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation,
FINAL DIVIDEND l
The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividends for the year ended 31.December 2005 (2004:Nil).
BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group returned to profitability by recording a net profit of HK$47.1 miltion. The

ZONE Asia, comprising the Group’s telecommunications business in Hong Kong and Singapore, collectively recorded
an 18.0% decrease in turnover from HK$128.5 million for the previous year to HK$105.4 million for 2005 but managed
to achieve an operating profit for the-year of HK$20.8 millien.

The Group’s gross profit increascd by 4.8% from HK$147.8 million in 2004 to HK$154.9 million in 2005.

EBITDA for the Group recorded a substantial increase of 282.1% to HK$45.2 million for 2005 compared to HK$11.8
million for 2004,

"The operating profit for the year was HK$38.6 miltion compared to a loss of HK$32.4 million for the previous year.

The consolidated net profit attributable to shareholders was HK$47.1 million compared to a net loss of HK$131.6
million for 2004.

Assets

As at 31 December 2005, the net assets of the Group amounted to VHK$9_J .1 million (2004: HK$43.6 million).
Liguidity and Financing ’
The Group relied on jis intemal resources to fund operations during the year.

Cash and bank balances (excluding pledged deposits) were HK$58.7 million as at 31 December 2005 (2004: HK$44.4
million). The Group had pledged deposits amounting to HK$2.5 million as at 31 December 2005 (2004: HK$2.8
million) and had no bank borrowings during the year.

As at 31 December 2005, the Group’s liabilities under equipment lease financing further decreased to HK$0.8 million
(2004: HK$1.0 million).

The Group’s gearing ratio, measured on the basis of total bosrowings as a p:rcemage of net ass:xs was 0.9% (2004
2.3%).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Since most of the Group’s assets and liabilities, revenue and payments are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
United States doilars, the Group considers that there is no significant exposare to foreign exch fi i as long
as the Hong Kong-United States dollar exchange rate remains pegged. As the cash contribution from the Singapore
operations continues to grow, the Group will closely monitor the Singapore-United States dollar exchange rate and,
whenever appropriate, will take any necessary action to reduce such exchange risks:

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
As at 31 December 2005, there were no material contingent liabilities and commitmeénts.
EMPLOYEE REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2005, the Group had 136 employees (2004: 144 employees) in Hong Kong and overseas. The
Group’s total staff costs amounted to HK$64.9 million (2004: HK$72.5 million). Pursuant to the share option schemes
adopted by the Company, share options may be granted to, among others, eligible employees of the Group to subscribe
for shares in the Company under the terras and conditions supuluted therein. Altogether, 147,500 share options remain
outstanding as at 31 December 2005.

The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on the basis of the performance and experience of individual employees
and are in line with local market practices where the Group operates. The Group has established incentive bonus

Group continues to strive for steady revenue growth while consistently improving operational eft Its. ZONE
telecommunications companies (“ZONE") in the United States and in Asia further expanded their existing businesses
with the introduction of new products and services and enlarging their geographical reach beyond historic territories,

ZONE's operations in the United States ("ZONE US™) recorded its first annual operating profit. Net profit from operations
for 2005 was HK$21.7 million compared to a net loss from operations of HK$25.8 million in 2004. As a profitable
compeny with a stirong balance sheet, ZONE US has established a solid financial foundation for future revenue growth
and market expansion. In the coming year, ZONE US is expected to maintain its profitability while focusing on revenue
growth in three key segments, namely, consumer, corporate and wholesale.

ZONE US will continue to promote jts consumer Voice over Internet Pratocol (*VoIP”) products and services through
channel partners and resellers. As for the corporate martket, ZONE US's experienced sales teams, located in major US
cities, are expected to increase market share in this sector. The recent ZONE US’s acquisition of certain
telecommunication services assets as approved by the Company’s sharcholders on 3 March 2006 (the “Acquisition™)
will not only secure the Acqui vendors’ but will also bring the necessary expertise and resources
required to further expand into the wholésale market targeung independent local exchange carriers (ILECs) throughout
the United States,

At the end of 2005. ZONE Hong Kong and ZONE Singapore (collectively. “ZONE Asia”) extended their presence
‘beyond their respective territories by acquiring certain f-the-art VolP-related technology that is being p
by a technology partner of ZONE Hong Kong based in Sh China, The togy platform is currently used by
ZONE Hong Kong for its VoIP services and is also used by a number of channels and resellers in different parts of
China for VolP-related services. This R&D team is currently developing a number of YolP products, including peer-to-
peer (P2P) “softphone” which ZONE Hong Kong plans to launch in the second half of 2006.

‘While the international direct dialling (*1DD”) business, déspilc ongoing competitive pressure from incumbent telecom
operators, generates revenue and profitability at our saticipated levels, and remains the key revenue driver for ZONE
Hong Kong, the Group foresees larger revenue contributions in the coming years from the various newly introduced
services, including VolP-related products and services., With VoIP technology, ZONE Hong Kong is able to capitalise
on competitive IDD rates and provide IDD services to both wholesale and retail customers outside Hong Kong.

In January 2006, Hong Kong's Office of the Telecommunications Authority (“OFTA") announced the introduction of
a Services-Based-Operator (“SBO"Y Licence to regulate’the provision of VoIP services in the city. This is seen as a
positive step towards defining the regulatory framewerk governing Hong Kong service providers for the provision of
VolP services. ZONE Hong Kong submitted its application for an SBO Licence and is expected to be awarded this
licence in the near future. ZONE Hong Kong plans to be ready to launch its VoIP services on a commercial basis once
the licence is awarded and negotiations with the preferred Fixed Telecommunications Network Services (FTNS) provider,
relating to hosting and inter ion charges, are pleted.

ZONE Singapore recarded anothier year of steady revenue growth and an increase in net profit during 2005, Concerted
sales and marketing efforts helped to raise revenues and at the same time better cost management and effective
negotiations with carriers have resulted in improved margias. While it remains focused on serving the corporate segment
of the market, ZONE Singapore has also introduced several innovative marketing promotions including “No Talk, No
Pay” targeting the consumer market, and new service offerings such as “GlobalDial” that have attracted customers
from neighbeuring countries around Singapore. ZONE Singapore has built strong brand awareness and acceptance in
the Singaporean ity as a pany that not only provides quality and value but also takes pride in its ability to
provide products and services tailored to each customer’s specific needs. -

chemes to motivate and reward employees at all levels (0 achieve the Group's objectives. In addition to salary and
bonus payments, the Group also offers other fringe benefits, including provident fund and medical benefits, to its
employees. N

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance. No director of the Compeny is
aware of any information which would reasonably indicate that the Company is not, or was not, al any time during the
year ended 31 December 2003, acting in compliance with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code™) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own securities code. All directors have confirmed, following
specific enquiries by the Company, that they have fully complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
throughout the yzar ended 31 December 2005,

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Comemittee has reviewed with management and the auditors of the Company the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Croup and dlscussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters, including a
review of the audited lidated of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2005.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed an’y of the Company's
listed securities.

PUBLICATION OF FURTHER INFORMATION

The 2005 annual report of the Company containing all information required by Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules will
be published on both the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Company in due course.

APPRECIATION
The Board would like 1o thank the customers, sharcholders, business associates and professional advisers for their ~

support and extend its appreciation to all employees for their hard work, dedication and ¢commitment to the Group.

By Order of the Board
Richard John Siemens
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2006

As at the date of this announcement, the Board of the Company comprises Executive Directors Richard John Siemens,
Kuldeep Saran and Lim Shyang Guey; Non-executive Director William Bruce Hicks and Independent Non-executive
Directors Shane Frederick Wetr, John William Crawford and Gerald Clive Dobby,
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e-Kong Group Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
www.e-kong.com
(Stock Code : 524)

ANNOUNCEMENT

This announcement is made at the request of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange™).

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company has noted today’s increase in
the trading volume of the shares of the Company and wishes to state that the Board
is not aware of any reasoas for such increase, except for the final results of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December-2005 announced on
24 March 2006 and the shares transactions made by (i) Mr. Richard John Siemens,
the Chairman of the Company, who through companies controlled by him purchdsed
4,368,573 shares of the Company on the market on 29 March 2006 at HK$0.56 per
share, (ii) Mr. Kuldeep Saran, the Deputy Chairman of the Company, who through
a company controlled by him purchased 4,227,719 shares of the Company on the
market on 29 March 2006 at HK$0.56 per share and (iit) Mr. William Bruce Hicks,
a non-executive director of the Company, who in his personal capacity purchased
500,000 shares of the Company on the market on 29 March 2006 at HK$0.59 per
share. .

Save as disclosed above, the Board confirms that there are no negotjation's or
agreements relating to intended acquisitions or realisations which are discloseable
under rule 13.23 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules™), neither is-the'Board aware of any matter discloseable
under the general obligation imposed by rule 13.09 of the L1stmg Rules, which i is or
may be of a price- sensitive nature. -

Made by the order of the Board, the dlrectors of whxch mdmdually and Jom[ly
. accept rcsponmbll;ty for the accuracy of this announcement.

By Order of-the Board
Lau Wai Ming Raymond
Company Secretary .
Hong Kong, 29 March 2006

As at the date of this announcement, the Board of the Company comprises Executive

Directors Richard John Siemens, Kuldeep Saran and Lim Shyang Guey; Non-'
executive Director William Bruce Hicks and Independent Non-executive Directors

Shane Frederick Weir, John William Crawford and Gerald Clive Dobby.
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E-KONG GROUP<00524> - Unusual price & volume movements

The Stock Exchange has received a message from e-Kong Group Limited
which is reproduced as follows:-

"This statement 1s made at the request of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The board of directors (the "Board") of the Company has noted today's
increases in the price and trading volume of the shares of the Company and
wishes to state that the Board is not aware of any reasons for such
increases, save for the final results of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2005 announced on 24 March 2006.

The Board also confirms that there are no negotiations or agreements
relating to intended acquisitions or realisations which are discloseable
under rule 13.23, neither is the Board aware of any matter discloseable
under the general obligation imposed by rule 13.09, which is or may be of
a price-sensitive nature.

Made by the order of the Board of the Company, the directors of which
individually and jointly accept responsibility for the accuracy of this
statement.

By Order of the Board

Lau Wai Ming Raymond
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 30 March 2006

As at the date of this statement, the Board of the Company comprises
Executive Directors Richard John Siemens, Kuldeep Saran and Lim Shyang
Guey; Non-executive Director William Bruce Hicks and Independent Non-
executive Directors Shane Frederick Weir, John William Crawford and Gerald
Clive Dobby."
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e Kong Group lelted
{indarorared-in Bermida with limited l:ab/hx) ) . .

o wivwe-kong.com ., ' . A .
cT e (Su)ck Code 524) [ . R :

’NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING - -

;
H
i

¥

NOTICE 18 HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Annual Gcncral Meenne

of e-Kong Group Limited (the “Company”) will be held.at The China

Cliib, 13/F., The Old.Barik of China Building, Bank Stfeet; Céntral,
“:Hong Kong oit chnesdny, 10 May 2006 n( 10 00: m, for :hc fcllawmg
purposcs*

Compnny on Thc Slock Exchungc of Hong Kong .

Limited {the “Stock Exchange”), or on any other stock-

exchange on which the shares:of the Company may
":be listed apd which'is rceogmsed by the Securities
* and Futures Commission and the Stock Exchangc for
this purpose (“Recognised Stock Exchange™), subject |
io and in aceordance. with alk applicable laws and the
requirements.of the Rules Governing the-Listing of
Securities 'on the Stock Exchange and, if applicable, «
any other Recognised Stock Exchange, as amended |
from time, 1o time, be and is hereby. gencrally aod
uncand:uonally npproved .

As' Ordih'zry Business '

ear énded 31 Dcc:mhar 2005 nnd thc repor(s of
“thé, xudnors (hcreon

thé aggregate nominal amount of shares. of the:
Company to be repurchased by the Company pursuant *
10 paragraph (o) of this Resolution'diiring the Relevant - ¢
Period shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal
amount of. the share caplml of the Compnny in.issue
. as at the, date of passing this Resdlition and the said

approval” shal] be lnmu:d accordmgly. and . -

1% app int auditors nnd 3 aulhonsz lhc board of dn-:clors to ﬁx .
T their remunemucn .

- pass lh: followmg ncsolulions,
wnh or wuhoul nn\cndmcms as ordmary nesuluuons
lhc pnrpcse ‘of this Rcsaluuon

Rel:vam Period™ means the, penod from the pa

ectito f thi
” (a) sub pnmgrnph @o s R:solunon the sxercise . of this Resulunon unm the eartiest of:

* by the directors of the Compnny during the Relevant
- Period (us hereinalter d:ﬁned) of all the powers of *
the Company to allot, issue or otherwise deal with
- additjonal shares of HK$0.01 each in the capital of . ‘
lh: Company, or sécurities convertible into shares, of 5 -
" options, warrants or similar tights to subscribe for eny

‘the conciusibn.of ‘the: next’ nnnuul g:ncrnl
meelmg of the Company; .-,

the :xp:rnnon of the period-within which the
next annual generai meeting of the Company is

(i)

_shares, and 0, make of grant-offers, agreements or s .. - .required by the Bye-laws of the Compnny orany

opnuns which would or nught require. the exercise of o . npphcnble law (o be'held; and

such powers, subject to and in accordance with all . I R .
. appllgﬂblc Tows: Jbe and s hereby genernlly and, : b . (i) the date on which the authon[y given under this

Resolution is revoked or varied by an ordinary * 7
- : o s .rcsolulxon of the sharcholders of the Cempany :
the approvalin paragraph {a) ol't]us Resolu ion shull R s in general mecting™ W K
;‘:ﬁe;‘r’s‘e;::o%‘:ic::ﬁ::rl::ﬁ:’g}?;zya‘;‘g:gc:: Leh “THAT condifional upon Resolutions 4A. and 4B above .
o1 options which would or might require the exercise . bemg passed the.general mandate granted to directors,of |
.of such puw:rs after the end of the Relevant Penod ©e. . .. the Company for the timc being in force to exercise the

. uncondllmnally approved; .

by

. - powers of the Compnny 1o allot, issue-and. deal ‘with
lhe aggregate nominal nmoumof_share cap;ml nlloued . “'_ additional. shares of the Company pursuant to Resolution” ¥
: or agreed conditionally or unconditionally-10'be ' . ; “4A be and is hereby extended by the addition to thé

. :+ allotted {whether. pursuant to an option or otherwise) : aggregate nominal amount of share capital of the Company
and issued by the directoré of the Company pursuant '+ ».. which may be allorted, issued,-and dealt with or agreed
to the approval-in pamgmph (a) of this Resolution, I ~ * conditionally or unconditionally 1o be sllotied, issued and

emcrwue lhan pursunnl to issue of sharcs 25 3 result dealt with by the directors of the Cempauy pursuznt to such

gencral mandate of an amount fepresenting the aggregate
. nominal amount of the shares repurchased by the Company * =

-under the authority grantéd. pursyant to Rescluuon 4B,
any serip dividénd o similas nrrangamenl ' , provxdcd thatsuch cxtended amount shali not exceed.10%
_providing lor the alotment of shares, in lieu of %+ | of the aggregate nominal amcum of the share capital of the’ :
the whole or part of a dividend on shares of the . . -Company'in issue as at the dnt: of pnssml7 this Rcsoluuon N
Compnny. pursuant to the Bye- laws of the
Company from: uma to fime; or .

a nghls lssuc (as h:remnﬂer dcﬂncd)

Ta consider and,’ 1rthougml‘l pnss the fcllowmg rcso)uuon wuh 4'
+ or without as a special resolution? - B

“THAT the exnsnng Bye-law’ 86(4) of the Company be and i |s B
hereby amended by deicting Lhe word “special” appearing in'the
third line of Bye-law 86(4) of the: Company and subsmuung -
: lhcrewuh the word ‘ordinary”. .

the éxercise of nny opnon g anied under any
.- share option scheme or similar arrangement for |
the time being adopted and approved by, the .
shareholders of the Company for the grant or”
.issue to directors orempioyees or “eligible
P . participants.of the' Company ajid/or. any of its
subsidiaries oFsharcs or'rights to acqulrc shares o
. in the Company; or * .

TN ' "By.Order of rhc Board H
- “Lau Wai Ming, Raymond
Cmnpany Secremry

(iv) the exercise bf subscription rights-of convérsion ; “Hong K“"g' 1l AP"I 2006 ?
cL 0 righe ‘attaching to any warrants.or-any olhcr " Nétes: .
ecurities converub]e into shnrcs whlch may be

AT n»emb.-,r ennllcd o ull:nd arid yotéhat the. ieeting canvznld hy lhe ubova
‘wotice (or.at any-sdjourpment thereof) is eniitled to appoint 2 proxy 1o atiend
: shnl] ot exc:cd 20% of lhn nggregme nomma] amouiit L+ - and vole on his/her behalf ol the meeling. A proxy need flotbe o mcmbcl of
! of the share capital of the Company in issue as at the . "_ “the CO”‘P‘"Y . .

datc of passing this Resolution and the s ‘d npprovnl
shall bc hmncd acwrdmgly and .

o be-valid; 3 Form of.proxy,« together with he pow af atiorngy‘or Sther

uiharity, if any, under which it is signed, of a-notariully cer(ifed copy of

such power of atlorney or.duhority,-must be deposited nr the Company’s

Branch Share Regiri in Hong Kong, Secrearies Limited ot Lével 23, Three -
s Roud East, Hm!g Kong, ot i

Aat bcfox: the time nppouu:d I di

Completion and delivery of the form of proxy shall not preciude any member *
. from mtending and voting in person.ut the meeling convened,” |F(htm=mb<r
S50 deum a0d in such event, che S of proxy shall be decmed 1056 revoke.

" next annual general mccl.mg Gf thé Company [
rcqunr;:d by u\c By:-laws of thie Company or uny
applxcablc law t0_bé held; and

In case o!Jmm regisiered hildéneof any shares; any one of duch,persons,
niny vo1g at ihe imeecing, either pefsanally or by proxy, in respectof such
hires as if he/she was solely ntitied therero, but if more than ond of such
jointholders.shall be present at the meeting personully of by, proxy, hat
", (iii) | the date on whith e aurhonly iven hder lh4s -+ one Of such helders so present whose name stunds first in the reglster of *

- Resolution-is revoked or varied by an ordinary * *  members of the Comp.my in-respect of such :nm\ \nall alonc be:nnl!:d ©
resolution of the Shareholdérs of the Compwny voiein respec thereof. . . -
in general mccung

Pumum to.ihe Bye-laws esnlunnn pu: t5 the vote ol
general meeting shalf be’ dicides on 4 show of hinds upless (before or on
+ Ihe declaration of the resust of the show of hunids ar on the withdrawai of .
any owherdemand for o poll) a pall is demanded by (a) the chairman of such &
P holders of shares of the Company or any class thereol meeting; or (b at leasi three members of the Company (*Sharcholders™
on the register Qfmcmbcfs at the Company on a fixed" present ifi-person or (being.a carperation) by its duly authorised
7 record dnlc in proportion t6 their then holdings.of such - - rcp(n)scsr;’mm’;e Tdf b(y rroxy for the time bcm(i 2ntitled 10 vote at l)h; m:mdm.g, R
or{c archolder(s) present in person or (being & corporulion, its du
. - shares or any class hereof (subject.to such exclusion SURBTSSd tepre kel o1 by proxy and epresemiing ot It iun one
<+ - orotherarrangements as the directors of the Company ienth of the 1otal voling rights f alf Sharehblders huving fhe right to vote al _
B -+ 'may deem necessary or expedient in relation to e m::nng,or(d)Smreholdcr(s)prcsenl in person ar(b:mga:nrpcmnon) A
o -~ fractional entitléments or: having regnrd tosany by:its duly authorised representative or by proxy dnd hotdidg Shares on
" gestriétions of .obligations under the'laws, or the - which an aggregute sum has been puid up eqw\ fo 101 less than one-tenth of

. “Rxghts Issue” mcnns an offcr o shares open fora B
pesiod fixcd by the directors of the Company to-

o rcquxmmenls of any recngms:d legulalory hody orany - the mml sam paxd up on ull Shares” ‘]
. stock exchange, in ﬂﬂy territory, applicable to the, an explannmry statemem conraining furincr details regarding Resolution
N . . Company).”. * 4B above is being seal (0 members and ather persons who ire entiiled therelo
log:lh:r with the Compuny’s 2005 Annual Report, L

. “THAT:

L As at the dure of this innouncenént. the bourd of divectors of he Cnmpnu\ .
(=) . subject to- paragraph (b) 3" tHis"Rebolution; the i comprises Execnrive Directors Richurd John Sieniens, Kufdeep Sqran aird Lim .
exercise by the dlreclors of the. Comp-\ny during the Shyang Guey; Non-execusive Direcior Williain Bracé Hicks and Independent Non-
,Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the. . « execurive Direetars Shists Fiederick Weir, Job Wiliary Cruwford aud Gerald Cli
powers of lh: Compnny 10 repurchase shares” of the ™" Dobby: -
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e-KONG Group Limited

3705 Gloucester Tower, The Landmark
11 Pedder Street, Central, Hong Kong
Tel  :+85228017188

Fax :+85228017238

Web : www.e-kong.com

BY FAX (No. 2537 9351) AND BY HAND

13 March 2006

The Listing Division

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
11/F., One International Finance Centre

1 Harbour View Street

Central, Hong Kong

Attention: Ms. Dion Wong / Ms. Ada Lau / Ms. Angel Chov

Dear Madam

e-Kong Group Limited (the “Company”)
- Board of Directors’ Meeting

Pursuant to Rule 13.43 of the Listing Rules, I write to advise you that the Company’s board of
directors’ me‘eting will be held at 3705 Gloucester Tower, The Landmark, 11 Pedder Street,
Central, Hong Kong on Friday, 24 March 2006 for the purpose of considering, among others,
the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2005.

Thank you for your kind attention.
Should you require further information, please feel free to contact the undersigned on 3101

3042.

Yours faithfully
For and on behalf of
e-Kong Group Limited

au Wai Ming Raymond
Company Secretary




2-KONG Group Limited

3705 Gloucester Tower, The Landmark
11 Pedder Street, Central, Hong Kong
Tel :+852 28017188

Fax :+852 2801 7238

Web : www.e-kong.com

BY HAND

10 March 2006

The Listing Division

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
11/F., One International Finance Centre

1 Harbour View Street

Central, Hong Kong

Attention: Ms. Dion Wong / Ms. Ada Lau/ Ms. Aneel Choy

Dear Sirs

Company Name : e-Kong Group Limited (the “Company”)

Case Number : 20060117-F00524-0003

Transaction Type : Circular — Major Transaction — Proposed Acquisition of

Telecommunication Services Assets

We are pleased to deliver to you herewith eight certified copies of minutes of the special
general meeting of the Company held on 3 March 2006 approving, confirming and ratifying
the acquisition of assets and assumption of the liabilities by Zone Telecom, Inc. pursuant to -
the asset purchase agreement dated 16 January 2006 and the transactions contemplated
thereunder for your attention.

Yours faithfully
For and on behalf of
e-Kong Group Limited

S:\Secretariali2006 January Board Meeting\SGM \Letter (o Stock Exchange_SGM min.doc




e-Kong Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE COMPANY HELD AT

ROOM 4101, 41ST FLOOR, HOPEWELL CENTRE, 183 QUEEN’S ROAD EAST,

WANCHAI HONG KONG ON FRIDAY, 3 MARCH 2006 AT 11:00 A M.

Directors In Attendance

Shareholders In Attendance

Others In Attendance

Present : The names of directors are as set out in the attendance

sheet annexed hereto. CERTIFIED TRUE COPY

- Present : The names of shareholders are as set, W@ 2

Present : The names of non-shareholders are as set out in the
attendance sheet annexed hergto.
1. CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING

Uy

Mr. Richard John Siemens took the chair for the meeting.

NOTICE AND QUORUM

Due notice of the meeting having been given to the shareholders of the Company and
the necessary quorum under the Company’s Bye-laws being present, the meeting
was declared duly convened and constituted. |

The notice convening the meeting dated 16 February 2006 and the businesses set out
therein (“Notice of Special General Meeting™) were taken as read.

ACQUISITION ‘ _
IT WAS RESOLVED THAT the following resolution as set out in the Notice of

Special General Meeting be and is hereby passed as an Ordinary Resolution:-

 “TBAT the acquisition of the assets and assumption of the liabilities by Zone

Telecom, Inc. (“ZONE US”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, pursuant
to the conditional asset purchase agreement dated 16 January 2006 and entered into
between ZONE US, Central Utah Communications, Inc., Central Utah
Communications Leasing, LC., Strategic Alliance Management, Inc., The Spring
Trust and Mr. Dale H. Lewis (“the Asset Purchase Agreement”, a copy of which has

21-

S:\Secretarial\Minutes\M208 - e-Kong(20065GM). doc




been produced to the meeting and marked “A” and initialled by the Chairman of the
meeting for the purpose of identification) and the transactions contemplated
thereunder, be and are hereby approved, confirmed and ratified and the directors of
the Company be and are hereby authorised to do all things and acts and sign all
documents which they consider necessary, desirable or expedient in connection with
the transactions contemplated under the Asset Purchase Agreement.”

4.  CLOSE OF MEETING

There being no other business, the Chairman of the meeting declared the meeting
closed.

S:\Secretarial\Minutes\M208 - e-Kong(2006SGM).doc




e-KONG GROUP LIMITED

2006 SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING -
CEEAERERRIAKRE

Held at Room 4101, 41st Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
on Friday, 3 March 2006 at 11:00 a.m.

AIEFAEZAZHERD LF TR ERETEBFEGAER 183 HREFIHL 41 &
4101 =T -

ATTENDANCE REGISTER OF DIRECTORS

EEHFEALM

Name Position. Signature

" A = Z
Richard John Siemens Chairman
T ‘ EE
Kuldeep Saran : Deputy Chairman

Gl
Lim Shyang Guey Executive Director
iR HTES
William Bruce Hicks - Non-Executive Director
FEE - PERITES Apology
Shane Frederick Weir Independent Non-Executive Director
BT BIFRITER
John William Crawford Independent Non-Executive Director
SN HEILFTES }’ﬁ»{\) e H
Gerald Clive Dobby Independent Non-Executive Director| /. v
' BIFFPITES Apology




-e-KONG GROUP LIMITED

SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

BERIAE
DATE: 3 March 2006 VENUE: Room 4101, 41st Floor, Hopéwell Centre
HE: ZEZESFE=ZA=H 183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
TIME: 11:00 AM T TFE R ER 18357
B E: E+—BE EFIF41H84101 =

ATTENDANCE REGISTER & 44 ffit

(SHAREHOLDERS f% 5 )
NO NAME Please indicate if you are : Registered SIGNATURE
e 5% RS ERBHETR: Shareholdings 5L
- BEBRE
- Shareholder (S) i% & & A

- Representative of corporate
shareholder (CR) fi& 3 (£ &

- Proxy of a shareholder (P)
R E IR A

If (CR)or (P), please state name of the
shareholder you attend for.

WMECRIW(P) - FBERERAK

CREKEL-
~4  |CHAIRMAN S P |AUDUNG 2,700
2 |CHAIRMAN : P |LIM SHYANG GUEY 500,000
{
3 |CHAIRMAN P |WILLIAM BRUCE HICKS 4oq/
[A——
4 |CHAIRMAN ‘ P |KULDEEP SARAN 400
5 |CHAIRMAN P |HSBC NOMINEES (HONG 67,620,00 ~
KONG) LIMITED" : )

—
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CoIAVINGG DNV U vkl W

SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

BREENARG
DATE: 3 March 2006 VENUE: Room 4101, 41st Floor, Hopewell Centre
HE: ZZEBANFE=HF=H 183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
TIME: 11:00 AM EEEBFEEFCER]835E
Rl E+—BE BRI 41H84101 2
ATTENDANCE REGISTER H[& £
(SHAREHOLDERS % 5 )
NO NAME Please indicate if you are : Registered SIGNATURE
iR 5 HEEEA WEREETE: Shareholdings g
-~ B KM
- Shareholder (S) g & & A
- Representative of corporate
shareholder (CR) g ¥ {t &
- Proxy of a shareholder (P)
B R FE IR A
If (CR) or '(P), please state name of the
shareholder you attend for. '
W(CR)E (P) » HEE ATAAE
ZBREREL-
#5  |LIN MEI FUNG MANDY / P |GOLDSTONE TRADING LIMITED 200 W/Z/
‘ CHAIRNAN , 4
7 IMAK PUI'YING / CHAIRMADL P |GREAT WALL HOLDINGS 330,000 [//}4/
LIMITED ~
8 |CHIU HO! YAN JOYCE/ P JGREAT WALL HOLDINGS 67,632,428 q/\?‘/} -
GHARMAN LIMITED
9 |HO KINPONG/ P |FUTURE (HOLDINGS) LIMITED 12,428 V
GHAIRMAN i
_ N
10 CR [HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED 328,883,302

el S Do




e-KONG GROUP LIMITED

SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

BEBNARE
DATE: 3 March 2006 VENUE: Room 4101, 41st Floor, Hopewell Centre
HE: ZBESFARE=A=H 183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
TIME: 11:00 AM _ THEFERIERI
R B +—RiE SR 41184101 E
ATTENDANCE REGISTER & &1
(SHAREHOLDERS J 5 )
NO NAME Please indicate if you are : Registered SIGNATURE
i 5% R & HEBEETE: Shareholdings =
o~ | BB
- Shareholder (S) i 32 & A
- Representative of corporate
shareholder (CR) & 3 {{ 3%
- Proxy of a shareholder (P)
BERERERA
if (CR) or (P}, please state name of the
shareholder you attend for.
WMCR)EL(P) - FEHE B AT &
ZREEH-
- LM SHYANG @uey| < oo, ooo \)p@bf\{\
12 | KULPEEP SARAN AN 4op M/”/
B LAT Py oy TENE | S 676 dfﬂ/\/
OV Ak T s
Vo
15 \, S 8,000 \Q )
o Wil M SN2

~ >y




e-KONG GROUP LIMITED

SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

RS RY
DATE: 3 March 2006 VENUE: Room 4101, 41st Floor, Hopewell Centre
BH: —“SEHF"E=A=H 183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
TIME: 11:00 AM T 2R ER1833%
FFE R+ —RE EF0F41484101F
ATTENDANCE REGISTER H& 42}
(SHAREHOLDERS fi% 3 )
NO NAME Please indicate if you are : Registered SIGNATURE
iR o HEEEE HREBETE: Shareholdings &
.~ B R
- Shareholder (S) f% B #& A
- Représentative of corporate
shareholder (CR) i 3 £ &
- Proxy of a shareholder (P)
R EBIRA
If (CR) or (P), please state name of the
shareholder you attend for.
WMECR) B (P) - HEHEE ATAE
ZBREREESA-
Vsl . - . e > ( 57’
r — N LS 007 = Y =7
17
18
19

20




e-KONG GROUP LIMITED

2006 SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING
—EERERFEENAE

Held at Room 4101, 41st Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
on Friday, 3 March 2006 at 11:00 a.m.

gﬁf VEZF= B@h:%ﬁ)m—nt—a%mﬁira%z% ERIEE 183 BAFIHL 41 18

4101 |7 -
ATTENDANCE REGISTER OF NON-SHAREHOLDERS
EFBREERE ST
i Name (in capital letters) | , Signature
M2 GERIEHER) BE

CHAN YEE BUN - Chief Financial Officer //g éé@/\
‘ 7
LAU WAI MING RAYMOND — Company Secretary Z% %

VIRGINIA NG - Secretaries Limited

CHRISTINA LAI — Secretaries Limited

WILSON CHIU - Secretaries Limited




e-KONG Group Limited

3705 Gloucester Tower, The Landmark
11 Pedder Street, Central, Hong Kong
Tel 1 +852 2801 7188

Fax :+852 28017238

Web : www.e-kong.com

BY HAND

24 March 2006

The Listing Division

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
11/F., One International Finance Centre

1 Harbour View Street

Central, Hong Kong

Attention: Ms. Dion Wong 7/ Ms. Ada L.au / Ms. Angel Chov

Dear Sirs

e-Kong Group Limited (the “Company”)
- General Mandate to Repurchase Shares

We, the directors of the Company, hereby undertake to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange™) that, so far as the same is applicable, we shall only exercise
the general mandate to repurchase the Company’s shares in accordance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, the applicable laws of Bermuda
and the Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of the Company.

Yours faithfully

For and on behalf of |
the Board of Directors of
e-Kong Group Limited

L%

Lim Shyang Gu%f
Director
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THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt as to any aspect of this circular or as to the action to be taken, you should
consult your stockbroker or other registered dealer in securities, bank manager, solicitor, professional
accountant or other professional adviser.

If you have sold or transferred all your shares in e-Kong Group Limited (the “Company”), you
should at once hand this circular with the enclosed form of proxy to the purchaser or transferee or to
the bank, stockbroker or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected for transmission
to the purchaser or transferee.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this circular,
makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this circular.

€-K' NG

e-Kong Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock Code: 524)

GENERAL MANDATES TO ISSUE SHARES A
TO REPURCHASE SHARES

AND
RE-ELECTION OF RETIRING DIRECTORS
AND

AMENDMENT OF BYE-LAWS

A notice convening the annual general meeting of the Company to be held at The China Club, 13/E,,
The Old Bank of China Building, Bank Street, Central, Hong Kong on Wednesday, 10 May 2006 at
10:00 a.m. is set out on pages 14 to 17 of this circular.

If you are not able to attend and/or vote at the meeting in person, you are requested to complete and
return the form of proxy enclosed with this circular in accordance with the instructions printed thereon
to the Company’s Branch Share Registrar in Hong Kong, Secretaries Limited at Level 25, Three
Pacific Place, 1 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong as soon as possible and in any event not less than 48
hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjourned meeting (as the case may
be). Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude you from attending and voting at
the meeting should you so wish.

11 April 2006
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DEFINITIONS

In this circular, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions have the following

meanings.

“AGM”

“Bye-laws”

“Companies Ordinance”

“Company”

“Corporate Governance Code”

“Director(s)”
‘SGroupi’
6‘HK$!7

“Hong Kong”

“Issue Mandate”

“Latest Practicable Date”

“Listing Rules”

“Repurchase Mandate”

“SFO”

the annual general meeting of the Company to be held at The
China Club, 13/F., The Old Bank of China Building, Bank Street,
Central, Hong Kong on Wednesday, 10 May 2006 at 10:00 a.m.,
and any adjournment thereof

bye-laws of the Company as may be amended from time to time
Companies Ordinance, Cap. 32, Laws of Hong Kong

e-Kong Group Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability and the Shares of which are listed on the

Stock Exchange

the Code on Corporate Governance Practices, Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules

director(s) of the Company
the Company and its subsidiaries
Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s
Republic of China

the proposed mandate to allot, issue and deal with additional
Shares not exceeding 20% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of passing the resolution approving the
said mandate

4 April 2006, being the latest practicable date for ascertaining
certain information in this circular prior to the printing of this
circular

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

the proposed mandate to exercise the power of the Company to
repurchase Shares up to a maximum of 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of the resolution approving
the said mandate

the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Cap. 571, Laws of Hong
Kong




DEFINITIONS

“Share(s)” ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company

“Shareholder(s)” holder(s) for the time being of Shares

“Stock Exchange” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

“Takeover Code” the Code on Takeovers and Mergers issued by the Securities

and Futures Commission

In this circular, unless the context otherwise requires, words importing masculine gender include
feminine and neutral genders, and vice versa.




LETTER FROM THE BOARD

‘u/\
'\V =

e-Kong Group Limited

{Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock Code: 524)

Directors: Registered Office:
Richard John Siemens (Chairman) Clarendon House
Kuldeep Saran (Deputy Chairman) 2 Church Street
Lim Shyang Guey Hamiiton HM 11
William Bruce Hicks" Bermuda
Shane Frederick Weir™
John William Crawford™ Principal Office:
Gerald Clive Dobby™ 3705 Gloucester Tower
The Landmark
* Non-executive Director 11 Pedder Street
* Independent Non-executive Directors Central
Hong Kong

11 April 2006

To the Shareholders and, for information
purposes only, option holders of the Company

Dear Sir or Madam,

GENERAL MANDATES TO ISSUE SHARES AND
TO REPURCHASE SHARES

AND
RE-ELECTION OF RETIRING DIRECTORS
AND

AMENDMENT OF BYE-LAWS
INTRODUCTION

On 25 May 2005, general mandates were given to the Directors to issue Shares and to exercise all the
powers of the Company to repurchase its Shares. These general mandates will lapse at the conclusion
of the AGM. It is therefore proposed to renew the general mandates to issue Shares and to repurchase
Shares at the AGM.

The purpose of this circular is to provide you with information in relation to the resolutions to be
proposed at the AGM for the approval of (i) granting of general mandates to the Directors to issue
and to repurchase Shares; (ii) re-election of retiring Directors and (iii) amendment of the Bye-laws to
conform with the changes to the Listing Rules concerning removal of directors which came into
effect on 1 March 2006.
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GENERAL MANDATE TO ISSUE SHARES

Separate ordinary resolutions will be proposed at the AGM to approve (i) the granting of the Issue
Mandate to the Directors and (ii) the addition to the Issue Mandate of any Shares repurchased by the
Company under the authority of the Repurchase Mandate, in order to provide flexibility for issuing
new Shares when it is in the interests of the Company to do so, details of which are respectively set
out in the proposed Resolutions Nos. 4A and 4C in the notice of the AGM. The Directors have no
present intention to issue any new Shares pursuant to the Issue Mandate.

GENERAL MANDATE TO REPURCHASE SHARES

An ordinary resolution will be proposed at the AGM to approve the granting of the Repurchase
Mandate to the Directors, details of which are set out in the proposed Resolution No. 4B in the notice
of the AGM. The Shares which may be repurchased pursuant to the Repurchase Mandate are limited
to a maximum of 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of passing of the
resolution approving the Repurchase Mandate.

If the resolution for the granting of the Repurchase Mandate is passed at the AGM, the Repurchase
Mandate will be in force until the earliest of (i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of
the Company, (ii) the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the
Company is required by the applicable law or the Bye-laws to be held and (iii) the date on which it is
revoked or varied by an ordinary resolution of the Shareholders in general meeting.

An explanatory statement as required by the Listing Rules is set out in Appendix I to this circular.
The explanatory statement contains all information reasonably necessary to enable the Shareholders
to make an informed decision on whether or not to vote for or against the ordinary resolution to grant
the Repurchase Mandate to the Directors at the AGM.

RE-ELECTION OF RETIRING DIRECTORS

In accordance with bye-laws 86 and 87 of the Bye-laws and in compliance of the Listing Rules,
Messrs. Richard John Siemens, Kuldeep Saran, Lim Shyang Guey and Gerald Clive Dobby shall
retire by rotation at the AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Particulars of Mr.
Siemens, Mr. Saran, Mr. Lim and Mr. Dobby are set out as follows:

Mr. Richard John Siemens

Richard John Siemens, 61, Chairman, was appointed in January 2000. Mr. Siemens is the Chairman
and a founding member of the Distacom Group, a privately-held group of companies in mobile
telecommunications business. Trained as a Chartered Accountant, Mr. Siemens’s financial acumen
and entrepreneurial leadership has been instrumental in the establishment of many well-known
international telecommunications and broadcasting companies such as Hutchison Telecom, Orange,
AsiaSat, STAR TV, Metro Radio, and mobile telecommunications businesses across the world led by
Distacom including SUNDAY in Hong Kong, Blu in Italy, Spice in India and Madacom in Madagascar.
Mr. Siemens was the co-chairman and executive director of SUNDAY Communications Limited
between 1999 and July 2003, a public company listed in Hong Kong and NASDAQ. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Siemens did not hold any other directorships in public companies listed in Hong Kong or
any other major exchanges in the last three years preceding the Latest Practicable Date.
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As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Siemens had the following interests in the Shares as recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 352 in Part XV of the SFO:

Approximate percentage

Capacity Number of Shares held of shareholding
Held by controlled corporations 105,000,200 22.3%
(Note 1)

Note 1: 5,000,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Siemens Enterprises Limited and 100,000,200 Shares are beneficially
owned by Goldstone Trading Limited, both companies being controlled by Mr. Richard John Siemens.

In accordance with the service agreement with Mr. Siemens, the term of his appointment shall, subject
to applicable rules and provisions of the Bye-laws regarding retirement and re-election at the annual
general meetings of the Company, expire on 29 March 2007 provided always that either the Company
or Mr. Siemens may terminate the appointment by giving to the other party not less than three (3)
calendar months’ notice in writing thereof. Under the service agreement, Mr. Siemens is entitled to
an annual remuneration and a residential accommodation and, if any, a discretionary bonus. Mr.
Siemens’ emoluments, comprising the remuneration, accommodation and discretionary bonus as
aforesaid, were determined by the provisions of the service agreement, which in turn were formulated
with reference to his duties and responsibilities within the Group, and the incentive plan of the Group
as approved by the remuneration committee of the Company. Such emoluments for the year ended 31
December 2005 amounted to HK$1,500,000. Mr. Siemens is a director of Cyberman Limited, e-
Kong Pillars Holdings Limited, Global Zone Limited and ZONE Global Limited, all being subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Siemens is also a member of the executive management committee, remuneration
committee and share option committee of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Siemens is not connected with any directors, senior management or
substantial shareholders of the Company, there are no matters that are required to be disclosed in
accordance with Rules 13.51(2)(h) to (v) (both inclusive) of the Listing Rules and there are no other
matters that need to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders.

Mr. Kuldeep Saran

Kuldeep Saran, 54, Deputy Chairman and Managing Director, was appointed in December 2001. Mr.
Saran has been a director of various Distacom Group companies since 1996. Mr. Saran has extensive
experience in developing, building and managing global telecommunications and other businesses.
Prior to joining Distacom, Mr. Saran was the head of the Asia Pacific telecoms group of Deutsche
Bank. Before that, Mr. Saran was director of planning at Hutchison Telecommunications responsible
for the development and execution of new businesses in Europe and Asia. He holds a Bachelors
degree in engineering and an M.B.A. Mr. Saran was the executive director of SUNDAY
Communications Limited between 1999 and July 2005, a public company listed in Hong Kong and
NASDAQ. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Saran did not hold any other directorships in public companies
listed in Hong Kong or any other major exchanges in the last three years preceding the Latest Practicable
Date.
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As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Saran had the following interests in the Shares as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 352 in Part XV of the SFO:

Approximate percentage

Capacity Number of Shares held of shareholding

Personal 341,200 0.1%

Held by a controlled corporation 71,860,147 15.3%
(Note 2)

Note 2: 71,860,147 Shares are beneficially owned by Future (Holdings) Limited, a company controlled by Mr. Kuldeep
Saran.

In accordance with the service agreement with Mr. Saran, the term of his appointment shall, subject
to applicable rules and provisions of the Bye-laws regarding retirement and re-election at the annual
general meetings of the Company, expire on 29 March 2007 provided always that either the Company
or Mr. Saran may terminate the appointment by giving to the other party not less than three (3)
calendar months’ notice in writing thereof. Under the service agreement, Mr. Saran is entitled to an
annual remuneration and, if any, a discretionary bonus. Mr. Saran’s emoluments, comprising the
remuneration and discretionary bonus as aforesaid, were determined by the provisions of the service
agreement, which in turn were formulated with reference to his duties and responsibilities within the
Group, and the incentive plan of the Group as approved by the remuneration committee of the Company.
Such emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2005 amounted to HK$1,500,000. Mr. Saran is a
director of Cyberman Limited, e-Kong Pillars Limited, e-Kong Pillars Holdings Limited, Global
Zone Limited, speedinsure Global Limited, ZONE Global Limited and ZONE Telecom Pte Ltd, all
being subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Saran is also a member of the executive management committee
and share option committee of the Company, and an alternate member of the remuneration committee
to Mr. Richard John Siemens.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Saran is not connected with any directors, senior management or
substantial shareholders of the Company, there are no matters that are required to be disclosed in
accordance with Rules 13.51(2)(h) to (v) (both inclusive) of the Listing Rules and there are no other
matters that need to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders.

Mr. Lim Shyang Guey

Lim Shyang Guey, 46, Executive Director, was appointed in October 1999. Prior to coming to Hong
Kong, Mr. Lim gained wide-ranging international exposure in the telecommunications and technology-
related industries, including in New Zealand, Russia, Malaysia and Singapore. Mr. Lim holds a
Bachelor of Engineering degree and a Master of Engineering degree, both from the University of
Auckland in New Zealand. Mr. Lim did not hold any other directorships in public companies listed in
Hong Kong or any other major exchanges in the last three years preceding the Latest Practicable
Date.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Lim had the following interests in the Shares as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 in Part XV of the SFO:

Approximate percentage
Capacity Number of Shares held of shareholding

Personal 1,020,000 0.2%
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There is no fixed or proposed term for Mr. Lim’s length of service with the Company and he is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with applicable rules and the Bye-laws. Either the Company or Mr. Lim may terminate
the appointment by giving to the other party not less than three (3) calendar months’ notice in writing
thereof. Under the letter of appointment, Mr. Lim is entitled to an annual remuneration and
accommodation allowance and, if any, a discretionary bonus. Mr. Lim’s emoluments, comprising the
remuneration, accommodation allowance and discretionary bonus as aforesaid, were determined by
the provisions of the letter of appointment, which in turn were formulated with reference to his duties
and responsibilities within the Group, and the incentive plan of the Group as approved by the
remuneration committee of the Company. Such emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2005
amounted to HK$1,794,000. Mr. Lim is a director of China Portal Limited, Cyber Insurance Brokers
Limited, Cyberman Limited, E-Force Global Limited, e-Kong Pillars Limited, e-Kong Pillars Holdings
Limited, e-Power Group Limited, Global Zone Limited, speedinsure Global Limited, speedinsure.com
Limited, ZONE Limited, ZONE Channel Services Limited, ZONE Global Limited, ZONE Resources
Limited and ZONE Telecom Pte Ltd, all being subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lim is also an
authorised representative and a member of the executive management committee of the Company,
and an alternate member of the remuneration committee to Mr. Richard John Siemens.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Lim is not connected with any directors, senior management or substantial
shareholders of the Company, there are no matters that are required to be disclosed in accordance
with Rules 13.51(2)(h) to (v) (both inclusive) of the Listing Rules and there are no other matters that
need to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders.

Mr. Gerald Clive Dobby

Gerald Clive Dobby, 66, Independent Non-executive Director, was appointed in December 2005. Mr.
Dobby, previously held senior positions within the HSBC Group, is currently a director of several
companies in Hong Kong and overseas. Mr. Dobby is also an independent non-executive director of
Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Dobby did not hold any
other directorships in public companies listed in Hong Kong or any other major exchanges in the last
three years preceding the Latest Practicable Date.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Dobby did not have any interests in the Shares within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

In accordance with the letter of appointment with Mr. Dobby, the term of his appointment shall,
subject to applicable rules and provisions of the Bye-laws regarding retirement and re-election at the
annual general meetings of the Company, expire on 31 December 2006 and thereafter shall be renewable
for fix term(s) of three (3) years provided always that either the Company or Mr. Dobby may terminate
the appointment by giving to the other party not less than one (1) calendar month’s notice in writing
thereof. Mr. Dobby is also a member of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. Dobby is entitled to
an annual director’s fee of HK$100,000, which was determined on the date of appointment with
reference to the prevailing market level of remuneration for a similar position. Other than the aforesaid,
Mr. Dobby is not entitled to any other emoluments for holding office as an Independent Non-executive
Director or as a member of any committees established by the board of Directors.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Dobby does not hold any positions with the Company or its subsidiaries,
and is not connected with any directors, senior management or substantial shareholders of the Company,
there are no matters that are required to be disclosed in accordance with Rules 13.51(2)(h) to (v)
(both inclusive) of the Listing Rules and there are no other matters that need to be brought to the

attention of the Shareholders.
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AMENDMENT OF BYE-LAWS

The Stock Exchange has amended the Listing Rules to the effect that a director may be removed by
an ordinary resolution in general meeting and also to reflect the corresponding requirement in the
Companies Ordinance. Such new amendment came into effect on 1 March 2006.

At the AGM, the Directors wish to seek the approval from the Shareholders for the amendment of the
Bye-laws to conform with the above amended Listing Rules. The full text of the proposed amendment
to the Bye-laws is set out in the proposed Resolution No.5 in the notice of the AGM.

Shareholders should note that the Bye-laws are in the English language only and the Chinese translation
of Resolution No.5 as set out in the notice of the AGM in relation to the wordings and provisions of
the Bye-law which is proposed to be amended is for reference only.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
A notice of the AGM is set out in Appendix II to this circular.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, a resolution put to the vote of a general meeting shall be decided on a show
of hands unless (before or on the declaration of the result of the show of hands or on the withdrawal
of any other demand for a poll) a poll is demanded by (i) the chairman of such meeting; or (ii) at least
three Shareholders present in person or (being a corporation) by its duly authorised representative or
by proxy for the time being entitled to vote at the meeting; or (iii) Shareholder(s) present in person or
(being a corporation) by its duly authorised representative or by proxy and representing not less than
one-tenth of the total voting rights of all Shareholders having the right to vote at the meeting; or (iv)
Shareholder(s) present in person or (being a corporation) by its duly authorised representative or by
proxy and holding Shares on which an aggregate sum has been paid up equal to not less than one-
tenth of the total sum paid up on all Shares.

A form of proxy for use at the AGM is enclosed with this circular. If you are not able to attend and/
or vote at the AGM in person, you are requested to complete and return the form of proxy in accordance
with the instructions printed thereon to the Company’s Branch Share Registrar in Hong Kong,
Secretaries Limited at Level 25, Three Pacific Place, 1 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong as soon as
possible and in any event not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or
any adjourned meeting (as the case may be). Completion and return of the form of proxy will not
preclude you from attending and voting at the meeting should you so wish.

RECOMMENDATION

The Directors consider that the granting of the Issue Mandate and the Repurchase Mandate, re-election
of the retiring Directors and the amendment of the Bye-laws are in the best interests of the Company
and the Shareholders and, accordingly, recommend you to vote in favour of the resolutions to be
proposed at the AGM.
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MISCELLANEOUS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, to the extent that the Company was aware of having made all
reasonable enquiries, no Shareholder was required to abstain from voting under the Listing Rules on
any of the proposed resolutions as set out in the notice of the AGM.

The English text of this circular and the accompanying proxy form shall prevail over the Chinese text
in case of inconsistency.

Yours faithfully,
By order of the Board
Richard John Siemens
Chairman




APPENDIX 1 EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

This Appendix serves as an explanatory statement given to Shareholders, as required under the Listing
Rules, in connection with the proposed Repurchase Mandate.

1.

LISTING RULES

The Listing Rules permit companies whose primary listings are on the Stock Exchange to
repurchase their securities on the Stock Exchange subject to certain restrictions, the most
important of which are summarised below:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Shareholders’ approval

All repurchase of securities on the Stock Exchange by a company with its primary listing
on the Stock Exchange must be approved in advance by an ordinary resolution, either by
way of a general mandate to the directors of the company to undertake such repurchases
or by a specific approval in relation to specific transactions.

Source of funds

Repurchases must be funded out of funds which are legally available for such purpose in
accordance with the company’s constitutional documents and the laws of the jurisdiction
in which the company is incorporated or otherwise established.

Maximum number of shares to be repurchased and subsequent issue

A maximum of 10% of the issued share capital of the company as at the date of the
passing of the relevant resolution for granting the general mandate of share repurchase
may be repurchased on the Stock Exchange. A company may not, without the approval
of the Stock Exchange, issue new shares or announce a proposed issue of new shares for
a period of 30 days immediately following a share repurchase, whether on the Stock
Exchange or otherwise, other than an issue of shares pursuant to the exercise of warrants,
share options or similar instruments requiring the company to issue securities, which are
outstanding prior to the date of the repurchase.

SHARE CAPITAL

It is proposed that up to 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of passing the resolution to
approve the Repurchase Mandate may be repurchased. As at the Latest Practicable Date, the
number of Shares in issue was 470,894,200. On the basis of such figure (assuming no further
Shares are issued or repurchased following the Latest Practicable Date and prior to the date of
the AGM), the Company would be allowed under the Repurchase Mandate to repurchase Shares
up to a limit of 47,089,420 Shares.
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3. REASON FOR REPURCHASES

Although the Directors have no present intention of repurchasing any Shares, they believe that
the flexibility afforded by the Repurchase Mandate would be beneficial to the Company and
the Shareholders. Such repurchases may, depending on market conditions and funding
arrangements at the time, lead to an enhancement of the net asset value and/or earnings per
Share and will only be made when the Directors believe that such a repurchase will benefit the
Company and the Shareholders.

4. FUNDING OF REPURCHASES

Funds required for any share repurchase by the Company would be derived from those funds
legally permitted to be utilised by the Company in this connection in accordance with the
Memorandum of Association of the Company and the Bye-laws and applicable laws of Bermuda.
Under Bermuda law, a share purchase may only be effected by the Company out of the capital
paid up on the purchased shares or out of the funds of the Company otherwise available for
dividend or distribution or out of the proceeds of a fresh issue of shares made for the purpose.
Any premium payable on a purchase over the par value of the shares to be purchased must be
provided for out of funds of the Company otherwise available for dividend or distribution or
out of the Company’s share premium account. In addition, no share purchase may take place if,
on the date on which the purchase is to be effected, there are reasonable grounds for believing
that the Company is, or after the purchase would be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due.

The Directors consider that there might be a material adverse impact on the working capital or
gearing position of the Company (as compared with the position disclosed in the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2005, being
the latest published accounts of the Company) in the event that the Repurchase Mandate was to
be carried out in full at any time during the proposed repurchase period. However, the Directors
do not propose to exercise the Repurchase Mandate to such extent as would, in the circumstances,
have a material adverse effect on the working capital requirements of the Company or the
gearing levels which in the opinion of the Directors are from time to time appropriate for the
Company.

5. UNDERTAKING OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors have undertaken to the Stock Exchange that, so far as the same may be applicable,
they will only exercise the Repurchase Mandate in accordance with the Listing Rules, the
Memorandum of Association of the Company and the Bye-laws and the applicable laws of Bermuda.

None of the Directors or, to the best of their knowledge and having made all reasonable enquiries,
any of their associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) have any present intention to sell any
Shares to the Company or its subsidiaries under the Repurchase Mandate in the event that the
Repurchase Mandate is approved by the Shareholders.

No connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) have notified the Company that they
have a present intention to sell any Shares to the Company, or have undertaken not to do so, in
the event that the Repurchase Mandate is approved by the Shareholders.
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6.

EFFECT OF TAKEOVER CODE

If as a result of a repurchase of Shares by the Company pursuant to the Repurchase Mandate, a
Shareholder’s proportionate interest in the voting rights of the Company increases, such increase
will be treated as an acquisition for the purposes of the Takeover Code. Accordingly, a
Shareholder, or group of Shareholders acting in concert, depending on the level of increase in
the Shareholders’ interest, could obtain or consolidate control of the Company and thereby
become obliged to make a mandatory offer in accordance with Rule 26 of the Takeover Code.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, to the best knowledge and belief of the Directors, Messrs.
Richard John Siemens, Kuldeep Saran and William Bruce Hicks, directors of the Company,
together with companies controlled by them, beneficially held totalling 248,413,889 Shares in
the Company (representing approximately 52.75% of the issued share capital of the Company).
Assuming the Repurchase Mandate is exercised in full and the number of Shares held by them
remains unchanged, their shareholdings will be increased to approximately 58.62% of the issued
share capital of the Company. On the basis of the existing shareholdings, the Directors are not
aware that in the event that the Repurchase Mandate is exercised in full, there will be any
implication under the Takeover Code.

The Directors will exercise the powers conferred by the Repurchase Mandate to repurchase
Shares in circumstances which they deem appropriate for the benefit of the Shareholders. In
addition, the Directors have no present intention to exercise the Repurchase Mandate to the
extent that the number of Shares in the hands of the public would fall below the prescribed
minimum aggregate percentage (under the Listing Rules) of 25%.

SHARE REPURCHASE MADE BY THE COMPANY

No repurchase of Shares has been made by the Company during the six months prior to the
Latest Practicable Date (whether on the Stock Exchange or otherwise).
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8.  SHARE PRICES

The highest and lowest prices at which the Shares were traded on the Stock Exchange in each
of the twelve months preceding the Latest Practicable Date were as follows:

Price per Share

Highest Lowest
HK$ HK$§

2005
April 0.148 0.110
May 0.136 0.120
June 0.355 0.124
July 0.255 0.206
August 0.310 0.198
September 0.460 0.246
October 0.460 0.325
November 0.350 0.300
December 0.355 0.280

2006
January 0.470 0.310
February 0.540 0.420
March 0.780 0.480
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e-Kong Group Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

(Stock Code: 524)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Annual General Meeting of e-Kong Group Limited (the
“Company™) will be held at The China Club, 13/F., The Old Bank of China Building, Bank Street,
Central, Hong Kong on Wednesday, 10 May 2006 at 10:00 a.m. for the following purposes:

As Ordinary Business

1. To receive and consider the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2005
and the reports of directors and of the auditors thereon.

2. To re-elect retiring directors and to fix their remuneration.
3. To appoint auditors and to authorise the board of directors to fix their remuneration.
As Special Business

4. To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolutions, with or without amendments, as
ordinary resolutions:

A, “THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (c) of this Resolution, the exercise by the directors of the
Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the powers of
the Company to allot, issue or otherwise deal with additional shares of HK$0.01
each in the capital of the Company, or securities convertible into shares, or options,
warrants or similar rights to subscribe for any shares, and to make or grant offers,
agreements or options which would or might require the exercise of such powers,
subject to and in accordance with all applicable laws, be and is hereby generally
and unconditionally approved;

(b) the approval in paragraph (a) of this Resolution shall authorise the directors of the
Company during the Relevant Period to make or grant offers, agreements or options
which would or might require the exercise of such powers after the end of the
Relevant Period;

(c) the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) and
issued by the directors of the Company pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a)
of this Resolution, otherwise than pursuant to issue of shares as a result of:
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(i)  a Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined); or

(ii) any scrip dividend or similar arrangement providing for the allotment of
shares, in lieu of the whole or part of a dividend on shares of the Company,
pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company from time to time; or

(ii1) the exercise of any option granted under any share option scheme or similar
arrangement for the time being adopted and approved by the shareholders
of the Company for the grant or issue to directors or employees or eligible
participants of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries of shares or rights
to acquire shares in the Company; or

(iv) the exercise of subscription rights or conversion rights attaching to any
warrants or any other securities convertible into shares which may be issued
by the Company,

shall not exceed 20% of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the

Company in issue as at the date of passing this Resolution and the said approval

shall be limited accordingly; and

(d) for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this Resolution until the
earliest of;

(1)  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of
the Company is required by the Bye-laws of the Company or any applicable
law to be held; and

(iti) the date on which the authority given under this Resolution is revoked or
varied by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting.

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a period fixed by the directors of
the Company to holders of shares of the Company or any class thereof on the
register of members of the Company on a fixed record date in proportion to their
then holdings of such shares or any class thereof (subject to such exclusions or
other arrangements as the directors of the Company may deem necessary or
expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or having regard to any restrictions
or obligations under the laws, or the requirements of any recognised regulatory
body or any stock exchange, in any territory applicable to the Company).”
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B. “THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (b) of this Resolution, the exercise by the directors of the
Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the powers of
the Company to repurchase shares of the Company on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), or on any other stock exchange on
which the shares of the Company may be listed and which is recognised by the
Securities and Futures Commission and the Stock Exchange for this purpose
(*Recognised Stock Exchange™), subject to and in accordance with all applicable
laws and the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and, if applicable, any other Recognised Stock Exchange, as
amended from time to time, be and is hereby generally and unconditionally
approved;

(b) the aggregate nominal amount of shares of the Company to be repurchased by the
Company pursuant to paragraph (a) of this Resolution during the Relevant Period
shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the
Company in issue as at the date of passing this Resolution and the said approval
shall be limited accordingly; and

(c)  for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this Resolution until the
earliest of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;

(ii))  the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of
the Company is required by the Bye-laws of the Company or any applicable
law to be held; and

(iii) the date on which the authority given under this Resolution is revoked or
varied by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting.”

C.  “THAT conditional upon Resolutions 4A and 4B above being passed, the general mandate
granted to directors of the Company for the time being in force to exercise the powers of
the Company to allot, issue and deal with additional shares of the Company pursuant to
Resolution 4A be and is hereby extended by the addition to the aggregate nominal amount
of share capital of the Company which may be allotted, issued, and dealt with or agreed
conditionally or unconditionally to be allotted, issued and dealt with by the directors of
the Company pursuant to such general mandate of an amount representing the aggregate
nominal amount of the shares repurchased by the Company under the authority granted
pursuant to Resolution 4B, provided that such extended amount shall not exceed 10% of
the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue as at the date
of passing this Resolution.”
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APPENDIX II NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

5. To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resolution, with or without amendments, as
a special resolution:

“THAT the existing Bye-law 86(4) of the Company be and is hereby amended by deleting the
word “special” appearing in the third line of Bye-law 86(4) of the Company and substituting
therewith the word “ordinary”.

By Order of the Board
Lau Wai Ming, Raymond
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 11 April 2006

Notes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting convened by the above notice (or at any adjournment thereof)
is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf at the meeting. A proxy need not be a member of
the Company.

2. To be valid, a form of proxy, together with the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed,
or a notarially certified copy of such power of attorney or authority, must be deposited at the Company’s Branch
Share Registrar in Hong Kong, Secretaries Limited at Level 25, Three Pacific Place, 1 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong, not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

3. Completion and delivery of the form of proxy shall not preclude any member from attending and voting in person
at the meeting convened, if the member so desires and in such event, the form of proxy shall be deemed to be
revoked.

4, In case of joint registered holders of any shares, any one of such persons may vote at the meeting, either personally
or by proxy, in respect of such shares as it he/she was solely entitled thereto, but if more than one of such joint
holders shall be present at the meeting personally or by proxy, that one of such holders so present whose name
stands first in the register of members of the Company in respect of such shares shall alone be entitled to vote in
respect thereof.

5. Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, a resolution put to the vote of a general meeting shall be decided on a
show of hands unless (before or on the declaration of the result of the show of hands or on the withdrawal of any
other demand for a poll} a poll is demanded by (a) the chairman of such meeting; or (b) at least three members of
the Company (“Shareholders”) present in person or (being a corporation) by its duly authorised representative or
by proxy for the time being entitled to vote at the meeting; or (c) Shareholder(s) present in person or (being a
corporation) by its duly authorised representative or by proxy and representing not less than one-tenth of the total
voting rights of all Shareholders having the right to vote at the meeting; or (d) Shareholder(s) present in person or
(being a corporation) by its duly authorised representative or by proxy and holding Shares on which an aggregate
sum has been paid up equal to not less than one-tenth of the total sum paid up on all Shares.

6. An explanatory statement containing further details regarding Resolution 4B above is being sent to members and
other persons who are entitled thereto together with the Company’s 2005 Annual Report.
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e-Kong Group Limited & 7. % |

g - 2 /b /’
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) j //N) e %//@/
(Stock Code: 524) - = s
e &2 % /0),,[
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ™ o? '

FORM OF PROXY

No. of shares to which this o
Proxy relates ¢!

I/Wﬁ (Note2)
of
being Shareholder(s) of e-Kong Group Limited (the “Company”) HEREBY APPOINT ¥ ®)

of

or failing him, the Chairman of the meeting as my/our proxy to act for me/us at the annual general meeting of the Company to be held at The China
Club, 13/F, The Old Bank of China Building, Bank Street, Central, Hong Kong on Wednesday, 10 May 2006 at 10:00 a.m. (or at any adjournment
thereof) for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, passing the resolutions set out in the notice convening the said meeting and at the said
meeting (or at any adjournment thereof) to vote for me/us and in my/our name(s) as hereunder indicated or, if no such indication is given, as my/our
proxy thinks fit.

RESOLUTIONS FOR tHere € AGAINST o)
1. To receive and consider the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2005 and the reports of directors and of the auditors thereon.
2. To re-elect the following retiring directors and to fix their remuneration:
(A) Richard John Siemens (A) (A)
(B) Kuldeep Saran (B) (B)
(C) Lim Shyang Guey (9] (C)
(D) Gerald Clive Dobby (D) (D)
3, To appoint auditors and to authorise the board of directors to fix their remuneration,
(A) To grant to the board of directors a general mandate to issue shares. (A) (A)
(B) To grant to the board of directors a general mandate to repurchase shares. (B) (B)
(C) To add any shares repurchased under the authority given pursuant to resolution 4(B) into | (C) )
the general mandate to issue shares given pursuant to resolution 4(A).
s. To amend the Bye-laws of the Company as set out in resolution 5 in the notice of annual general
meeting.
Dated this day of 2006.

Signature(s) Ve

Notes:

1. Please insert the number of shares registered in your name(s) to which the proxy relates. If no number is inserted, this form of proxy will be deemed to relate to all
the shares in the Company registered in your name(s).

2. Please insert the full name(s) and address(es) in BLOCK CAPITALS.

Please insert the name and address of the proxy desired in the space provided. IF NO NAME IS INSERTED, THE CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING WILL
ACT AS YOUR PROXY.

4. IMPORTANT: IF YOU WISH TO VOTE FOR ANY RESOLUTION, PLEASE TICK IN THE APPROPRIATE BOX MARKED “FOR”. IF YOU WISH TO
VOTE AGAINST ANY RESOLUTION, PLEASE TICK IN THE APPROPRIATE BOX MARKED “AGAINST”. If you do not indicate how you wish your
proxy to vote, your proxy will be entitled to cast your vote at his/her discretion. Your proxy will also be entitled to vote at his/her discretion on any resolution
properly put to the meeting other than those referred to in the notice convening the meeting. The description of the resolutions contained in this form of proxy is by
way of summary only. The full text thereof appears in the notice convening the meeting.

5. This form of proxy must be signed by you or your attorney duly authorised in writing or, in the case of a corporation, must be executed either under its common seal
or under the hand of an officer, attorney or other person duly authorised to sign the same.

6.  Where there are joint registered holders of any share, any one of such persons may vote at the meeting, either personally or by proxy, in respect of such share as if
he/she were solely entitled thereto, but if more than one of such joint holders are present at the meeting, personally or by proxy, that one of the said persons so
present whose name stands first on the register of members of the Company in respect of such share shall alone be entitled to vote and will be accepted to the
exclusion of other joint registered holders in respect thereof.

7. To be valid, this form of proxy, together with the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed or a certified copy thereof, must be deposited
at the Company’s Branch Share Registrar in Hong Kong, Secretaries Limited at Level 25, Three Pacific Place, 1 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong, not less than 48
hours before the time appointed for the holding the meeting or any adjourned meeting (as the case may be). The completion and delivery of the form of proxy will
not preclude any member from attending and voting in person at the meeting or any adjourned meeting if you so desire and in the event that you do attend the
meeting, this form of proxy shall be deemed to be revoked.

8. A proxy need not be a member of the Company and must attend the meeting in person to represent you.

9.  ANY ALTERATION MADE TO THIS FORM OF PROXY MUST BE DULY INITIALLED BY THE PERSON WHO SIGNSIT,
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THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt as to any aspect of this circular or as to the action to be taken, you should
consult your stockbroker or other registered dealer in securities, bank manager, solicitor, professional
accountant or other professional adviser.

If you have sold or transferred all your shares in e-Kong Group Limited (the “Company”), you
should at once hand this circular with the enclosed form of proxy to the purchaser or transferee or to
the bank, stockbroker or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected for transmission
to the purchaser or transferee.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this circular,
makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this circular.

/ agé
e}

e-Kong Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock Code: 524)

MAJOR TRANSACTION

PROPOSED ACQUISITION OF
TELECOMMUNICATION SERVICES ASSETS

A notice convening the special general meeting of the Company to be held at Room 4101, 41st Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong on Friday, 3 March 2006 at 11:00
a.m. is set out on pages 64 to 65 of this circular.

If you are not able to attend and/or vote dt the meeting in person, you are requested to complete and
return the form of proxy enclosed with this circular in accordance with the instructions printed thereon
to the Company’s Branch Share Registrar in Hong Kong, Secretaries Limited at Level 25, Three
Pacific Place, 1 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong as soon as possible and in any event not less than 48
hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjourned meeting (as the case may
be). Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude you from attending and voting at
the meeting should you so wish.

16 February 2006
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DEFINITIONS

In this circular, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions have the following
meanings:

“Acquisition” means the proposed transactions contemplated under the Asset
Purchase Agreement

“Assets” means the customer and carrier contracts of and certain related
assets held by the Vendors to be acquired under the Asset
Purchase Agreement

“Asset Purchase Agreement” means the conditional asset purchase agreement dated 16
January 2006 entered into between ZONE US, the Vendors and
the Guarantor relating to the acquisition of the Assets, as further
described in this circular

“Bank” means Philadelphia Private Bank (a division of The Bancorp
Bank), a charter member bank in the State of Delaware, the
United States

“Board” means the board of Directors

g similar items (other than those portions expressly excluded
in the Asset Purchase Agreement) and all CUCL’s and SAM’s
rights and remedies arising from or in connection with any
breaches, defaults or other violations of any of the foregoing

“Closing Date” means the later of (a) the Sth business day following the
satisfaction of the first 3 conditions described in the paragraph
entitled “Conditions” and (b) the day on which all of the
conditions are satisfied ”

*Company” means e-Kong Group Limited, a company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability, the Shares of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange

“Consent Threshold” means eighty per cent (80%) of the average monthly revenue
generated from the Customer Contracts in aggregate during the
three-month period prior to the signing of the Asset Purchase
Agreement

“Consideration” means the consideration payable to the Vendors pursuant to the
Asset Purchase Agreement




DEFINITIONS

“CUC”

“CUCL”

“Customer Contracts”

“Director(s)”

s

“Final Determination Date

“Guarantor”

“Groupn
“HK$”

“Hong Kong”

“Intellectual Property”

means Central Utah Communications, Inc., a Nevada
corporation

means Central Utah Communications Leasing, LC., a Utah
limited liability company

includes all agreements, application forms, term contracts,
letters ot agency and other contractual instruments forming part
of or relating to active or inactive long distance
telecommunication customer accounts of CUC as at the Closing
Date, including all past and present customer lists, records, files,
data, letters of agency, sub-CIC arrangements, licences,
consents, permits and other documents and items thereunder
{other than those portions expressly excluded in the Asset
Purchase Agreement), and all CUC’s rights and remedies arising
from or in connection with any breaches, defaults or other
violations of any of the foregoing

means the director(s) of the Company

means the date to determine whether a Customer Contract is a
Terminated Customer Contract which shall be made on the date
that is 30 days after the Closing Date

means Mr. Dale H. Lewis, an individual, residing in the State
of Utah, the United States who, together with members of his
family, controls the Vendors

means the Company and its subsidiaries
means Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong

means the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the
People’s Republic of China

includes patents and patent applications, trademarks, service
marks, logos, trade names and corporate names and registrations
and applications for registration thereof, copyrights, computer
software, data and documentation, customer and supplier lists
and information, internet domain names and applications for
domain names, all owned or used by any of the Vendors to the
extent relating to or used or held for use in connection with the
WRLD Operations




DEFINITIONS

“Latest Practicable Date”

“Listing Rules”

“SAMH

NSFOH

“SGM”

“Share(s)”

“Shareholder(s)”

“SPRING”

“Stock Exchange”

“Terminated Customer Contract”

uuccaa

:4US$99

“Vendors”

means 10 February 2006, being the latest practicable date prior
to the printing of this circular for ascertaining certain
information contained herein

means The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange

means Strategic Alliance Management, Inc. a Nevada
corporation

means the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Cap. 571, Laws
of Hong Kong

means the special general meeting of the Company to be held
on Friday, 3 March 2006 at 11:00 a.m. and any adjournment
thereof

means share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the issued and fully paid up
share capital of the Company

means holder(s) of the Shares

means The Spring Trust, a trust established under the laws of
the State of Utah, the United States

means The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

means a Customer Contract for which the Vendors have not
obtained a customer consent and either (a) such customer has
refused to provide such customer consent consistent with its
contracts with the Vendors; or (b) ZONE US or the Vendors
has determined that such Customer Contract should be
terminated due to the customer’s breach of the assignment
provisions therein and such customer fails or refuses to accept
service from ZONE US

means Uniform Commercial Code of the United States
means United States dollar(s), the lawful currency of the United
States and the exchange rate for the purpose of this circular is

US$1 = HK$7.8

means, collectively, CUC, CUCL, SAM and SPRING and a
“Vendor” means any of them




DEFINITIONS

“WRLD Operations”

“XST Letter of Credit”

“ZONE US”

“ZONE US Holding”

“%75

means the operations and business of reselling long distance
telecommunication services in the United States presently
carried on by the Vendors under the tradename “WRLD
Alliance”

means the letter of credit in the approximate sum of US$600,000
issued by UBS Financial Services, Inc. at the request of CUC
in favour of Xtension Services, Inc. (an independent third party
not connected with any of the Vendors, their beneficial owners,
the Company or any of its subsidiaries) and all those accounts
and deposits pledged with UBS Financial Services, Inc. as
security for issuing the aforesaid letter of credit

means Zone Telecom, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, whose business is the provision of telecommunication
and related services in the United States under the tradename
“ZONE”

means Zone USA, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and the immediate holding company of ZONE US,
whose sole business is the holding of ZONE US

means per cent




LETTER FROM THE BOARD

e-Kong Group Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Directors:

Mr. Richard John Siemens (Chairman)
Mr. Kuldeep Saran (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Lim Shyang Guey

Mr. William Bruce Hicks”

Mr. Shane Frederick Weir™

Mr. John William Crawford™

Mr. Gerald Clive Dobby™

*® . .
Non-executive Direcror

wHk . .
Independent Non-executive Directors

To the Shareholders and, for information
purposes only, option holders of the Company

Dear Sir or Madam,

MAJOR TRANSACTION

(Stock Code: 524)

Registered Office:
Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

Principal Office:

3705 Gloucester Tower
The Landmark

11 Pedder Street
Central

Hong Kong

16 February 2006

PROPOSED ACQUISITION OF
TELECOMMUNICATION SERVICES ASSETS

INTRODUCTION

On 16 January 2006, ZONE US, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Asset
Purchase Agreement with the Vendors and the Guarantor to acquire the customer and carrier contracts
of the Vendors and certain related assets held by the Vendors in connection with the provision by the

Vendors of long distance telecommunication services in the United States.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, (a) all of the Vendors and the Guarantor, and their beneficial
owners are not connected persons of the Company, and are third parties independent of the Company
and of any connected persons of the Company as defined under the Listing Rules, (b) none of them
hold any interest in the issued Share capital of the Company, and (¢) no Shareholder has any material

interest in the Acquisition.
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The total consideration for the Acquisition will be US$6.5 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$50.7 million), subject to adjustments, US$6.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$46.8
million) of which will be financed by a secured term loan facility made available to ZONE US by the
Bank for the specific purpose of the Acquisition and the balance thereof will be financed by internal
resources of ZONE US.

The Acquisition constitutes a major transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules and is subject to approval by the Shareholders at the SGM. The purpose of this circular is to
provide you with further information with regard to the Acquisition and financial information of the
Group and the Assets.

THE ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT

Date

16 January 2006

Parties

(a) ZONE US as the purchaser;

(b) the Vendors as the vendors; and

(c) the Guarantor as the guarantor for the Vendors.

Assets to be acquired

Pursuant to the Asset Purchase Agreement, the assets to be acquired by ZONE US from the Vendors
include:

(a) Customer Contracts and all customer and other deposits and security held or made available
and relating to the Customer Contracts, and receivables and unbilled revenue derived therefrom;

(b)  Carrier Contracts and all deposits and security held by carriers to the credit of or made to the
carriers and relating to the Carrier Contracts and payables derived therefrom; and

(c) all Intellectual Property, certain office equipment and furniture, software and rights, interests
and benefits of and in specified contracts relating to the servicing of the Customer Contracts,
all held by the Vendors in connection with the WRLD Operations.

ZONE US will, subject to the provisions for adjustments to the Consideration as described hereinbelow,
assume current liabilities as at the Closing Date relating to the Assets incurred to third parties in the
ordinary course of business in the conduct of the WRLD Operations by the Vendors which comprise,
among others, customer and other deposits held or made available and relating to the Customer
Contracts and amounts payable in relation to the Carrier Contracts and the Customer Contracts.
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Consideration

US$6.5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$50.7 million), subject to adjustments as described
in the paragraph below entitled “Consideration adjustment mechanism”. The Consideration was arrived
at after arm’s length negotiations by ZONE US with the Vendors and the Guarantor with reference to
the price/earnings ratios derived from the Assets. The Consideration represents approximately 3.0
and 2.6 times the net profit attributable to the Assets for the ten months ended 31 October 2005 and
the year ended 31 December 2004, respectively. The Directors consider that, after taking into account
other factors like (a) the economic benefits of the Assets to the Group; (b) the prospect of generating
additional revenue from new product offerings to customers under the Customer Contracts; (¢) the
synergistic effects and strategic value of the Assets to the future development of the Group; and (d)
the potential business opportunities that can be provided to the Group, the Consideration payable
under the Asset Purchase Agreement at such price/earnings range are fair and reasonable.

Conditions
The completion of the Asset Purchase Agreement is conditional upon the following events:

{a) ZONE US obtaining all relevant approvals from governmental regulatory agencies and other
regulatory entities that may be required to conduct the WRLD Operations;

(b)  the Vendors securing the written consent of customers to be served by ZONE US under the

Customer Contracts representing not less than the Consent Threshold on or before 15 February
2006;

(c)  all consents to the assignment of the Carrier Contracts to ZONE US are obtained:

(d) if so required under the Listing Rules, the Shareholders pass an ordinary resolution at a general
meeting approving the acquisition by ZONE US of the Assets and the assumption of those
liabilities as set forth in the Asset Purchase Agreement, in form and substance satisfactory to
the Company and the Stock Exchange;

(e} the XSI Letter of Credit shall have been released or agreed to be released;

(f)  since 31 October 2005 that shall not have occurred any incident or event which has had or is
reasonably likely to result in a material adverse effect on the Assets or the WRLD Operations;

(g) there shall not be any court orders issned by any court of competent jurisdiction which directs
that the Asset Purchase Agreement or any material transaction contemplated thereby shall not
be consummated as therein provided; and
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(h)  No Vendor shall: (i) have commenced or consented to commencement of a voluntary proceeding
seeking liquidation, reorganisation or other relief with respect to itself or its debts under any
bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar law now or hereafter in effect or seeking or consenting
to the appointment of a trustee, receiver, liquidator, custodian or other similar official of it or
substantially all of its property, or have made a general assignment for the benefit of its creditors;
or (ii) have an involuntary proceeding commenced against it seeking liquidation, reorganisation
or other relief under any bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar law now or hereinafter in
effect or seeking the appointing of a trustee, receiver, liquidator, custodian or similar official of
all or substantially all of its property; or (iii) have an attachment placed on all or a significant
portion of its assets.

If the condition (b) above.is not satisfied on or before 15 February 2006 or the other conditions are
not satistied on or before 17 March 2006, ZONE US may terminate the Asset Purchase Agreement by
giving a written notice to the Vendors, whereupon the rights and obligations of the parties thereto
will lapse and be of no further effect.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, save as the condition (b) above, no condition precedent is determined
to have been satisfied.

Payment arrangements
The Consideration will be satisfied in cash in the following manner:

(a) on the Closing Date, payment will be made to the Vendors in an amount equal to the
Consideration multiplied by that percentage of Customer Contracts from whom written consents
have been delivered by the Vendors to ZONE US, which percentage shall be equal to or exceed
the Consent Threshold, subject to any adjustments for the difference in value of the current
assets and liabilities to be acquired and assumed by ZONE US; and

(b) the balance of the Consideration, less any adjustments for Terminated Customer Contracts,
will be disbursed to the Vendors on the Final Determination Date.

Consideration adjustment mechanism
The Consideration shall be subject to adjustments if either of the following events occurs:

(a) the customers whose Customer Contracts representing not less than 5% of the average monthly
revenue for the 3-month period prior to the date of signing of the Asset Purchase Agreement
refuse or unreasonably fail to grant written consent to the assignment of their respective Customer
Contracts prior to the Final Determination Date, then the Consideration payable to the Vendors
shall be reduced by a fraction, the numerator of which will be the average monthly revenue of
the Terminated Customer Contracts for the 3-month period prior to the date of signing of the
Asset Purchase Agreement, and the denominator of which will be the average monthly revenue
for all Customer Contracts of the Vendors for the 3-month period prior to the date of signing of
the Asset Purchase Agreement; and
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(b) the current assets and current liabilities arising from the Customer Contracts and Carrier
Contracts that will be acquired and assumed by ZONE US on the Closing Date will not be
equal in value, then the Consideration shall be adjusted by the difference between the amount
of current liabilities to be assumed by ZONE US and the amount of current assets to be acquired
by ZONE US pursuant to the Asset Purchase Agreement, which adjustment will be downward
if the amount of current liabilities exceeds that of current assets, and will be upward if the
amount of current assets exceeds that of current liabilities.

Completion

Completion of the Asset Purchase Agreement shall take place on the Closing Date at the offices of
the Vendors’ solicitors, during which the rights, title and interests of and in the Assets will be
transferred, records, files and other data in relation thereto will be delivered to ZONE US and such
portion of the Consideration as described in the above paragraph entitled “Payment arrangements”
will be paid to the Vendors.

Other Provisions

The Guarantor guarantees the performance by each Vendor of its obligations under the Asset Purchase
Agreement. In addition, the Guarantor covenants that, within 5 years from the Closing Date, he shall
not, among others, directly or indirectly engage in or otherwise hold any interest in a business activity
relating to the long distance telecommunication services industry in the United States, or solicit any
customer in a Customer Contract to cease or terminate its relationship with ZONE US.

FINANCING

The Acquisition will be primarily financed by a S-year term loan facility of US$6.0 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$46.8 million) from the Bank made available to ZONE US. Security for the
term loan facility shall be as follows:

{a) ZONE US Holding will guarantee to the Bank the performance by ZONE US of covenants and
obligations to the Bank;

(b) afirst lien UCC filing will be made on all the business assets of ZONE US, inclusive of the
Assets; and

(¢) the existing shareholders’ loan due and owing from ZONE US to the Company will be
subordinated to the indebtedness outstanding from ZONE US to the Bank.

The balance of the Consideration payable to the Vendors will be funded by the internal resources of
ZONE US.
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INFORMATION ABOUT THE GROUP

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group’s major operating subsidiaries
are in the business of providing telecommunication services under the tradename “ZONE”. The Group’s
ZONE telecommunications business currently has operations in the United States, Hong Kong and
Singapore.

INFORMATION ABOUT THE VENDORS

The Vendors are a group of related companies, all controlled by the Guarantor or his family members,
carrying on the business as, among others, a wholesale reseller of telecommunication services to the
independent phone company market in the United States under the tradename “WRLD Alliance”.
The Vendors, in aggregate, purchase wholesale long distance services from telecommunications
companies such as MCI, Qwest, Global Crossing and Sprint, among others. These services are then
resold to phone companies, most of which are local exchange carriers, that re-brand the product to
end-users.

In addition te the above, the Vendors’ product offerings and services also include calling card and
branded products such as WRLD VoIP and WRLD Connect Internet Accelerator. The Vendors also
offer back-office support and marketing consulting services in the telecommunications sector as well.

REASONS FOR AND BENEFITS OF THE ACQUISITION

The Vendors have been providing long distance telecommunication services under the tradename
“WRLD Alliance” since 1997 to a customer base concentrated in the western United States, including
independent local exchange carriers and telephone companies across the States of lowa, Michigan,
Utah, Idaho, Ohio, Montana and others. ZONE US has been reselling telecommunications and related
services to corporate and residential customers primarily in the North Eastern States, Florida and
California, and recently it has expanded its market territories into mid-West States such as North and
South Dakota. While ZONE US is able to and will continue to provide telecommunication services to
all the customers in the Customer Contracts under its “ZONE” brandname, the Acquisition will
therefore complement the existing business of ZONE US by broadening its revenue sources and
customer base. In particular, the Acquisition is expected to help further develop the Group’s market
position and distribution network in the United States. The Board believes that the Group’s operations
and future development potential will benefit from the Acquisition.

No independent valuation on the Assets has been undertaken. Based on the unaudited combined
financial information attributable to the Assets:

(a) netrevenue for the ten months ended 31 October 2005 and the years ended 31 December 2004
and 2003 were US$21.6 million (equivalent to approximately HK$168.3 million), US$20.1
million (equivalent to approximately HK$156.4 million) and US$17.8 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$139.1 million), respectively;
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(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

net profit, after adjustments for related party transactions among the group of companies
controlled by the Guarantor and members of his family and provisions for income taxes, for
the ten months ended 31 October 2005 and the years ended 31 December 2004 and 2003
amounted to US$2.2 million (equivalent to approximately HK$16.9 million), US$2.5 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$19.6 million) and US$1.6 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$12.5 million), respectively;

net profit, after adjustments for related party transactions as aforesaid but before provisions for
income taxes, for the ten months ended 31 October 2005 and the years ended 31 December
2004 and 2003 amounted to US$2.2 million (equivalent to approximately HK$16.9 million).
US$2.5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$19.7 million) and US$1.6 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$12.6 million), respectively;

the book value of the Assets as at 31 October 2005, which book value does not reflect any
recorded value for the Customer Contracts, the Carrier Contracts or the Inteflectual Property
for any of which are not accounted, amounted to US$4.6 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$35.6 million); and

the book value of the current liabilities arising from the Assets incurred to third parties in the
ordinary course of business in the conduct of the WRLD Operations by the Vendors as at 31
October 2005 amounted to US$4.6 million (equivalent to approximately HK$35.6 million).

In light of the above, the Board (including the independent non-executive Directors) is of the view
that the terms of the Acquisition are fair and reasonable and in the interests of both the Company and
the Shareholders.

FINANCIAL EFFECTS OF THE ACQUISITION ON THE GROUP

(a)

Revenue and earnings

The Group recorded turnover of HK$402.7 million and an audited consolidated net loss of
HK$131.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2004. For the six months ended 30 June
2005, the Group’s turnover amounted to HK$192.4 million and its reported unaudited
consolidated net profit amounted to HK$11.2 million.

As stated above, net revenue and net profit attributable to the Assets, after adjustments for
related party transactions among the group of companies controlied by the Guarantor and
members of his family and provisions for income taxes, for the ten months ended 31 October
2005 amounted to US$21.6 million (equivalent to approximately HK$168.3 million) and US$2.2
million {equivalent to approximately HK$16.9 million), respectively. The synergies from
integrating the Assets with the existing businesses of ZONE US and the prospect of generating
additional revenue from new product offerings to customers under the Customer
Contracts are anticipated to allow the Group to improve its revenue and earnings in future
years.

- 11 -




LETTER FROM THE BOARD

(b)  Assets and liabilities

As at 30 June 2005, the unaudited total assets of the Group were approximately HK$115.0
million and its unaudited total liabilities amounted to approximately HK$59.8 million. Assuming
that the Acquisition was completed on 30 June 2005, based on the unaudited pro forma financial
information on the assets and liabilities of the Group as set out in Appendix III to this circular,
the total assets of the Group will be increased by approximately HK$80.9 million, which
represents the aggregate of (i) the book value of the Assets to be acquired, (ii) the increase in
the carrying value of intangible assets as a result of the acquisition of the Assets and (iii) the
reduced bank balances on the amount by which the Acquisition, including its associated legal
and professional costs, will be financed by the internal resources of the Group. The total liabilities
of the Group will be increased by approximately HK$82.4 million which represents the aggregate
of the current liabilities to be assumed by the Group and the secured term loan made available
to ZONE US by the Bank for the specific purpose of the Acquisition.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

As stated in its interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2005, while the Group stays focused
on improving operational efficiencies and maintaining profitability, it will also actively seek new
opportunities in the communications industry to increase its revenue. The Board believes that besides
broadening its revenue sources and customer base following the Acquisition, overall operational
efficiencies through economies of scale and consolidation of resources will also be enhanced. The
Group will continue to pursue potential acquisitions targets, both in the United States and in Asia,
which are synergistic to its existing businesses and which will make material contributions towards
the Group’s turnover and profitability.

IMPLICATIONS UNDER THE LISTING RULES

The Acquisition constitutes a major transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules and is conditional on approval by Shareholders. None of the Shareholders has a material interest
in the Acquisition and, accordingly, no Shareholder is required to abstain from voting at the SGM.

SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

A notice of the SGM at which an ordinary resolution will be proposed to the Shareholders to consider
and, if thought fit, to approve, confirm and ratify the Acquisition and the transactions contemplated
thereby, is set out on pages 64 to 65 of this circular.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, a resolution put to the vote of a general meeting shall be
decided on a show of hands unless (before or on the declaration of the result of the show of hands or
on the withdrawal of any other demand for a poll) a poll is demanded by (a) the chairman of such
meeting; or (b) at least three Shareholders present in person or (being a corporation) by its duly
authorised representative or by proxy for the time being entitled to vote at the meeting; or (c)
Shareholder(s) present in person or (being a corporation) by its duly authorised representative or by
proxy and representing not less than one-tenth of the total voting rights of all Shareholders having the
right to vote at the meeting; or (d) Shareholder(s) present in person or (being a corporation) by its
duly authorised representative or by proxy and holding Shares on which an aggregate sum has been
paid up equal to not less than one-tenth of the total sum paid up on all Shares.

-12 -
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A form of proxy for use at the SGM is enclosed with this circular. If you are not able to attend and/or
vote at the SGM in person, you are requested to complete and return the form of proxy in accordance
with the instructions printed thereon to the Company’s Branch Share Registrar in Hong Kong,
Secretaries Limited at Level 25, Three Pacific Place, | Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong as soon as
possible and in any event not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or
any adjourned meeting (as the case may be). Completion and return of the form of proxy will not
preclude you from attending and voting at the meeting should you so wish.

RECOMMENDATION

The Board (including the independent non-executive Directors) is of the view that the terms of the
Acquisition are fair and reasonable and are in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders and,
accordingly, recommend you to vote in favour of the resolution to be proposed at the SGM.

MISCELLANEOUS
Your attention is also drawn to the information set out in the appendices to this circular.

The English text of this circular and the accompanying proxy form shall prevail over the Chinese text
thereof in case of inconsistency.

Yours taithfully,
By order of the Board
Richard John Siemens
Chairman

- 13-
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1. UNAUDITED INTERIM RESULTS OF THE GROUP FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED
30 JUNE 2005

The following is an extract of the unaudited financial statements of the Group from its interim
report for the six months ended 30 June 2005.

Condensed Consolidated Income Statement

The board of directors (the “Board”) of e-Kong Group Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to
present the unaudited interim results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) for the six months ended 30 June 2005, together with comparative figures for the
corresponding period in 2004. The results were unaudited but have been reviewed by the
Company’s Audit Committee and the Company’s auditors.

Six months ended 30 June

2005 2004
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Turnover 2 192,354 201,456
Cost of sales ~(120,918) (126,754)
Gross profit 71,436 74,702
Other revenue 3 244 474
71,680 75,176
Distribution costs (18,527) (20,235)
Business promotion and marketing expenses (1,297) (3,434)
Operating and administrative expenses (38,273) (43,707)
Depreciation and amortisation (2,391) (25,508)
Profit/(Loss) from operations 11,192 (17,708)
Finance costs (18) (22)
Protit/(Loss) before taxation 11,174 (17,730)
Taxation 4 - -
Profit/(Loss) for the period 11,174 (17,730)
Attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company 11,174 (17,700)
Minority interests - (30)
11,174 (17,730)
HKS$ HKS$

Earnings/(Loss) per share 5
Basic 0.02 (0.04)
Diluted N/A N/A
HK$’000 HK$’000

EBITDA 6 13,583 7.800
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Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Available-for-sale investments
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Trade and other receivables
Pledged deposits

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Current portion of obligations under
finance leases

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Long-term liabilities
Obligations under finance leases

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Issued capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

— 15~

As at

30 June
2005
(Unaudited)
HK$'000

7,771
1,894
2,305
11,970
57,457
2,433
43,159

103,049

58,875

188
59,063
43,986

55,956

714

55,242

4,709
50,533

55,242

As at

31 December

2004
(Audited)
HK$'000

7,916
1,894
2,369
12,179
45,569
2,817
44,377

92,763

60,326

184
__60s10
32,253

44,432

809

43,623

4,709
38,914

43,623
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the six months ended 30 June 2004

Capital

Share Share  Exchange redemption Contributed Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve reserve surplus losses equity
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
HKS$'000 HK$’000 HK3$'000 HK§ 000 HK$'000 HK3'000 HK$°000
As at | January 2004 4,709 23461 - 6 607,462 (459,024) 176,614
Loss for the period - - - - - (17,700) (17,700)
As at 30 June 2004 4,709 23,461 - 6 607,462 (476,724) 158.914
L L] L]

For the six months ended 30 June 2005

Capital
Share Share  Exchange redemption Contributed Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve reserve surplus losses equity
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
HK$°000 HK3'000 HK$§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
As at | January 2005 4,709 23,461 (1.384) 6 607.462 (590.631) 43,623
Exchange difference on
translation of foreign

subsidiaries - - 445 - - - 445
Profit for the period - - - - - 11,174 11,174
As at 30 June 2005 4,709 23.461 (939) 6 607,462 (579.457) 55,242
I L] N I L | L] L]

16—




APPENDIX I FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON THE GROUP

Condensed Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Six months ended 30 June

2005 2004

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

HK$'000 HKS$’'000

Net cash generated from operating activities 824 5,664
Net cash used in investing activities (2,335) (2,269)
Net cash used in financing activities (91) (112)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,602) 3,283
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January 47,194 34,177
Cash and cash equivalents as at 30 June 45,592 37,460

Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents

Pledged deposits 2,433 3,153
Bank balances and cash 43,159 34,307
45,592 37,460
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Notes to the Condensed Financial Statements
For the six months ended 30 June 2005

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The condensed consolidated financial statements are unaudited and have been prepared in accordance with
the Hong Kong Accounting Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and applicable disclosure requirements under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
They have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values.

The accounting policies used in the condensed consolidated financial statements are consistent with those
used in the preparation of the Group’s annual financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2004
except as described below.

In the current period, the Group has applied, for the first time, a number of new Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs™), Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter. collectively, referred to as “new HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA that became effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after | January 2005. The application of the new HKFRSs has resulted
in changes in presentation of the income statement, the balance sheet and the statement of changes in
equity. In particular, the presentation of minority interests has been changed. The changes in presentation
have been applied retrospectively. The adoption of the new HKFRSs has resulted in changes to the Group’s
accounting policies in the following areas that have an effect on how the results for the current or prior
accounting periods are prepared and presented:

Financial Instruments

In the current period, the Group has applied HKAS 32 “Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation”
and HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”. HKAS 32 requires retrospective
application. HKAS 39, which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2005, generally
does not permit the financial statements to recognise, derecognise or measure financial assets and liabilities
on a retrospective basis. The principal effects resulting from the implementation of HKAS 32 and HKAS
39 are summarised below.

Prior to 1 January 2005, the Group classified and measured its debt and equity securities in accordance
with the benchmark treatment of Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 24 (“SSAP 24”). Under SSAP
24, investments in debt or equity securities were classified as “investment securities” or “other investments”
as appropriate. Investment securities are carried at cost less impairment losses (if any) while other investments
are measured at fair value, with realised/unrealised gains or losses included in the profit and loss account.
From ! January 2005 onwards, the Group has classified and measured its debt and equity securities in
accordance with HKAS 39. Under HKAS 39, financial assets are classified as “financial assets at fair
values through profit or loss”, “available-for-sale financial assets”, “loans and receivables” or “held-to-
maturity financial assets”. “Financial assets at fair values through profit or loss” and “available-for-sale
financial assets” are carried at fair values, with changes in fair values being recognised in profit or loss and
equity. “Loans and receivables” and “held-to-maturity financial assets” are measured at amortised cost

using the effective interest method.

As a result of the adoption of HKAS 39, the Group has reclassified its “investment securities” as “available-
for-sale financial assets” and the recognised impairment losses in previous periods are not reversed through
profit or loss. Accordingly, no adjustments to the previous carrying amounts of assets at | January 2005
have been required.
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1.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based Payment

Under HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, which requires an expense to be recognised where the Group
buys goods or obtains services in exchange for shares or rights over shares (“equity-settled transactions”),
or in exchange for other assets equivalent in value to given numbers of shares or rights over shares (“cash-
settled transactions”). The principal impact of HKFRS 2 on the Group is in relation to the expensing of the
fair value of directors” and employees’ share options of the Company determined at the date of grant of the
share options over the relevant vesting periods to the profit and loss account. Prior to the application of
HKFRS 2, the Group did not recognise the financial effect of those share options until they were exercised.
From 1 January 2005 onwards, the Group has applied HKFRS 2 to share options granted on or after 7
November 2002 and had not yet been vested on | January 2005. In relation to share options granted before
7 November 2002, the Group has not applied HKFRS 2 in accordance with the relevant transitional
provisions. As at 30 June 2005, all share options of the Company had been granted before 7 November
2002 and, therefore, are not subject to the requirements of HKFRS 2.

TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The analysis of the Group’s turnover and results by business and geographical segments during the period
is as follows: '

(a) by business segments:

Six months ended 30 June
2005 2004
Telecom- Telecom-
munications munications
services Others  Consolidated services Others  Consolidated

(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS'000

Turnover
External sales 192,083 2 192,354 201,240 216 201,456
Results
Profit/(Loss) from

operations 19,587 26 19,613 (10,161) (138) (10,299)

L] .}

Finance costs (18) (22)
Other operating income

and expenses (8,421) (7,409
Profit/(Loss) for the period 11,174 (17,730
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2.

TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
(b) by geographical segments:

Six months ended 30 June
2003 2004

North America Asia Pacific  Consolidated North America Asia Pacific  Consolidated

(Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)  (Unaudited)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000

Turnover
External sales 138,157 54,197 192,354 135,183 66,273 201,456
] L | ]
Results
Profit/(Loss) from
operations 9,963 9,650 19613 (13,903) 3,604 (10,299)
R P I
Finance costs (18) (22)
Other operating income
and expenses (8,421) (7,409
Profit/(Loss) for the period 11,174 (17,730)
L] L]

OTHER REVENUE

Six months ended 30 June

2005 2004

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

HKS$'000 HK$'000

Interest income 209 134
Others 35 340
244 474

TAXATION

Hong Kong Profits Tax and overseas taxation have not been provided as the Group’s estimated assessable
profit for the period is wholly absorbed by available tax losses brought forward from previous years (30
June 2004: Nil).

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the six months ended 30 June 2005 was based on the
consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$11,174,000 (30 June 2004: loss of
HK$17,700,000) and on the 470,894,200 (30 June 2004: 470,894,200) shares in issue during the period.

The diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the six months ended 30 June 2005 and 2004 have not been
presented as the exercise prices of the share options were higher than the average market price.
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6. EBITDA

EBITDA represents earnings before interest expenses, taxation, depreciation and amortisation.

7. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the period, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment for an amount of approximately
HK$2.3 million (31 December 2004: HK$4.8 million) and disposals were approximately HK$0.1 million

(31 December 2004: HK$9.9 million).

8. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

As at As at

30 June 31 December

2005 2004

(Unaudited) (Audited)

HK$ 000 HK$°000

Trade receivables 47,283 39,524
Other receivables

Deposits, prepayments and other debtors 10,174 6,045

57,457 45,569

L] .}

The Group’s credit terms on sales mainly range from 30 days to 90 days. Included in trade and other
receivables are trade debtors (net of provision for bad and doubtful debts) with the following ageing analysis:

As at As at

30 June 31 December

2005 2004

(Unaudited) (Audited)

HK3'000 HK$'000

Current 41,433 33,069
1 to 3 months 5,592 6,103
More than 3 months but less than 12 months 258 352
47,283 39,524

L ] L}
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9.

10.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

As at As at

30 June 31 December

2005 2004

(Unaudited) (Audited)

HK$°000 HK$'000

Trade payables 26,518 26,955
Other payables

Accrued charges and other creditors 32,357 33,371

58,875 60,326

L] ]

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with the following ageing analysis:

As at As at

30 June 31 December

2005 2004

(Unaudited) (Audited)

HKS$’000 HK$'000

Current 22,212 19,900
! to 3 months 1,585 3,582
More than 3 months but less than 12 months 2,721 3,473
26,518 26,955

R R

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation.

L
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THREE-YEAR SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Summaries of the audited financial statements of the Group for the latest three financial years,
as extracted from the published audited financial statements for the years ended 31 December

2004, 2003 and 2002 are set out below.

Consolidated Income Statements
For the years ended 31 December

Turnover
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Interest income
Other income

Distribution costs

Business promotion and marketing
expenses

Operating and administrative expenses

Other operating expenses

Loss from operations

Finance costs

Restructuring costs

Gain on disposal of discontinuing
operation

Provision for diminution in value
of investment securities

Unrealised holding loss on
other investments

Share of results of associates

Loss from ordinary activities before
taxation

Taxation credit

Net loss attributable to shareholders

Loss per share
Basic

Diluted

EBITDA

2004 2003
HK$°000 HK$ 000
402,654 402,543
(254,821) (235,128)
147,833 167,415

339 107
1,519 3,142
149,691 170,664
(25,117) (23,149)
(6,029) (5,106)
(95,007) (112,689)
(55,932) (50.851)
(32,394) (21,131)
(38) (157)
(100,544) -
- 532
(132,976) (20,756)
1,369 1,000
(131,607) (19,756)
HKS$ HKS$
(0.28) (0.04)
N/A N/A
HK$'000 HK$"000
11,827 23,802

—23

2002
HK$'000

316,746
(226,986)
89,760

313
3,039

93,112
(25.428)

(6,853)
(139,661)
(77,176)

(156,006)
(1,080)

(27,982)
(3.117)
1,911

(186,274)

(186,274)

HKS$

(0.74)

N/A

HKS$’000
(109,084)
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
As at 31 December

2004 2003 2002
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 7,916 149,698 190,730
Investment securities 1,894 3,452 3,452
Deferred tax assets 2,369 1,000 -
12,179 154,150 194,182
Current assets
Other investments - - 91
Trade and other receivables 45,569 47.489 51,908
Pledged deposits 2,817 3,305 7,740
Bank balances and cash 44,377 30,872 31,055
02,763 81,666 90,794
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 60,326 58,601 81,210
Current portion of obligations under
finance leases 184 289 6,566
60,510 58,890 87,776
Net current assets 32,253 22,776 3,018
Total assets less current liabilities 44,432 176,926 197,200
Long-term liabilities
Obligations under finance leases 809 312 830
NET ASSETS 43,623 176,614 196,370
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Issued capital 4,709 4,709 4,709
Reserves 38,914 171,905 191,661

43,623 176,614 196,370
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3. SUMMARY OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Set out below is a summary of the audited financial statements of the Group extracted from the

annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2004.

Consolidated Income Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2004

2004 2003
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Turnover 3 402,654 402,543
Cost of sales (254,821) {235,128)
Gross profit 147,833 167,415
Interest income 3 339 107
Other income 1,519 3,142
149,691 170,664
Distribution costs (25,117) (23,149
Business promotion and marketing expenses (6,029) (5,106)
Operating and administrative expenses (95,007) (112,689)
Other operating expenses (55,932) (50,851)
Loss from operations (32,394) (21,131
Finance costs 4 (38) (157)
Restructuring costs 6 (100,544) -
Gain on disposal of discontinuing operation - 532
Loss from ordinary activities before
taxation 4 (132,976) (20,756)
Taxation credit 7 1,369 1,000
Net loss attributable to shareholders 8 & 20 (131,607) (19,756)
HKS$ HK$
Loss per share 9
Basic (0.28) (0.04)
Diluted N/A N/A
HK$’000 HK$°000
EBITDA 10 11,827 23,802
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2004

2004 2003
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 11 7,916 149,698
Investment securities 13 1,894 3,452
Deferred tax assets 23 2,369 1,000
12,179 154,150
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 14 45,569 47,489
Pledged deposits 15 2,817 3,305
Bank balances and cash 44,377 30,872
92,763 81,666
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 60,326 58,601
Current portion of obligations under
finance leases 17 184 289
60,510 58,890
Net current assets 32,253 22,776
Total assets less current liabilities 44,432 176,926
Long-term liabilities
Obligations under finance leases 17 809 312
NET ASSETS 43,623 176,614
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Issued capital 18 4,709 4,709
Reserves 20 38,914 171,905

43,623 176,614
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Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2004

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Interests in subsidiaries

Current assets

Trade and other receivables
Pledged deposits

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Net current assets
NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Issued capital
Reserves
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Notes

11
12

14
15

16

18
20

2004
HK$’000

153
56,222

56,375
1,345
1,700

15,649

18,694

1,426
17,268

73,643

4,709
68,934

73,643

2003
HKS$’000

214
167,120

167,334
1,220
2,110

12,163

15,493

3,320
12,173
179,507

4,709
174,798

179,507
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2004

Capital
Share Share  Exchange redemption Contributed Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve surplus losses Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

As at | January 2003 4,709 23,461 - 6 607,462 (439,268) 196,370
Net loss attributable to

shareholders - - - - - (19,756) (19,756)
As at 31 December 2003 4,709 23,461 - 6 607,462 (459,024) 176,614

Exchange difference on

translation of foreign

subsidiaries - - (1,384) - - - (1,384)
Net loss attributabie to
shareholders - - - - - (131,607) (131,607)
As at 31 December 2004 4,709 23,461 (1,384) 6 607,462 (590,631) 43,623
AR L] I R b | .} L]
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2004

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations

Interest received

Interest on obligations under finance leases

Net cash generated from operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant

and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of other investments
Proceeds from disposal of investment securities
Disposal of subsidiaries (net of cash and

cash equivalents disposed of)

Net cash used in investing activities
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Inception of finance leases

Repayment of obligations under finance leases

Net cash generated from/(used in)
financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December

Analysis of the balances of cash and
cash equivalents

Pledged deposits

Bank balances and cash

- 29 —

Note

21

2004
HKS$’000

13,925
339
(38)

14,226

(4,804)
1,877

1,326

(1,601)

993
(601)

392

13,017
34,177

47,194

2,817
44,377

47,194

2003
HK$°000

4,918
107
(157)

4,868

(6,039)

1,165
104

2,079
(2,691)

(6,795)

(6,795)

(4,618)
38,795
34,177

3,305
30,872

34,177
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2004

1. GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™).

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statements of Standard Accounting
Practice and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, the Companies Ordinance and applicable disclosure
requirements under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules™).
A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (collectively “new HKFRSs”) which are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2005. The Group has not early adopted any of the new HKFRSs in its
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2004. The Group has assessed the impact of these
new HKFRSs and does not think they would have any significant impact on the Group’s results of operations
and financial position.

Basis of preparation
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is historical cost.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December 2004.

The results of subsidiaries acquired and disposed of during the year are accounted for from the effective
dates of acquisition or up to the effective dates of disposal respectively.

All significant inter-company transactions and balances within the Group have been eliminated on
consolidation.

Losses attributable to minority shareholders of partly owned subsidiaries are accounted for based on the
respective equity owned by the minority shareholders. The Group assumes any excess, and any further
losses applicable to the minority, which exceed the minority interest in the equity of the subsidiary.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an enterprise, in which the Group or the Company, directly or indirectly, has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Investments in
subsidiaries in the Company’s balance sheet are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. The
carrying amounts of the investments are reduced to their respective recoverable amounts on an individual
basis.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Major costs incurred
in restoring assets to their normal working conditions are charged to the income statement. Improvements
are capitalised and depreciated over their expected useful lives.

The gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the estimated net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and is
recognised as an income or expense in the income statement.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost, net of accumulated impairment losses, of property, plant and
equipment over their estimated useful lives from the date on which they become fully operational and after
taking into account their estimated residual values, using the straight-line method at the following rates per

annum:
Leasehold improvements Over the remaining lease terms
Machinery and equipment 20% - 33%
Office equipment, furniture and fittings 20% - 33%

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as
owned assets or, where shorter, the terms of the leases.

Investment securities

Investment securities held on a continuing basis with an identified long-term purpose are stated at cost and
are subject to impairment review at each reporting date to reflect any diminution in their values expected to
be other than temporary. The amount of provisions is recognised in the income statement in the period in
which the decline occurs.

The gain or loss on disposal of investment securities is the difference between net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the securities and is accounted for in the period in which the disposal occurs.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss or that an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may be reduced. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably.

Income in respect of telecommunications services provided to customers is recognised when the services
are rendered.

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis on the principal outstanding and at the interest rate
applicable.

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset
and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Finance costs, which represent the difference between
the total leasing commitments and the fair value of the assets acquired, are charged to the income statement
over the term of the relevant lease so as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each accounting period.

Rentals payable under operating leases are recognised as an expense on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the approximate rates of exchange ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are
retranslated at the approximate rates of exchange ruling at that date. Translation differences are included in
the income statement.

On consolidation, the balance sheets of overseas subsidiaries denominated in currencies other than Hong
Kong dollars are translated at the approximate rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date while the
income statements are translated at average rates for the year. All exchange differences arising on
consolidation are dealt with in the exchange reserve.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results for the year as adjusted for items that are non-
assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. The deferred tax liabilities or
assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is recovered or
liability is settled, based on the tax rates and the tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and credits
can be utilised.
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2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Retirement benefit schemes

Since December 2000, the Group, other than overseas subsidiaries, has operated Mandatory Provident
Fund (“MPF”) Schemes to provide retirement benefits for its full time permanent employees in Hong
Kong. The obligations for contributions to retirement benefit schemes are recognised as expenses in the
income statement as incurred. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group with
independent trustees.

Under the MPF Schemes, both the Group and each eligible employees were required to contribute 3% of
the employee’s basic monthly income, up to a maximum of HK$1,000 (the “mandatory contributions™) and
they may choose to make additional contributions (“voluntary contribution™). The Group shall make the
same additional contributions if the employees choose to make a voluntary contribution of up to a maximum
limit of HK$1,000.

Under the MPF Schemes, the employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s mandatory contributions
upon their retirement at the age of 65 years, death or total incapacity. The employees are entitled to 100%
of the Group’s voluntary contributions after completion of first year’s service.

The overseas subsidiaries have also operated their pension schemes or similar arrangement for their
employees in accordance with the statutory requirements prescribed by the relevant legal authorities.

As at the balance sheet date, the Group had no significant forfeited voluntary contributions which arose

upon employees leaving the MPF Schemes and which are available to reduce the contributions payable by
the Group in future years.

TURNOVER AND REVENUE

Turnover and revenue, recognised by category, are analysed as follows:

Group

2004 2003
HK$'000 HK3'000

Turnover
Telecommunications services income 402,155 398,128
Other income 499 4,415
402,654 402,543
Interest income 339 107
Revenue 402,993 402,650
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4. LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE TAXATION

This is stated after charging/(crediting):

Group
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK3000
(a) Finance costs
Finance charges on obligations under finance leases 38 157
(b) Other items
Auditors’ remuneration 1,278 1,214
Bad debts written off 2,943 3,901
Provision tor doubtful debts 3,795 269
Cost of services provided 254,821 235,128
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 48,925 44,403
Gain on disposal of other investments - (13)
Loss on disposal of investment securities 232 ~
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property. plant and
equipment, including HK$5,650,000 (2003 Nil)
as disclosed in note 6 5,687 (2)
Operating lease charges on premises 2,499 1.544
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries - (1,245)
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments:
Salaries, allowances and gratuities 70,322 87,540
Retirement benefit schemes contributions 2,224 2918
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S. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as

follows:
2004 2003
HK$°000 HK3'000
Fees 225 200
Salaries, other emoluments, gratuities and other benefits in kind 4,687 8,103
Retirement benefit schemes contributions 72 72
4,984 8,375
. ]

Included in the directors’ remuneration were fees of HK$225,000 (2003: HK$200,000) paid to the
independent non-executive directors during the year.

The remuneration of directors was within the following bands:

Number of directors

HKS$ 2004 2003
Nil - 1,000,000 4 3
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 3 3

3,000,001 - 3,500,000 - 1

No director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.
Individuals with highest emoluments
Among the six {2003 six) individvals with the highest emoluments, three (2003. four) were directors

whose emoluments are disclosed above. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three
{2003: two) individuals were as follows:

2004 2003

HK$'000 HK$°000

Salaries, gratuities and other emoluments 5,118 3,493
Retirement benefit schemes contributions 65 40
Non-contractual payments for loss of office paid by a subsidiary - 356
5,183 3,889

. ] ]

Number of individuals
HK$ 2004 2003

1,500,001 - 2,000,000 3 1
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 - 1
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RESTRUCTURING COSTS

Due to significant technological and market development in the telecommunications industry, and the
outsourcing of certain business processes in the Group’s telecommunications operations in the United
States, the Group has reviewed the carrying value of certain existing equipment together with related
hardware and software to assess the recoverable value of those assets. As a result, restructuring costs of
HK$100.5 million have been recognised in the year ended 31 December 2004, the breakdown of which is
set out as follows:

Group
2004 2003
HK3’000 HK$'000
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment (note /1) 90,153 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (note 11) 5,650 -
Provision for obligations under an operating lease 4,437 -
Other 304 -
100,544 -

TAXATION CREDIT

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as the Group incurred a loss for taxation purposes for the
year.

The taxation credit recognised during the year represents deferred tax assets relating to the origination of
temporary differences as analysed below:

Group
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$°000
Types of temporary differences:
Depreciation allowances (770) 467
Tax losses (599) (1,467)
(1,369) (1,000)

Reference should also be made to note 23 for further details of the Group’s deferred taxation status.

Reconciliation of effective tax rate:

Group

2004 2003

% %

Applicable tax rate (18) (18)
Non-deductible expenses 7 15
Unrecognised tax losses arising in current year 6 27
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (nH 20)
Recognition of previously unrecognised deferred tax assets 7 5
Sundries - 4
Effective tax rate 1 S

The applicable tax rate is the average of the tax rates prevailing in the territories in which the Group
operates.
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10.

11.

NET LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

The net loss attributable to shareholders includes the loss of the Company in the amount of HK$105,864,000
(2003: HK$17.051,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2004 was based on the consolidated
loss attributable to shareholders of HK$131,607,000 (2003: HK$19,756,000) and on the 470,894,200 (2003:
470,894,200) shares in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share is not shown because the potential shares are anti-dilutive and would decrease the

loss per share.

EBITDA

EBITDA represents earnings before interest expenses, taxation, depreciation, amortisation, and impairment
and disposal losses on property, plant and equipment.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group

Cost

As at 1 January 2004
Additions

Disposals

Exchange adjustments

As at 31 December 2004

Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 January 2004
Charge for the year
Disposals

Impairment losses

Exchange adjustments

As at 31 December 2004

Net book value
As at 31 December 2004

As at 3] December 2003

Office
Machinery equipment,
Leasehold and furniture
improvements equipment and fittings Total
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
739 214,125 18,568 233,432
13 1,309 3,482 4,804
- (9,027) (843) (9.870)
- 346 399 745
752 206,753 21,606 229,111
507 69,168 14,059 83,734
210 45,940 2,775 48,925
- (1,506) (800) (2,306)
35 89,798 320 90,153
- 342 347 689
752 203,742 16,701 221,195
- 3.011 4,905 7.916
] . ] R R
232 144,957 4.509 149,698
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11.

12.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Due to significant technological and market development in the telecommunications industry, and the
outsourcing of certain business processes in the Group’s telecommunications operations in the United
States, the Group has reviewed the carrying value of certain existing equipment together with related
hardware and software to assess the recoverable value of those assets. As a result, disposal and impairment
losses of HK$95.8 million have been recognised in the year ended 31 December 2004.

The net book value of the Group’s property, plant and equipment includes an amount of HK$993,000
(2003: HK$699,000) in respect of assets held under finance leases.

Office
equipment
HK$'000
Company
Cost
As at 1 January 2004 1,997
Additions 121
Disposals (355)
As at 31 December 2004 1,763
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 January 2004 1,783
Charge for the year 181
Disposals (354)
As at 31 December 2004 1,610
Net book value
As at 31 December 2004 153
I !
|
As at 31 December 2003 214
|
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Company
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$°000
Unlisted shares, at cost - 7,800
Due from subsidiaries 713,510 790,553
Less: Provisions (657,288) (631,233)
56,222 167,120
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12.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Details of the principal subsidiaries at the balance sheet date are as follows:

Place of  Issued and fully  Percentage of share
incorporation/ paid up share capital held by
Name of subsidiary operation capital the Company Principal activities
Directly  Indirectly
ZONE USA, Inc. United States of US$10 - 100% Investment holding
America
ZONE Telecom Pte Ltd Singapore S$100,000 - 100% Provision of
telecommunications
services
ZONE Telecom, Inc. United States of USSI0 - 100% Provision of
America telecommunications
services
ZONE Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100% Provision of
telecommunications
services
ZONE Global Limited British Virgin USs1 - 100% Investment holding
[slands
ZONE Channel Services Hong Kong HK$2 - 100% Provision of
Limited marketing and
promotion services
speedinsure.com Limited Hong Kong HK$10.000 - 70.3% Provision of sales
and fulfillment
solutions
speedinsure Global British Virgin US$10,000 - 70.3% Investment holding
Limited Islands
e-Kong Pillars Holdings British Virgin USs1 100% - Investment holding
Limited Islands
e-Kong Pillars Limited British Virgin US$! - 100% Investment holding
Islands
Cyber Insurance Brokers Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 70.3% Insurance brokerage
Limited
China Portal Limited British Virgin USS$1 - 100% Provision of

Islands

marketing and
consultancy services

The above summary includes those subsidiaries which, in the opinion of the Company’s directors, principally
affected the results or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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13. INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Group
2004 2003
HK$000 HK$’000
Equity securities, unlisted — at cost less provision 1,894 3,452
L} N
14. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Group Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Trade receivables 39,524 39,840 - -
Other receivables
Deposits, prepayments and
other debtors 6,045 7,649 1,345 1,220
45,569 47,489 1,345 1,220
I L . ] ]

The Group’s credit terms on sales mainly range from 30 days to 90 days. Included in trade and other
receivables are trade debtors (net of provision for bad and doubtful debts) with the following ageing analysis:

Group
2004 2003
HK3$°000 HK3° 000
Current 33,069 39,040
I to 3 months 6,103 775
More than 3 months but less than |2 months 352 25
39,524 39,840
] L]

15. PLEDGED DEPOSITS

At the balance sheet date, the Group and the Company had pledged deposits amounting to HK$2,817.,000
(2003: HK$3,305,000) and HK$1,700,000 (2003: HK$2,110,000), respectively, to banks for guarantees
made by the banks to certain telecommunications carriers for due payments by the Group.
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16.

17.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Group Company

2004 2003 2004 2003

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK3'000

Trade payables 26,955 24,218 - -

Other payables

Accrued charges and

other creditors 33,371 34,383 807 2,066

Due to subsidiaries - - 619 1,254

60,326 58,601 1,426 3,320

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with the following ageing analysis:

Group
2004 2003
HKS$'000 HKS$' 000
Current 19,900 18,832
1 to 3 months 3,582 3,167
More than 3 months but less than 12 months 3,473 2,219
26,955 24,218
L]
OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES
The obligations under finance leases are repayable as follows:
Group
Minimum lease Present value of
payments minimum lease payments
2004 2003 2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
Finance leases due:
Within one year 218 326 184 289
After one year but within
two years 218 326 184 312
After two years but within
five years 653 - 625 -
1,089 652 993 601
Future finance charges (96) 5D - -
Present value of lease
obligations 993 601 993 601
Group
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000
Reported as:
Current liabilities 184 289
Long-term liabilities 809 312
993 601
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18.

19.

ISSUED CAPITAL

2004 2003
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
HK$'000 HK$'000
Authorised
Preference shares
As at | January at HKS1 each 288,929,402 288,929 288,929,402 288,929
Cancellation of preference
shares (288,929,402) (288,929) - -
As at 31 December, at HK$Nil
(2003: HK§1) each - ~ 288,929,402 288,929
ISR — L ]
Ordinary shares
As at | January and
as at 31 December,
at HK$0.01 each 12,000,000,000 120,000  12,000,000,000 120,000
120,000 408,929
T —— L |
Issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares
As at | January and
as at 31 December,
at HK$0.01 each 470,894,200 4,709 470,394,200 4,709

SHARE OPTIONS
Company

Pursuant to an employee share option scheme of the Company (the “Old Share Option Scheme”) adopted
in a special general meeting held on 25 October 1999, the directors of the Company might, at their discretion,
invite eligible employees of the Group, including executive directors of the Company, to take up options to
subscribe for shares in the Company under the terms and conditions stipulated therein. The Old Share
Option Scheme was subsequently terminated by the Company in a special general meeting held on 28 June
2002 but the share options granted but not yet exercised thereunder remain effective and are bound by the
scheme terms.

On 28 June 2002, the Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) to
comply with the requirements of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. Under the New Share Option Scheme,
the directors of the Company may at its discretion grant share options to (i) any director, employee,
consultant, customer, supplier, business introduction agent, or legal, financial or marketing adviser of or
contractor to any company in the Group or any affiliate; and/or (i1) any discretionary trust the discretionary
objects of which include any of the foregoing, under the terms and conditions stipulated therein. No share
options have been granted by the Company under the New Share Option Scheme since adoption.
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19.

SHARE OPTIONS {continued)
Subsidiaries

On 28 June 2002, the Company adopted scheme rules and procedures for share option schemes for its
subsidiaries (the “Subsidiary Scheme Rules and Procedures”). In accordance with the Subsidiary Scheme
Rules and Procedures, the subsidiaries may adopt their own respective share option schemes in line with
the terms and conditions of the Subsidiary Scheme Rules and Procedures, pursuant to which the board of
directors of each of the relevant subsidiaries may at its discretion grant share options to (i) any director,
employee, consultant, customer, supplier, business introduction agent, or legal, financial or marketing adviser
of or contractor to the subsidiaries and their subsidiaries, any of their holding companies or any affiliate;
and/or (ii) any discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which include any of the foregoing. No
subsidiaries have adopted their respective share option schemes pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
Subsidiary Scheme Rules and Procedures since adoption.

Summary of principal terms

A summary of principal terms of the New Share Option Scheme and Subsidiary Scheme Rules and Procedures
is as follows:

(1) Purpose

The scheme is designed to enable the board to grant share options to eligible participants as (i)
incentives and/or rewards in recognition or acknowledgement of the contributions that eligible
participants have made and will make to the Group; and (i) motivation to high calibre employees
for high levels of performance in order to enhance long-term shareholder value.

(i) Maximum number of shares

The total number of shares in respect of which share options may be granted (together with share
options exercised and then outstanding) under the scheme and to be granted under any other share
option schemes of the company, shall not in aggregate exceed such number of shares representing
10% of the shares in issue as at the date of approval of the scheme unless shareholders’ approval
has been obtained pursuant to the scheme. As at 12 April 2005, 13,574,261 shares of the Company,
representing about 2.9% of the issued share capital of the Company, are available for issue under
the New Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon the exercise of the
share options granted under the scheme and any other share option schemes (including both exercised
and outstanding share options) to each eligible participant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in
issue for the time being in any 12 month period up to and including the date of grant.

(i) Exercise period and payment on acceptance of share options

A share option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the scheme at any time during a
period to be determined and notified by the directors to each grantee, subject to a maximum period
of 10 years from the date of grant.

A share option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted and to have taken effect when
the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the offer of the grant of a share option duly signed by
the grantee (for the New Share Option Scheme) or the acceptance of the offer of the grant of a share
option duly acknowledged by the grantee in such form as the board may from time to time determine
(for the Subsidiary Scheme Rules and Procedures) together with a remittance in favour of the
Company of HK$1.00 (or its US$ equivalent) in consideration of the grant thereof is received by
the Company on a business day not later than 28 days from the offer date.
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19. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
(iv)  Basis of determining the subscription price
New Share Option Scheme

Subject to the terms of the scheme and the provisions of the Listing Rules, the subscription price in
respect of any share option shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date of grant; (i) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets over the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

Subsidiary Scheme Rules and Procedures

Subject to the terms of the scheme and the provisions of the Listing Rules, the subscription price in
respect of any share option shall not be less than the par value of a share provided that if the share
option is intended to qualify as an incentive stock option under the tax laws of the United States,
the subscription price thereof shall not be less than the fair market value of a share as detailed
therein.

(v) Remaining life of the scheme

The scheme will be valid and effective, at the discretion of the board of directors, subject to a
maximum period of 10 years from the date of adoption of the scheme.

Share option movements

During the year, no share options were held by the directors, chief executive or substantial shareholders of
the Company, suppliers of goods or services, or other participants other than eligible employees under the
Old Share Option Scheme.

Details of the share options granted and remaining outstanding at the balance sheet date were as follows:

Number of share options

As at Lapsed As at

Exercise 1 January during 31 December

Date of grant  Exercisable period price 2004 the year 2004

HKS$

25.10.1999 25.10.2000 - 24.10.2009 1.40 1,065,000 (1,050,000) 15,000
16.11.1999 16.11.2000 - 24.10.2009 1.60 7,500 - 7,500
23.12.1999 23.12.2000 — 24.10.2009 2.00 370,000 - 370,000
03.01.2000 03.01.2001 - 24.10.2009 2.30 300,000 (300,000) -
24.01.2000 21.02.2000 - 24.10.2009 2.30 450,000 (450,000 -
25.01.2000 01.03.2000 — 24.10.2009 2.30 150,000 (150,000) -
03.03.2000 03.04.2000 — 24.10.2009 7.60 1,140,000 (1,140,000) -
03.03.2000 03.03.2001 - 24.10.2009 7.60 15,000 (15,000) -
28.04.2000 28.04.2001 — 24.10.2009 3.30 476,500 (329,000) 147,500
09.08.2000 09.08.2001 - 24.10.2009 2.30 30,000 - 30.000
25.10.2000 25.10.2001 - 24.10.2009 1.20 30,000 (10,000) 20,000
Total 4,034,000 (3,444,000) 590,000
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20. RESERVES

Capital
Share Exchange redemption Contributed Accumulated

premium reserve reserve surplus losses Total

HK3$'000 HK$ 000 HK3$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS$'000
Group
Asat | January 2003 23,461 - 6 607,462 {439,268) 191,661
Net loss attributable to

shareholders - - - - (19,756) (19,756)

As at 31 December 2003 23,461 - 6 607,462 (459,024) 171,905

Exchange difference on
translation of foreign

subsidiaries - (1,384) - - - (1,384)
Net loss attributable to
shareholders - - - - (131,607) (131,607)
As at 31 December 2004 23,461 (1,384) 6 607,462 (590,631) 38,914
L] L]
Company
As at | January 2003 23,461 - 6 607,462 (439,080 191,849
Net loss attributable to
shareholders - - - - (17,051) (17,051)
As at 3] December 2003 23,461 - 6 607,462 (456,131) 174,798
Net loss attributable to
shareholders - - - - (105,864) (105,364)
As at 31 December 2004 23,461 - 6 607,462 (561,995) 68,934

Contributed surplus represents the amounts transferred from the share premium account as a result of the
capital reorganisation undertaken by the Company in November 2002. Under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), contributed surplus is distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that
the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if there
are reasonable grounds for believing that:

(1) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(i1) the realisable value of the Company’s assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities
and its issued share capital and share premium account.

Subject to the conditions mentioned in the foregoing paragraph, the Company had the following reserves
available for distribution to shareholders at the balance sheet date:

2004 2003

HK$'000 HK$ 000

Contributed surplus 607,462 607,462
Accumulated losses (561,995) (456,131)
45,467 151,331

L | L]
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21. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Group

2004 - 2003

HK$000 HK$'000
Loss before taxation (132,976) (20,756)
[nterest income (339) (107)
Interest on obligations under finance leases 38 157
Depreciation 48,925 44,403
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 5,687 (2)
Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment 90,153 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries - (1,245)
Loss on disposal of investment securities 232 -
Gain on disposal of other investments - (13)
Bad debts written off 2,943 3,901
Provision for doubtful debts 3,795 269
Foreign exchange effects (1,440) -

Changes in working capital:

Trade and other receivables (4,818) (L1117
Trade and other payables 1,725 (20,572)
Cash generated from operations 13,925 4,918
L] L]

22, COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES

At the balance sheet date, total outstanding commitments in respect of land and buildings under non-
cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

Group Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$ 000 HK$'000
Within one year 4,861 8,548 1,820 833
In the second to fifth years
inclusive 7,370 6,243 816 740
Over five years 355 - - -
12,586 14,791 2,636 1,573
] ]
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23.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Recognised deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

Group
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$’000
Depreciation allowances 303 (467)
Tax losses 2,066 1,467
Net deferred tax assets 2,369 1,000
L] .1

The Group has suffered losses in prior periods. Based on the actual and budgeted results for the year
ending 31 December 2005, management expects that certain subsidiaries of the Group will be able to
generate taxable profits in the coming financial year. A deferred tax asset has been recognised to the extent
of tax losses expected to be utilised in the coming financial year.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Group
2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$ 000
Tax losses 155,649 125,215
Tax credits 1,957 2,157
Deductible temporary differences 741 9
As at 31 December 158,347 127,381
L} L ]

The tax losses of HK$169.462.,000 (2003: HK$170,134,000), tax credits of HK$9,787,000 (2003:
HK$9,806,000) and deductible temporary differences of HK$4,217.000 (2003: HK$43,000) have no expiry
dates under current tax legislation. The tax losses of HK$370,568,000 (2003: HK$279,148,000) can be
carried forward for 20 years and will begin to expire from 2020 onwards. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these items due to uncertainty of their recoverability.
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24,

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The analysis of the principal business activities and geographical areas of operation of the Group during
the year are as follows:

(a)

By business segments

Year ended 31 December 2004

Tele-
communications
services Others Consolidated
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Turnover
External sales 402,155 499 402,654
| . ] ]
Results
Loss from operations (19,039) (271 (19,310)
Restructuring costs (100,544) - (100,544)
(119,583) 271 (119,854)
Finance costs (38)
Other operating income and expenses (13,084)
Loss from ordinary activities before taxation (132,976)
Taxation credit 1,369
Net loss attributable to shareholders (131,607)
L]
Other information
Capital expenditures
— Business segments 4,683 - 4,683
— Unallocated segments 121
Depreciation
— Business segments 48,551 193 48,744
— Unallocated segments 181
Significant non-cash expenses
(other than depreciation)
— Business segments 102,577 1 102,578
Assets
Segment assets 83,957 237 84,194
L] E ]
Unallocated assets 20,748
104,942
.|
Liabilities
Segment liabilities 60,199 309 60,508
L} R
Unallocated liabilities 811
61,319
L]
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24.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

(a)

By business segments (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2003

Turnover
External sales

Results

Loss from operations

Finance costs

Gain on disposal of discontinuing operation

Other operating income and expenses

Loss from ordinary activities before taxation

Taxation credit

Net loss attributable to shareholders

Other information
Capital expenditures
— Business segments

— Unallocated segments

Depreciation

- Business segments

— Unallocated segments
Significant non-cash expenses
(other than depreciation)

- Business segments

Assets
Segment assets

Unallocated assets

Liabilities

Segment liabilities

Unallocated liabilities

40—

Tele-
communications

services Others Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
398,128 4,415 402,543
L | . ] E ]
(4,790) (1,776) (6,566)
(157)

532
(14,565)
(20,756)

1,000

(19,756)

.

5,974 2 5,976

63

42,538 1,477 44,015
388

4,170 - 4,170
215,849 547 216,396
19,420

235,816

. ]

56,782 354 57,136
2,066

59,202
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24. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
(b) By geographical segments
In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, revenue is based on the geographical
location of customers. Segment assets and capital expenditures are based on the geographical location

of the assets.

Year ended 31 December 2004

North America Asia Pacific Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
Turnover
External sales 273,678 128,976 402,654
. ] k] . ]
Results
Profit/(Loss) from operations (25,782) 6,472 (19,310)
Restructuring costs (100,544) - (100,544)
(126,326) 6,472 (119,854)
Finance costs (38)
Other operating income and expenses (13,084)
Loss from ordinary activities before taxation (132,976)
Taxation credit 1,369
Net loss attributable to shareholders (131,607)
R
Other information
Segment assets 52,547 52,395 104,942
Capital expenditures 2,174 2,630 4,804
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24. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
(b) By geographical segments (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2003

Turnover
External sales

Results
Profit/(Loss) from operations

Finance costs

Gain on disposal of discontinuing operation

Other operating income and expenses

Loss from ordinary activities before taxation

Taxation credit

Net loss attributable to shareholders

Other information
Segment assets

Capital expenditures

25, COMPARATIVE FIGURES

North America Asia Pacific Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
264,997 137,546 402,543
(24,255) 17,689 (6,566)
]

(157)

532
(14,565)

(20,756)

1,000
(19,756)

L]

181,356 54,460 235,816
R L

2,869 3,170 6,039

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.
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4. INDEBTEDNESS

As at the close of business on 31 December 2005, being the latest practicable date for the
purpose of ascertaining the information relating to this indebtedness statement prior to the
printing of this circular, the Group had outstanding obligations under finance leases in the
amount of approximately HK$809,000. In addition, the Group had pledged deposits of
approximately HK$2,476,000 to banks to secure bank guarantees issued to telecommunication
carriers for payment assurances by the Group.

As at 31 December 2005, the Group had no debt securities outstanding.

Save as aforesaid and apart from intra-group liabilities, the Company and its subsidiaries did
not, as at the close of business on 31 December 2005, have any outstanding, and authorised or
otherwise created but unissued, loan capital or debentures, mortgages, charges, bank overdrafts,
liabilities under acceptances or other similar indebtedness or acceptance credits or hire purchase
commitments, finance lease commitments, guarantees or other material contingent liabilities.

S. MATERJIAL CHANGES

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Directors are not aware of any material adverse change in
the financial or trading position of the Group since 31 December 2004, being the date to which
the latest published audited financial statements of the Group were made up.

6. WORKING CAPITAL
The Directors are of the opinion that after taking into account the Group’s internal resources

and available borrowing facilities, the Group has sufficient working capital for its present
requirements.
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UNAUDITED COMBINED PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENTS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
ASSETS

Ten months ended Years ended 31 December

31 October 2005 2004 2003 2002

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3$’000 HKS$’000

Net revenue 168,325 156,421 139,096 111,374

Cost of sales or direct costs (139,349) (121,565} (115,717) (91,522)

Gross profit 28,976 34,856 23,379 19,852
Expenses:

General and administrative (11,063) (12,088) (14,025) (10,771)

Selling and marketing (2,468) (1,969) (1,006) (972)

Depreciation and amortisation (422) (415) (464) (745)

(13,953) (14,472) (15,495) (12,488)

Income from operations 15,023 20,384 7,884 7,364

Other income/(expenses), net 1,886 (719) 4,766 (162)

Income before income taxes 16,909 19,665 12,650 7,202

Provision for income taxes (14) éhH (137) (246)

Net income 16,895 19,614 12,513 6,956

The unaudited combined profit and loss statements attributable to the Assets (the “Profit and Loss
Statements™) for the ten months ended 31 October 2005 and the years ended 31 December 2004,
2003 and 2002 (the “Reporting Periods”) set out above have been prepared based on the financial and
other information provided by representatives of the Vendors and reviewed by the reporting accountants
on the Assets, Horwath Hong Kong CPA Limited, which confirm that the Profit and Loss Statements
have been properly compiled and derived from the underlying books and records of the Vendors and
were prepared using accounting policies which are materially consistent with those of the Company
in all material respects. Nevertheless, the Profit and Loss Statements do not purport to predict the
future financial contribution to be derived from the Assets after completion of the Acquisition.

Notes:

1. The revenue for each of the Reporting Periods represents the combined revenue of the Vendors generated from the
Assets, as provided by the Vendors.

2. The costs of sales or direct costs for each of the Reporting Periods represents the combined costs incurred by the
Vendors in generating such revenue, as provided by the Vendors.

3. The general and administrative expenses and selling and marketing expenses incurred by the Vendors as stated

above are after adjustments by excluding related party transactions with companies controlled by the Guarantor
and/or members of his family.
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1.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE PRO FORMA UNAUDITED STATEMENT OF
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF THE GROUP

The pro forma unaudited statement of assets and liabilities of the Group has been prepared
giving effect to the Acquisition at the full consideration amount of HK$50,700,000.
HK$3,900,000 of the total consideration is to be financed by the Group’s existing internal
resources while the remaining balance is to be financed through a bank loan repayable over 5
years.

In connection with the Acquisition, the Group will incur incidental legal and professional costs
estimated by the Directors to approximate HK$1,500,000.

The pro forma unaudited statement of assets and liabilities of the Group has been prepared in
accordance with Rule 4.29 of the Listing Rules for the purpose of illustrating the Acquisition
as if it had taken place on 30 June 2005.

The pro forma unaudited statement of assets and liabilities of the Group is based on the unaudited
consolidated net assets of the Group as at 30 June 2005, which has been extracted from the
interim report of the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2005, and the unaudited book
value as at 31 October 2005 of the assets and liabilities to be acquired under the Asset Purchase
Agreement, the underlying books and records thereof as provided by the Vendors, after giving
effect to the pro forma adjustments described in the notes thereto, and using accounting policies
which are consistent with those adopted by the Group. Narrative descriptions of the pro forma
adjustments arising from the Acquisition that are (i) directly attributable to the transaction; (ii)
expected to have a continuing impact on the Group; and (iii) are factually supportable, are
summarised in the accompanying notes.

The accompanying pro forma unaudited statement of assets and liabilities of the Group is
based on a number of assumptions, estimates and uncertainties. The statement does not purport
to describe the actual financial position of the Group that would have been attained had the
Acquisition been completed on 30 June 2005 or to predict the future financial position of the
Group.

The pro forma unaudited statement of assets and liabilities of the Group should be read in
conjunction with the historical financial information of the Company as set out in the interim
report of the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2005 and other financial information
included elsewhere in this circular.
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2. PRO FORMA UNAUDITED STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF THE

GROUP AS AT 30 JUNE 2005
Acquired
assets and
liabilities
The Group as at Pro forma
as at 31 October Pro forma combined
30 June 2005 2005 adjustments total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  Notes HK$ 000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 7,771 833 - 8,604
Intangible assets - - 50,700 ! 50,700
Available-for-sale investments 1,894 - - 1,894
Deferred tax assets 2,305 - - 2,305
11,970 833 50,700 63,503
Current assets
Trade receivables, net 47,283 20,361 - 67,644
Deposits, prepayments and
other debtors 10,174 613 - 10,787
Pledged deposits 2,433 - - 2,433
Bank balances and cash 43,159 13,795 (5,400) 2 51,554
103,049 34,769 (5,400) 132,418
Total assets 115,019 35,602 45,300 195,921
L} . ]
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade payables 26,518 22,724 - 49,242
Accrued charges and
other creditors 32,357 963 - 33,320
Taxes payables - 31 - 311
Customer deposits - 11,604 - 11,604
Current portion of
obligations under
finance leases 188 - - 188
Bank borrowings
~ current portion - - 9,360 3 9,360
59,063 35,602 9,360 104,025
Non-current liabilities
Obligations under finance
leases 714 - - 714
Long-term bank borrowings - - 37.440 3 37.440
714 - 37,440 38,154
Total liabilities 59,777 35,602 46,800 142,179
L
NET ASSETS 55,242 - (1,500) 53,742
E ] L]
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Notes:

The adjustments to the pro forma unaudited statement of assets and liabilities reflect the increase in the
carrying value of intangible assets of HK$50,700,000 as a result of the acquisition of the Assets as if the
Acquisition had taken place on 30 June 2005. In accordance with Hong Kong Accounting Standard 38
“Intangible Assets” and Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36 “Impairment of Assets”, cost incurred in
acquiring the intangible assets, which relates to the future benefits to be derived from the Customer Contracts
acquired, shall be carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

The Group’s bank balance and cash position has been reduced by HK$5,400,000 to reflect the HK$3,900,000
to be paid out of the total consideration by internal group resources together with HK$1,500,000 representing
the estimated legal and professional costs of the transaction.

The remaining consideration for the Acquisition not paid in note 2 above will be financed through a bank

loan of US$6,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$46,800,000) at the interest rate of 7% per annum,
which shall be payable over 5 years and secured through, among others, a pledge of ZONE US’s receivables.

No effect has been given to any adjustments which could arise in accordance with the consideration
adjustment mechanism as provided in the Asset Purchase Agreement.
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3. REPORT ON PRO FORMA UNAUDITED STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES OF THE GROUP

Moores Rowland Mazars
EHifa EBetasns

The Directors

e-Kong Group Limited

Room 3705, Gloucester Tower
The Landmark

11 Pedder Street

Central

Hong Kong

Dear Sirs,

We report on the pro forma unaudited statement of assets and liabilities set out in Section 2 of
Appendix III (“Pro Forma Assets and Liabilities Statement”) to the circular of e-Kong Group
Limited (the “Company”) dated 16 February 2006 in connection with the major transaction of
the proposed acquisition (the “Acquisition”) of telecommunication services assets, which has
been prepared by the directors of the Company (the “Directors™), for illustrative purposes only,
to provide information about how the Acquisition might affect the net assets of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”).

Responsibilities

It is the responsibility solely of the Directors to prepare the Pro Forma Assets and Liabilities
Statement in accordance with Rule 4.29 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

It is our responsibility to form an opinion, as required by Rule 4.29 of the Listing Rules, on the
Pro Forma Assets and Liabilities Statement and to report our opinion to you. We do not accept
any responsibility for any reports previously given by us on any financial information used in
the compilation of the Pro Forma Assets and Liabilities Statement beyond that owed to those to
whom those reports were addressed by us at the dates of their issue.
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Basis of opinion

We conducted our work in accordance with the Statements of Investment Circular Reporting
Standards and Bulletin 1998/8 “Reporting on Pro Forma Financial Information pursuant to the
Listing Rules” issued by the Auditing Practices Board in the United Kingdom, where applicable.
Our work, which involved no independent examination of any of the underlying financial
information, consisted primarily of comparing the unadjusted financial information with the
source documents, considering the evidence supporting the adjustments and discussing the Pro
Forma Assets and Liabilities Statement with the Directors.

Our work does not constitute an audit or review in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly,
we do not express any such assurance on the Pro Forma Assets and Liabilities Statement.

The Pro Forma Assets and Liabilities Statement has been compiled in accordance with the
basis set out in Section 1 of Appendix III to this circular for illustrative purposes only and,

because of its nature, it may not be indicative of the financial position of the Group had the
Acquisition actually occurred on 30 June 2005 or at any future date.

Opinion
In our opinion:

a) the Pro Forma Assets and Liabilities Statement has been properly compiled on the basis
stated;

b)  such basis is consistent with the accounting policies of the Group; and
c) the adjustments are appropriate for the purposes of the Pro Forma Assets and Liabilities

Statement as disclosed pursuant to Rule 4.29(1) of the Listing Rules.

Moores Rowland Mazars
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 16 February 2006

A member of i
A member firm of Mazal
’ Moores Rowland Internationat er rm o s
an association of independent
mrl accounting firms throughout M A Z A R S

the world




APPENDIX IV

GENERAL INFORMATION

1.  RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

This circular includes particulars given in compliance with the Listing Rules for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors collectively and individually
accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this circular and
confirm, having made all reasonable enquiries, that to the best of their knowledge and belief,
there are no other facts not contained in this circular, the omission of which would make any
statement herein misleading,.

2.  DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

(a)

Directors’ interests

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Directors and the chief executive of the Company
and their respective associates had the following interests and short positions (if any) in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required pursuant to section
352 of the SFO to be recorded in the register maintained by the Company, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code™) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules:

Approximate
Number of  percentage of
Number of Director Capacity Shares held shareholding
Mr. Richard John Siemens Held by controlled 100,631,627 21.4%
corporations (Note 1)
Mr. William Bruce Hicks Personal 2,749,914 0.6%
Held by a controlled 67,962,428 14.4%
corporation (Note 2)
Mr. Kuldeep Saran Personal 341,200 0.1%
Held by a controlled 67,632,428 14.4%
corporation (Note 3)
Mr. Lim Shyang Guey Personal 1,020,000 0.2%
Mr. Shane Frederick Weir Personal 10,000 0.0%
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(b)

Notes:

1. 2,400,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Siemens Enterprises Limited, a company controlled by
Mr. Richard John Siemens. 98.231,627 Shares are beneficially owned by Goldstone Trading Limited,
a company controlled by Mr. Richard John Siemens.

2. 67,962,428 Shares are beneficially owned by Great Wall Holdings Limited, a company controlled
by Mr. William Bruce Hicks.

3. 67,632,428 Shares are beneficially owned by Future (Holdings) Limited, a company controlled by
Mr. Kuldeep Saran.

All interests disclosed above represent long positions in the shares of the Company and
there were no underlying shares held by the Directors as at the Latest Practicable Date.

Save as disclosed above, as at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors, the
chief executive of the Company or their respective associates had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which are deemed or taken
to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which are required pursuant to section 352
of the SFO to be recorded in the register referred to therein, or which are required pursuant
to Model Code to be notified to the Compahy and the Stock Exchange.

Substantial shareholders’ interests

As at the Latest Practicable Date, according to the register kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO and so far as was known to the Directors or the chief executive
of the Company, the following persons (other than the Directors or the chief executive of
the Company) had interests and short positions (if any) in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who were, directly or indirectly,
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of shares carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the Group:

Approximate
percentage of
Name of shareholder Number of Shares held shareholding
Goldstone Trading Limited 98,231,627% 20.9%
Great Wall Holdings Limited 67,962,428* 14.4%
Future (Holdings) Limited 67,632,428%* 14.4%
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The interests herein disclosed represent the same interests as the corporate interests of Mr. Richard
John Siemens (being held through Goldstone Trading Limited of which Mr. Richard John Siemens
is a director), Mr. William Bruce Hicks (being held through Great Wall Holdings Limited of which
Mr. Willians Bruce Hicks is a director) and Mr. Kuldeep Saran (being held through Future (Holdings)
Limited of which Mr. Kuldeep Saran is a director) as disclosed in the notes to the description under
the paragraph above entitled “Directors’ interests”.

All interests disclosed above represent long positions in the shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at the Latest Practicable Date, according to the register kept
by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO and so far as is known to the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company, no other person (not being a Director or the
chief executive of the Company) had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company which are required to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, nor were
there any person, directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or more of the nominal value
of any class of shares carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of
any other member of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors had any existing or proposed service
contract with the Company or any member of the Group which is not expiring or determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, there were no contracts or arrangements subsisting in which
any Director was materially interested and which was significant in relation to the business of
the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN GROUP ASSETS

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors had any direct or indirect interests in
any assets which had been acquired or disposed of by, or leased to any member of the Group, or
was proposed to be acquired or disposed of by, or leased to any member of the Group, since 31
December 2004, the date to which the latest published audited financial statements of the Group
were made up.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors or their respective associates had any
interests in businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.
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7.  EXPERTS’ PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS AND CONSENTS

The particulars of the experts whose opinions or advices are contained in this circular are as

follows:

Name Qualifications

Moores Rowland Mazars Certified Public Accountants
Horwath Hong Kong CPA Limited Certified Public Accountants

As at the Latest Practicable Date, each of Moores Rowland Mazars and Horwath Hong Kong
CPA Limited has given and has not withdrawn its written consent to the issue of this circular
with the inclusion of its letter and/or references to its name in the form and context in which
they appear.

Neither Moores Rowland Mazars nor Horwath Hong Kong CPA Limited has any shareholding
in any member of the Group or the right (whether legally enforceable or not) to subscribe for or
to nominate persons to subscribe for securities in any member of the Group.

Neither Moores Rowland Mazars nor Horwath Hong Kong CPA Limited has any direct or
indirect interests in any assets which had been acquired or disposed of by, or leased to any
member of the Group, or was proposed to be acquired or disposed of by, or leased to any
member of the Group, since 31 December 2004, the date to which the latest published audited
financial statements of the Group were made up.

8.  MATERIAL CONTRACTS

The following contracts (not being contracts in the ordinary course of business of the Company)
have been entered into by members of the Group within the two years preceding the date of this
circular which are or may be material:

(a) anagreement dated 2 November 2005 in respect of the sale by e-Kong Pillars Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, of 315 shares in the issued share capital of
Asiaxpat.com Limited (“Asiaxpat”), which is not a connected person of the Company,
representing approximately 28.5% of the then issued share capital of Asiaxpat for a cash
consideration of HK$5.2 million; and

(b) the Asset Purchase Agreement.
9. LITIGATION
No member of the Group was engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material importance

and no litigation or claim of material importance was known to the Directors to be pending or
threatened by or against any member of the Group as at the Latest Practicable Date.
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10.

11.

DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

Copies of the following documents will be available for inspection during business hours at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at 3705 Gloucester Tower, The Landmark,
11 Pedder Street, Central, Hong Kong for a period of 14 days commencing from the date of
this circular:

(a) the memorandum of association and bye-laws of the Company;

(b)  the interim report of the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2005;

(c) the annual reports of the Company for the years ended 31 December 2004 and 2003;

(d) the Asset Purchase Agreement;

(e) the written consents referred to in the paragraph entitled “Experts’ professional
qualifications and consents” in this appendix;

(f)  the statement signed by Moores Rowland Mazars setting out their opinion on the
adjustments made on the pro forma financial information of the Group, the text of which
is set out in Appendix III to this circular; and

(g) the material contracts disclosed in the paragraph entitled “Material contracts” in this
appendix.

MISCELLANEOUS

(a)  The registered office of the Company is situated at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

(b) The principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong is situated at 3705
Gloucester Tower, The Landmark, 11 Pedder Street, Central, Hong Kong.

(¢)  The branch share registrar and transfer office of the Company in Hong Kong is Secretaries
Limited at Level 25, Three Pacific Place, 1 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

(d) The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Lau Wai Ming Raymond, who is qualified
as a solicitor in Hong Kong.

(e)  The qualified accountant of the Company is Mr. Chan Yee Bun who is a fellow member

of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

— 63—



NOTICE OF SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

=Bl ES
\@EJ‘E

e-Kong Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock Code: 524)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT a special general meeting of e-Kong Group Limited (the
“Company”’) will be held at Room 4101, 41st Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong on Friday, 3 March 2006 at 11:00 a.m. for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit,
passing the following resolution, with or without amendments, as an ordinary resolution of the
Company:

ORDINARY RESOLUTION

“THAT the acquisition of the assets and assumption of the liabilities by Zone Telecom, Inc. (“ZONE
US™), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, pursuant to the conditional asset purchase agreement
dated 16 January 2006 and entered into between ZONE US, Central Utah Communications, Inc.,
Central Utah Communications Leasing, LC., Strategic Alliance Management, Inc., The Spring Trust
and Mr. Dale H. Lewis (“the Asset Purchase Agreement”, a copy of which has been produced to the
meeting and marked “A” and initialled by the Chairman of the meeting for the purpose of identification)
and the transactions contemplated thereunder, be and are hereby approved, confirmed and ratified
and the directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to do all things and acts and sign all
documents which they consider necessary, desirable or expedient in connection with the transactions
contemplated under the Asset Purchase Agreement.”

By Order of the Board
Lau Wai Ming, Raymond
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 16 February 2006

Registered Office: Principal Office:
Clarendon House 3705 Gloucester Tower
2 Church Street The Landmark
Hamilton HM 11 11 Pedder Street
Bermuda Central

Hong Kong
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Notes:

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting convened by the above notice (or at any adjournment thereof)
is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf at the meeting. A proxy needs not be a member
of the Company.

To be valid, a form of proxy, together with the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed,
or a notarially certified copy of such power of attorney or authority, must be deposited at the Company’s Branch
Share Registrar in Hong Kong, Secretaries Limited at Level 25, Three Pacific Place, 1 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong, not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

Completion and delivery of the form of proxy shall not preclude any member from attending and voting in person
at the meeting convened, if the member so desires and in such event, the form of proxy shall be deemed to be
revoked.

In case of joint registered holders of any shares, any one of such persons may vote at the meeting, either personally
or by proxy, in respect of such shares as if he/she was solely entitled thereto, but if more than one of such joint
holders shall be present at the meeting personally or by proxy, that one of such holders so present whose name
stands first in the register of members of the Company in respect of such shares shall alone be entitled to vote in
respect thereof.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, a resolution put to the vote of a general meeting shall be decided on a
show of hands unless (before or on the declaration of the result of the show of hands or on the withdrawal of any
other demand for a poll) a poll is demanded by (a) the chairman of such meeting; or (b) at least three Shareholders
present in person or (being a corporation) by its duly authorised representative or by proxy for the time being
entitled to vote at the meeting; or (¢) Shareholder(s) present in person or (being a corporation) by its duly authorised
representative or by proxy and representing not less than one-tenth of the total voting rights of all Shareholders
having the right to vote at the meeting; or (d) Shareholder(s) present in person or (being a corporation) by its duly
authorised representative or by proxy and holding Shares on which an aggregate sum has been paid up equal to not
less than one-tenth of the total sum paid up on all Shares.
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e-Kong Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(Stock Code: 524)

SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING
FORM OF PROXY

No. of shares to which this

Proxy relates o)

I/We (Nore2)
of
being Shareholder(s) of e-Kong Group Limited (the “Company”) HEREBY APPOINT (¥« ?

of
or failing him, the Chairman of the meeting as my/our proxy to act for me/us at the special general meeting of the Company to be held at
Room 4101, 41st Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong on Friday, 3 March 2006 at 11:00 a.m. (or at any
adjournment thereof) for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, passing the resolution(s) set out in the notice convening the said

meeting and at the said meeting (or at any adjournment thereof) to vote for me/us and in my/our name(s) as hereunder indicated or, if no such
indication is given, as my/our proxy thinks fit. e

RESOLUTION ‘ FOR (ore % AGAINST ®ore %

To approve, confirm and ratify the acquisition of assets and assumption of the liabilities by Zone
Telecom, Inc. pursuant to the asset purchase agreemént dated 16 January 2006 and the transactions

contemplated thereunder. I

Dated this day of 2006.

Signature(s) e

Notes:

1. Please insert the number of shares registered in your name(s) to which the proxy relates. 1f no number is inserted, this form of proxy will be deemed to
relate to all the shares in the Company registered in your name(s).

2. Please insert the full name(s) and address(es) in BLOCK CAPITALS.

3. Please insert the name and address of the proxy desired in the space provided. IF NO NAME IS INSERTED, THE CHAIRMAN OF THE MEETING
WILL ACT AS YOUR PROXY.

4.  IMPORTANT: IF YOU WISH TO VOTE FOR THE SAID RESOLUTION, PLEASE TICK IN THE BOX MARKED “FQOR”. IF YOU WISH TO
VOTE AGAINST THE SAID RESOLUTION, PLEASE TICK IN THE BOX MARKED “AGAINST”. If you do not indicate how you wish your
proxy to vote, your proxy will be entitled 1o cast your vote at his/her discretion. Your proxy will also be entitled to vote at his/her discretion on any
resolution properly put to the meeting other than those referred to in the notice convening the meeting. The description of the resolution contained in this
form of proxy is by way of summary only. The full text thereof appears in the notice convening the meeting.

5. This form of proxy must be signed by you or your attorney duly authorised in writing or, in the case of a corporation, must be executed either under its
common seal or under the hand of an officer, attorney or other person duly authorised to sign the same.

6.  Where there are joint registered holders of any share, any one of such persons may vote at the meeting, either personally or by proxy, in respect of such
share as if he/she were solely entitled thereto, but if more than one of such joint holders are present at the meeting, personally or by proxy, that one of the
said persons so present whose name stands first on the register of members of the Company in respect of such share shall alone be entitled to vote and will
be accepted to the exclusion of other joint registered holders in respect thereof.

7. To be valid, this form of proxy, together with the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed or a certified copy thereof, must be
deposited at the Company’s Branch Share Registrar in Hong Kong, Secretaries Limited at Level 25, Three Pacific Place, | Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong, not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the holding the meeting or any adjourned meeting (as the case may be). The completion and
delivery of the form of proxy will not preclude any member from attending and voting in person at the meeting or any adjourned meeting if you so desire
and in the event that you do attend the meeting, this form of proxy shall be deemed to be revoked.

8. A proxy need not be a member of the Company and must attend the meeting in person to represent you.
9. ANY ALTERATION MADE TO THIS FORM OF PROXY MUST BE DULY INITIALLED BY THE PERSON WHO SIGNS IT.




